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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
ok R TR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), I hereby
present to the sharcholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)

the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group reported revenue
of approximately HK$75.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 4.3% from the revenue of approximately HK$79.0

million (restated) of the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK§$258.8
million (2020: approximately HK$344.0 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 24.8% as compared to previous year.
Such decrease in loss was mainly attributable to net unrealised
gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$0.9 million which was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2021, whereas net unrealised losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$85.9 million were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group was principally engaged in (a) the provision of financial
services with the licenses to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively the
“Financial Services Business”) and (b) the provision of media
sales, design services and production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors (“BUS-BODY Advertising”) and interiors
(“BUS-INTERIOR Advertising”), and the provision of integrated
marketing services covering these advertising platforms in Hong
Kong (collectively the “Media Business”) during the reporting
period.
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Financial Services Business

The Group continued to engage in the Financial Services
Business with the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. On 16
December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted a licence to
carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the SFO by the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”). Since then, the Group commenced
the provision of corporate finance advisory services. This
enables the Group to further broaden its Financial Services
Business and to create synergies with other existing financial
services of the Group by strengthening its ability to provide

integrated financial products and services to our customers.

As at 31 December 2021, the Financial Services Business of
the Group mainly consists of (i) external asset management
(“EAM”) services; (ii) fund management services; (iii)
securities services; (iv) investment advisory services to fund

management; and (v) corporate finance advisory services.

Media Business

During the reporting period, the Group engaged in the BUS-
BODY Advertising business, the BUS-INTERIOR Advertising
business, and the provision of integrated marketing services
covering these advertising platforms in Hong Kong.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
October 2021, given the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in
2020 has brought enormous impact on Hong Kong economy,
including the various travel restrictions and quarantine
measures being implemented causing the minimum level of
economic activities, the sales performance of the customers
from the Media Business were severely hit. Amid the sluggish
market and high unemployment rate, the customers from the
Media Business reduced their advertising expenses having
regard to the short-term economic outlook. In addition, they
are shifting their advertising expenses from the traditional
offline advertising platforms, which are mainly operated by
the Group, to online multimedia advertising platforms causing
further reduction in the revenue of the Media Business.
Meanwhile, the COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated the
shift to online advertising channels, and the change in the
preference of customers and audiences on the advertising
platforms has brought challenges and uncertainties to the
Media Business which mainly operates through the traditional
offline advertising platforms in Hong Kong.

(1)

(2)
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Based on the continuing loss recorded in the Media Business
segment since 2020 and the unfavourable business outlook for
the Media Business as set out above, the Company, Bus Power
Limited (“Bus Power”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company), Citybus Limited, New World First Bus Services
Limited and Bravo Transport Holdings Limited entered into
a termination agreement to terminate the agreement for
the provision of bus body advertising agency services with
effect from 1 November 2021 (the “Termination”) and the
Group ceased to provide the BUS-BODY Advertising and
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising services. It is expected that
the Termination shall provide an opportunity for the Group
(i) to early release and discharge itself from the obligations
of the contractual obligations, including among others, the
obligation of payment of minimum monthly licence, at a
cost lower than the full amount of the licence fees up to the
expiry of its term in 2023 and (ii) to realign its resources and
focus on the development of the Financial Services Business
which can generate higher returns to the shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”).

Other Investments

The Group has been continuously exploring opportunities
for investments to diversify income stream and maximise
returns for the Shareholders. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2019, the Group subscribed
for limited partner interests in BeiTai Investment LP (the
“Investment Fund”). As at 31 December 2021, the Group
has made investment of HK$77.0 million (2020: HK$103.0
million) in the Investment Fund as a limited partner, which
represented approximately 71.0% (2020: approximately
71.0%) of the total capital commitment of the Investment
Fund. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
Investment Fund was approximatcly HK$71.3 million (2020:
HK$95.0 million).

PROSPECTS

It is expected that the overall business environment in which

the

Group operates will remain challenging, especially amid

the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Group will continue to

cautiously monitor the development to ensure timely response

to changes regarding the market condition and the COVID-19

pandemic. The Group will strategically adjust the allocation of the

resources within the Financial Services Business where appropriate

and will continue to seize investment opportunities with a view to

maximise returns for the Shareholders.

4
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APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its gratitude to all the staff for
their hard work and dedication and to thank all our Sharcholders,

clients and suppliers for their continuous support.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The Group has been engaging in the Financial Services Business
with the licences to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO since December 2018 and throughout the
reporting period. On 16 December 2020, Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted
a licence to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the SFO by the SFC. Since then, the Group

commenced the provision of corporate finance advisory services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Financial Services
Business contributed revenue of approximately HK$75.6 million
(2020: approximately HK$79.0 million) which represents the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such
revenue represented a decrease of approximately 4.3% as compared

to that of the previous year.

The Group expected that the growth of assets under management
(“AUM”) and revenue will be limited in coming years due to
the adverse impact and the uncertainties brought about by the
persistent COVID-19 pandemic together with the economic and
political factors. The management took a conservative approach to
adjust the financial budgets and its key assumptions and assessed
that the carrying amount of the goodwill and part of the carrying
amount of intangible assets in relation to the Financial Services
Business may not be recoverable through the future cash flow to
be generated from operations or from their disposal. As such,
impairment losses on goodwill and intangible assets in respect of
the Financial Services Business of approximately HK$78.6 million
and approximately HK$13.8 million respectively were recognised
in 2021 (2020: approximately HK$99.9 million) due to adjustment
in financial budgets.

(i) EAM services

The Group provides EAM services to clients who are
mostly high net worth individuals, whose asset sizes under
EAM arrangement remained stable as at 31 December
2021 and amounted to approximatcly HK$4.9 billion
(2020: approximately HK$4.8 billion). Revenue generated
from EAM services for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$40.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$35.2 million) representing an increase of
approximately 13.9% from the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Despite the market volatility brought by geopolitical tensions
as well as the persistence of COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group will continue to leverage on (i) the stable relationship
between the Group and the financial institutions which are
able to provide investment products which suit the needs
of the EAM clients; and (ii) the management team with
extensive asset management experience and strong network
with high net worth clients, to broaden the customer base

and support continuous development of the EAM business.
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(ii) Fund management services

The Group acts as the investment managers or general
partners of certain offshore private equity funds and manages
the assets and investments of the funds on a discretionary
basis in pursuit of the investment objectives and strategies
of the funds, which include achievement of long term
compounded net asset value gain for investors. Revenue
generated from fund management services during the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$25.6 million (2020: approximately HK$32.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 21.3% as compared
to the previous year. Such decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in fund management fee income as the result of
downturn of performance of certain funds managed under the

Group’s fund management services business.

(iii) Securities services

The Group, through Target Capital Management Limited
(“TCM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
provides a full range of securities brokerage services,
including securities margin financing, underwriting, placing
services, as well as securities dealing which was commenced
after TCM was admitted as a CCASS participant of the Stock
Exchange in 2019. The securities margin financing services of
TCM are mainly provided to its institutional and retail clients
for the security trading in their securities accounts maintained
in TCM, which form part of the securities brokerage services
provided by TCM. The business remains minimal at this stage
so as to minimise the operating cost during the uncertain
economic condition.

Internal control over the securities margin
ﬁnancing services

In order to ensure the compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations and proper risk management for its securities
margin financing services, TCM has in place a written policy
setting out the relevant margin lending policy and internal
control system in compliance with all applicable rules and
regulations including the SFO, the Code of Conduct for
Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and
Futures Commission (including Schedule 5 “Additional
requirements for licensed persons providing margin lcnding”
of the Code of Conduct) and Guidelines for Securities Margin

Financing Activities. In particular, pursuant to such written

policy:
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1)

Credit risk assessment of customers

TCM should assure itself that the clients have the
financial capacity to meet margin loan obligations
by assessing credit risk of each client based on the
objective documentary proof of net income or net
asset worth obtained. Upon receipt of the appropriate
documentary proof, TCM would set the appropriate
credit and margin limits accordingly, and conduct
regular review on the limits to ensure the credit risks

are properly managed.

In addition, TCM sets up a credit control committee
(the “Credit Control Committee”), which is mainly
responsible for, inter alia, overseeing and ensuring the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits so assessed and approved by the responsible
officers of TCM are supported by the objective proof(s)

of the client’s income and asset.

(ii) Determination of Terms of Margin Loan

Normally, TCM charges its client at a designated
interest rate. For certain clients with good creditability
and sound financial background, a lower interest rate
may be charged after officer of TCM are satisfied
with the client’s creditworthiness. The Credit Control
Committee would also review the latest financial and
credit condition of clients from time to time and make
recommendations to increase the interest rate for those
accounts with persistent margin calls.

TCM only accepts securities listed on the Stock
Exchange as underlying collaterals with different margin
ratios based on their liquidity, type (as equity or debt)
and market value etc. The margin ratio for different
types of collateral would be reviewed and revised either
quarterly or at times of significant market movement.
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(iii) Approval process for granting loans, and

related checks and balances

The sales and trading team are responsible for obtaining
objective proof(s) showing client’s income and net
asset for determining the terms of the margin loan and
submit such results and information to the responsible
officers of TCM for review and approval; whereas the
Credit Control Committee serves as an independent
supervising committee to ensure the decisions made by
the responsible officers of TCM regarding, inter alia, the
creditworthiness of clients, the margin and credit limits
and the client’s application for the increase of credit
limits are supported objectively by the relevant income
and asset proof(s). To ensure appropriate checks and
balances are in place, the Credit Control Committee
reports directly to the board of directors of TCM.

(iv) Monitorin g loan repayment an d recovery

In order to ensure repayment and recovery of the
margin loans and sufficiency of the securities collateral,
the policy sets out the triggering events and steps for
margin calls to make demands for additional funds
or collateral when the value of the equity in client’s
account declines below certain required levels, and a
forced liquidation of collateral if the client fails to meet
the margin call before designated deadlines. The Credit
Control Committee shall monitor the status of the
margin calls.

(v) Actions on (]e/inquent loans

In case that the proceeds from the forced liquidation is
insufficient to recover the margin loan balance, TCM
shall obtain legal advice from its lawyers and take legal
action to recover the outstanding balance.

(iv) Investment advisory services to fund
management

The Group acts as the investment adviser to fund managers or
general partners of several offshore private equity funds and
provides portfolio advisory services to them.
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(v) Corporate finance advisory services

10

The Group started to engage in the provision of corporate
finance advisory services through Bison Corporate Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since
December 2020. Revenue generated from corporate finance
advisory services during the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to approximately HK$2.4 million (2020: Nil).
Such increase was mainly due to the fact that the Group
commenced its first full year operation in providing corporate
finance advisory services for the year ended 31 December
2021. Although the local and global economies are still not
fully recovered are thereby bringing challenges to the Group’s
Financial Services Business, the Group was still developing
this business segment and expanding its operating scale
despite such unfavourable circumstances, and the management
of the Group is optimistic that this business segment would
be able to play a more important role in bringing in revenue
to the whole Financial Services Business segment in the
foreseeable future. The Group will continue to develop and

enhance the income stream from this segment.

Apart from the traditional financial services, the Group is
exploring new opportunities from emerging financial markets
to further develop its Financial Services Business. The Group’s
Financial Services Business will continue to utilise the Group’s
resources and network as well as the extensive investment
experience of our senior management, which are considered
as major Contributing factors to maintain an ongoing business
development in the Financial Services Business carried out by

the Group.
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MEDIA BUSINESS

During the reporting period, the Group engaged in BUS-BODY
Advertising, BUS-INTERIOR Advertising, and the provision of
integrated marketing services covering these advertising platforms
in Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Media
Business recorded revenue of approximately HK$128.4 million
(2020: approximately HK$219.3 million) which represent a
decrease of approximately 41.5%.

Since 2019, the operation of the advertising platforms of the Media
Business has been affected by various incidents, including among
others, the social unrest which persisted for over six months. The
revenue of the Media Business has since decreased continuously.
In addition, the exclusive licence in relation to BUS-BODY
Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising with The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus
Company Limited (“LWB”) expired on 30 June 2020. Following
the expiry of the exclusive licence granted by KMB and LWB, the
Group obtained the exclusive licence in relation to BUS-BODY
Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising with New World First
Bus Services Limited and Citybus Limited (collectively, the “Bus
Companies”), effective from 1 July 2020. Despite the exclusive
license granted by the Bus Companies, the scale of the Media
Business has been gradually shrinking due to the adverse impact
of the aforementioned incidents which led to further decrease in

revenue.

Given the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 has brought
enormous impact on Hong Kong economy, including the various
travel restrictions and quarantine measures being implemented
causing the minimum level of economic activities, the sales
performance of the customers from the Media Business were
severely affected. Amid the sluggish market and high unemployment
rate, the customers from the Media Business reduced their
advertising expenses having regard to the short-term economic
outlook. In addition, they are shifting their advertising expenses
from the traditional offline advertising platforms, which are mainly
operated by the Group, to online multimedia advertising platforms
causing the further reduction in the revenue of the Media Business.
In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated the shift to
online advertising channels, and the change in the preference of
customers and audiences on the advertising platforms has brought
the challenges and uncertainties to the Media Business which
mainly operates through the traditional offline advertising platforms
in Hong Kong.
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In view of the various adverse impacts on the Media Business,
in second half of 2020, the Group discontinued the provision of
media sales, design services and production of advertisements for
shelters (“BUS-SHELTER Advertising”) and outdoor signage
(“BILLBOARDS Advertising”) advertising businesses.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
October 2021, based on the continuing loss recorded in the Media
Business segment since 2020 and the unfavourable business outlook
for the Media Business as set out above, the Company, Bus Power,
the Bus Companies and Bravo Transport Holdings Limited entered
into a termination agreement in relation to Termination. With
effect from 1 November 2021, the Group ceased to provide the
BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising services,
which enable the Group to realign its resources and focus on the

development on the Financial Services Business.

OTHER INVESTMENTS

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into the subscription
agreements with BeiTai Investment Limited (the “General
Partner”) (an independent third party to the Company and its
connected persons), being the general partner of BeiTai Investment
LP (the “Investment Fund”) to subscribe for limited partner
interests in the Investment Fund. The objective of the Investment
Fund is to invest in debt securities or equity securities of both
private and listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by
investing in such other financial instruments as its General Partner
may determine. Such investment is a passive investment and the
Group, as a limited partner, is entitled to receive distributions
of the Investment Fund in accordance with the Group’s capital
commitment therein, but has no right to participate in the day-to-
day operations of the Investment Fund, nor does it have control
over the management of the Investment Fund. The investment
strategy in the Investment Fund is to capture investment
opportunities and increase the efficiency of its financial resources,
and to generate a reasonable return for the duration of the Group’s
investments in the Investment Fund. For details, please refer to the

Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2019.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group has made investment of
HK$77.0 million (2020: HK$103.0 million) in the Investment Fund
as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0% (2020:
approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of the
Investment Fund. The Group’s capital contribution was reduced by
HK$26.0 million from HK$103.0 million as at 31 December 2020
to HK$77.0 million as at 31 December 2021 due to the withdrawal
of capital contribution, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the amended and restated limited partnership agreement for
BeiTai Investment LP dated 20 March 2020, as determined by the
General Partner at its discretion (the “Withdrawal of Capital
Contribution”). As at 31 December 2021, the underlying
investments of the Investment Fund represent equity securities
listed in Hong Kong, a bond issued by a corporation listed in
Hong Kong and a bond issued by a private equity (2020: equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and bonds issued by a corporation
listed in Hong Kong). The investment in the Investment Fund is
stated at fair value and is recorded as “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As at 31 December 2021, together with the Withdrawal
of Capital Contribution during the year ended 31 December 2021
and the overall increase in fair value of the underlying assets of the
Investment Fund during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
fair value of Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$71.3
million (2020: approximately HK$95.0 million), which represents
approximately 20.8% (2020: approximately 15.3%) of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021. During the year ended
31 December 2021, as a result of an overall increase in fair value of
the underlying assets of the Investment Fund, the Group recorded
an unrealised gain on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$2.2 million (2020: unrealised loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$82.4 million). No dividend was received from the Investment
Fund for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Directors’ and audit committee’s view towards
the audit qualification

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Investment Fund
amounted to approximately HK$71.3 million, which included an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$46.2 million representing
the Group’s share of the carrying values of two underlying
investments in two unsecured redeemable bonds issued by Emerge
Ventures Limited (“EV”), a private company, (the “EV Bond”),
and A Metaverse Company (“AMC”) (previously known as
Starrise Media Holdings Limited), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“AMC Bond”), (collectively, the “Bonds”). During the year, net
unrealised fair value gain arising from the Bonds attributable to
the Group amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million and was
included in the total net unrealised fair value gain arising from the
Investment Fund included in financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss of approximatc]y HK$2.2 million rccogniscd in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as set out in note 21(c) to
the financial statements.
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As also explained in note 21(c) to the financial statement,
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the EV Bond and
the AMC Bond were not redeemed upon their respective maturity
dates in January 2022 and February 2022.

No audited financial statements as at 31 December 2021 had been
provided by EV to the Investment Fund or to the Group. As further
explained in note 22 to the financial statement, a receivable from
AMC brought forward from prior years had remained unsettled
as at 31 December 2021. The trading of AMC’s shares has been
suspended on the Stock Exchange since 1 April 2022. As at the
date of this report, AMC has not announced its audited results for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and trading of its shares has not
been resumed.

Management engaged an independent valuer to conduct fair value
assessments of the Bonds based on financial data obtained from
the unaudited management accounts of EV as at 31 December
2021 and the unaudited interim financial statements of AMC as at
30 June 2021. Neither the Investment Fund nor the Group were
provided with additional information or other details about the
status of the operations and financial position of EV and AMC for
their assessment of the recoverability and the carrying values of the
EV Bond and the AMC Bond held by the Investment Fund as at 31
December 2021. Management was unable to provide the external
auditor of the Company with other sources of information or other
evidence to support the appropriateness of the key inputs and
assumptions adopted by management in their assessments of the
recoverability and the determination of the carrying values of the
Bonds as at 31 December 2021,

As a consequence, the external auditor of Company was unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence they considered
necessary to assess the fair values of those underlying investments

of the Investment Fund.

As the Group is only a limited partner of the Investment Fund
and the Group has limitation in obtaining the necessary evidence
from the issuers of the Bonds, hence the Group was unable to
provide the auditor with the sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to support the management’s assessment on the fair value of the
Bonds. Given such limitation, the external auditor of the Company
expressed a qualified opinion in relation to (i) the carrying value
of the Investment Fund derived from the Bonds of approximately
HK$46.2 million as at 31 December 2021, and (ii) the net
unrealised fair value gain arising from the Bonds attributable to the
Group amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Audit Qualification”).
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Despite the limitation in obtaining all the necessary evidence by
the Group mentioned above, the Group had still obtained the
supporting information and evidence available to it for the fair
value assessments of the Bonds. The management had engaged
an independent valuer to conduct fair value assessments of the
Bonds based on key financial data obtained from the unaudited
management accounts of EV as at 31 December 2021 and the
unaudited interim financial statements of AMC as at 30 June 2021.
The management considered that relying on the result from the
valuation performed by the independent valuer was the most
feasible option to the Group to conduct fair value assessments
of the Bonds under the limitation on obtaining all the necessary
evidence as mentioned above. During the review of the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 by the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), the
Audit Committee, after considering the limitation faced by the
Group, reviewed and agreed to adopt the valuation report for the
fair value assessment of the Bonds. The Directors also reviewed and
agreed to adopt the valuation report for the purpose of preparing
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Audit Committee and the Directors
are in agreement with the auditor on the Audit Qualification
arising from the limitation of obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidence in assessing the fair values of those underlying investments

of the Investment Fund.

The Company’s plan to address the Audit
Qualification

On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached the end
of the investment term. The general partner of the Investment
Fund has initiated the liquidation process of the Investment Fund
by realising the underlying investments by sales of the listed
equity securities on stock exchanges and redemption of the Bonds.
The proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment Fund (after
deducting the handling charges) are expected to be recovered by
the Group before the end of 2022. The management is of the view
that the impact of Audit Qualification will no longer exist at the end
of 2022 if the Investment Fund is able to realise its Bonds according
to the terms and conditions of the Bonds and to distribute the
proceeds from the liquidation of the Investment Fund to the Group
as a limited partner of the Investment Fund. To address the Audit
Qualification, the management of the Group are closely monitoring
the process of the liquidation of the Investment Fund to ensure that
the Group can collect the proceeds from the liquidation which is
the interest attributable to the Group.
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IMPACT OFTHE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic negatively affected the
global economics, global capital market condition and advertising
industry in Hong Kong. Such factors not only (i) resulted in the
discontinuation of BUS-SHELTER Advertising and BILLBOARDS
Advertising businesses in the second half of 2020 and the
termination of BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR
Advertising businesses in November 2021, but also (ii) led to a
downward adjustment on expectation on growth of future revenue
which resulted in the carrying amounts of certain assets in relation
to the Financial Services Business may not be recoverable, and
hence impairment losses on goodwill and intangible assets for
Financial Services Business of approximately HK$78.6 million
and approximatcly of HK$13.8 million were rccogniscd during
the year ended 31 December 2021,
an adjustment to the credit risk of counterparties when assessing

respectively and (iii) led to

the expected credit loss of balances of rececivables of the Group
in compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9
(Financial Instruments), and hence impairment loss on accounts
receivable of approximatcly HK$18.9 million (2020: approximatcly
HK$1.4 million) and impairment loss on loans receivable of
approximately HK$22.7 million (2020: reversal of provision for
impairment loss of approximately HK$2.0 million) were recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The aforesaid factors also
imposed higher liquidity risk due to the reduced cash inflow from
the operation of the Group among the business segments of the

Group.

The Group reviewed its cash flow forecast for the 18 months after
the year end date. It disclosed the management’s assessment that,
based on the latest forecast, the Group would have sufficient funds
to satisfy its working capital and capital expenditure requirements
for the 18-month period.
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To ensure the sustainability of the Group under the challenging

environment brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has

implemented various measures to monitor its liquidity position and

working capital sufficiency. These measures include:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

adoption of a more proactive approach in collection of
account receivables and loan receivables together with
tightened cost controls to maintain a healthy cash flow

position;

termination of certain loss making businesses (for examples,
BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR Advertising
businesses were terminated during the year ended 31
December 2021) in order to retain working capital;

disposal of subsidiaries (for example, Disposal of NanTai
Investment Limited was completed during the year of 2021)
and considering the possibility of realising other assets and
investments in order to strengthen the liquidity position of

the Group; and

exploring different fund raising activities to improve financial
resources of the Group.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S % 1

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=+—HILFE

Full Year Results (HK$’000) 2021 2020
B E X

A (BW T o) (Restated)

(REF)

Revenue A 75,573 78,977

LBITDA®e ) (159,382) (194,439)

A wH AL~ BEIE - Yt 85 e i B T i s 4R (W)

Loss before tax from continuing operations 7 2 28 8 35 0 B B A s 1B (192,648) (236,588)

Net loss s 18 15 % (258,760) (343,973)

Basic loss per share (HK cents) (19.97) (30.17)

B BB A i 4B (i)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Data (HK$’000)

HaWBRI R EE (B Tx)

Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEED 147,437 151,939

Total assets & & 48 i 341,954 621,020

Total liabilities i & #2{f 139,585 233,786

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 202,369 387,234

A oy w) AN B A HE £ A8

Cash Flow Data (HK$’000)

BEmsgyE (B% Tu)

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities (19,657) 112,443

s (i), PB4

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,504) 54,847

BERBEZEY (W), g

Financial Ratios

Y 5 b R

Current ratio Vit B bt & 2.16 1.65

LBITDA margin®>? (210.9)% (246.2)%

A wHAIE ~ B IE - 85 B ik B A A s 4R 3 ()

Net loss margin®™ ) {5 Ji 4 3 (W) (342.4)% (435.5)%

Debt-to-equity ratio £ fif & A< Lk % 48.3% 42.8%

Notes: Bff 5 -

R FH AL - BLIE TR B B T RO i 4R =R wE
A~ BTGB~ T8 B G T R A AR S 2 i 4R

1. LBITDA = Loss from continuing operations before finance costs, income 1.

tax, depreciation and amortisation

2. LBITDA margin = LBITDA divided by revenue 20 RFFALE S BLIA IR T B AT A S R =R A
BB~ BLIE - BT SRS AT s 1R R DAk A
3. Net loss margin = Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year 3. T 48 R =4 A R AT N A s 18 R DA A

divided by revenue
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REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group reported a
revenue of approximately HK$75.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 4.3% when compared to revenue of approximately

HK$79.0 million (restated) in 2020.

The overall decrease in revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 was mainly due to the decrease in fund management fee
income as the result of downturn of performance of certain funds
managed under the Group’s fund management services business and
offset by the increase of the external asset management advisory

commission income.

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES, NET

In view of the changes in the current economic environment related
to the COVID-19 pandemic and volatile global financial market,
the management of the Company assessed such effect on financial
performance of the Group’s Financial Services Business and Media
Business and the impact on the recoverable amounts of assets. The
recoverable amounts of the assets were determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36
Impairment of Assets (‘HKAS 36”), discounted cash flow method

shall be adopted in the value-in-use calculations.

In assessing the value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”)
of the Financial Services Business, the Company appointed an
independent valuer to conduct a valuation (the “Valuation”).
The discounted cash flow method was adopted in compliance
with HKAS 36, and the value-in-use calculations use cash flow
projections based on historical data and financial budgets approved
by the Board cover eight-year (2020: eight-year) period for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The percentage of revenue
growth in relation to the investment advisory services and fund
management businesses, being one of the key assumptions used
in the value-in-use calculations, was Nil to 5% (2020: Nil to 3%)
as at 31 December 2021. As the carrying amount of the CGUs
was estimated to be higher than their recoverable amount, (a)
impairment losses on goodwill in respect of the Financial Services
Business of approximately HK$78.6 million was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$99.9
million); and (b) impairment losses on intangible assets in respect
of the Financial Services Business of approximately HK$13.8
million in total was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil). For details of the value-in-use calculations
leading to the impairment losses, please refer to notes 18 and 19 to

the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
S 25 1o

As at 31 December 2021,
receivable amounted to approximately HK$44.4 million (2020:

the Group recorded (i) the accounts

approximately HK$77.6 million); and (ii) prepayments, deposits
and other receivables amounted to approximately HK$7.4 million
(2020: approximately HK$19.0 million). In compliance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards 9 Financial Instruments,
impairment analysis was performed by considering the credit risk
of counterparties to measure the expected credit loss of balances of
receivables of the Group. As a result of such impairment analysis,
(a) impairment loss on accounts receivable of approximately
HK$18.9 million (2020: approximately HK$1.4 million), and (b)
the reversal of provision for impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$0.1 million
(2020: impairment loss of approximately HK$0.6 million), were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021. For details of the
expected credit losses calculations leading to the impairment loss,
please refer to notes 20 and 22 to the financial statements.

LOANS RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had loans receivable of
approximately HK$30.2 million (2020: approximately HK$86.7
million) in aggregate. The loans receivables constitute:

(i)  loans receivables in the aggregate amount of approximately
HKS$24.5 million (2020: approximately HK$86.7 million)
due from three (2020: four) independent third parties with
effective interest rates ranging from 5% to 12% (2020: 5%
to 12%) per annum and repayable within one to two years
(2020: one year). All the loans were unsecured (2020: a loan
amounting to approximately HK$13.5 million was secured
by guarantee from a director of the borrower). For details,
please refer to note 23 to the financial statements; and

(if)  loans receivables of approximately HK$5.7 million due from
a related company (which is not a connected person under
the Listing Rules) at an interest rate of 10% (2020: nil) per
annum and repayable in May 2022. Such loan was unsecured.

For details, please refer to note 24 to the financial statements.
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As required under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments, the Group performed impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on loans receivable
and engaged an independent valuer to perform a valuation (the
“Valuation”) in relation to the ECL of the loan receivables as of
31 December 2021. Assessments on the value of the inputs used
in the Valuation were made based on and under the assumptions
in accordance with the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
and were adjusted by forward-looking factors that were specific to
the debtors and the economic environment (including the world’s
gross domestic product and the default spread of the country
where the debtor operates in). Based on the Valuation, provision
of approximately HK$23.0 million and approximately of HK$0.4
million were recognised as at 31 December 2021 in respect of the
expected credit losses for the loan receivables and loan to a related
company respectively (2020: approximately HK$0.4 million and
Nil respectively). For the year ended 31 December 2021, provision
for expected credit losses of approximately HK$22.7 million and
approximately of HK$0.4 million (2020: reversal of provision
for expected credit losses of approximately HK$2.0 million and
Nil respectively) were recognised in the Company’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss respectively.

The Group from time to time maintains internal control system
to migrate credit risk exposures arising from lending transactions:
The Group has performed client due diligence procedures and
credit assessment to obtain the background information and assess
the repayment abilities of the borrowers, obtained proper approval
from senior management before executing lending transactions, and
performed periodic review on existing borrowers to identify the
financial position and assess the recoverability of the borrowers.

LOSS FORTHE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE OWNER OFTHE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group reported a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$258.8
million (2020: approximately HK$344.0 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 24.8%. The decrease in loss for the
current year was mainly attributable to a net unrealised gain on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$0.9 million recognised for the year ended 31 December
2021 in relation to the investments which constitute listed equity
securities investment, an unlisted equity investment and a private
equity fund (2020: net unrealised loss of approximately HK$85.9
million in relation to the investments which constitute listed equity

securities investments and a private equity fund).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2021. In the event that the Group engages in any
plan for material investments or capital assets, the Company will
make announcement(s) and comply with relevant rules under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when
appropriate.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

CASH FLOW

In 2021, the net cash flows used in the operating activities of the
Group was approximately HK$19.7 million (2020: generated
from the operating activities of approximately HK$112.4 million).
Payment for capital expenditure in 2021 amounted to HKS$nil
(2020: approximately HK$2.3 million). The consolidated cash flow
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out on pages 109 to 111 of this Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

On 18 June 2021, the Company and SunChat Trading Limited
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Share Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 236,973,066 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.26 per Subscription Share (the “Share
Subscription”) under general mandate which was granted to
the Directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 16 June 2020, so as
to broaden the sharcholder base and strengthen the cash position
of the Group without incurring additional finance costs of the
Group. As all the conditions of the Share Subscription have been
fulfilled, the completion of the Share Subscription took place on
25 June 2021, and 236,973,066 Subscription Shares were allotted
and issued to the Subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.26
per Subscription Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Share Subscription Agreement. The aggregate nominal value
of 236,973,066 Subscription Shares was HK$23,697,306.60. The
market price of the Subscription Shares was HK$0.25 per share on
the date of the Share Subscription Agreement (i.e. 18 June 2021),
and the net issue price per Subscription Share (after deducting
all applicable costs and expenses in connection with the Share

Subscription) was approximately HK$0.26.
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The gross proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately
HK$61.6 million, and the net proceeds of the Share Subscription
(after deducting all applicable costs and expenses in connection
with the Share Subscription) were approximately HK$61.6 million.
The intended and the actual use of the net proceeds of the Share
Subscription as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:
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As at 31 December 2021
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Expected Timeline
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Intended Applications of Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Net Proceeds Proceeds
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1) Repayment of the indebtedness of the Group 31.5 7.0 24.5 On or before
18 38 A% 4 [ 1 31 December 2022
(Note)
MFZ A
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B2 (B EE)
2)  Payment of royalty, licence and management fees of the 30.1 30.1 - -
Group s Media Business
iﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ Rl N
Total: 85t : 61.6 37.1 2.5

Note: The proceeds allocated for repayment of the indebtedness of the Group
remained unutilised as the result of the extension(s) granted by respective

creditor(s) of the Group during the reporting period.

At 31 December 2021,
amounted to approximatcly HK$147.4 million (2020:

the Group’s cash and cash equivalents

approximately HK$151.9 million), denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars, Euro, Singapore dollars and Renminbi.

The Group has financed its working capital primarily from its
bank deposits and cash and also cash generated from the operating
activities. To cope with the development of Financial Services
Business and to capture investment opportunities, the Group has
funded its investing activities and operating activities from issuing
promissory notes and the Share Subscription.

The Group has adopted a prudent approach in financial resources
management and closely monitored its liquidity position in order
to maintain a healthy cash flow position with adequate facilities
to meet the potential needs for our business expansion and
development in the future.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s indebtedness comprised
promissory notes and lease liabilities of approximately HK$97.8
million (2020: approximately HK$165.7 million). The Group’s
indebtedness was denominated in Hong Kong dollar. All the
indebtedness carried interests with fixed rates ranging from
2.8% to 10.0% per annum. All of the indebtedness shall be
repayable within 1 year (2020: in 1 to 2 years). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total indebtedness to the total share capital
and reserves of the Group, was 48.3% as at 31 December 2021

(2020: 42.8%).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any stand-by
banking facilities (2020: HK$30.0 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HKS$157.5 million (2020: approximately HKs$142.6
million) and total assets of approximately HK$342.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$621.0 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021,
approximately HKS$1.2 million were pledged mainly for the

bank deposits of the Company of

corporate credit cards issued to the Group (2020: approximately
HK$32.2 million were pledged mainly to secure certain bank
guarantees provided by the subsidiaries of the Company to the
independent third parties regarding their due performance and
payment under certain licence agreements between certain
subsidiaries of the Company and independent third parties and for

the corporate credit cards issued to the Group).

EXPOSURETO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Euro, Singapore
Dollar and Renminbi. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company recognised an exchange loss of approximately HK$2.2
million (2020: an exchange gain of approximately HK$1.2 million).
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its financial
position and foreign currency exposure in 2021.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HKsnil (2020:
approximately HK$3.3 million). Capital commitments contracted
for but not provided for in the financial statements of the Group at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$41.2 million
(2020: approximatcly HK$41.2 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has made investment of
HK$77.0 million (2020: HK$103.0 million) in the Investment
Fund as a limited partner, which represent approximately 71.0%
(2020: approximately 71.0%) of the total capital contribution of
the Investment Fund. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of
Investment Fund amounted to approximately HK$71.3 million
(2020: approximately HK$95.0 million). During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group recorded an unrealised gain on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HKS$2.2
million (2020: unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$82.4 million) from the

Investment Fund.

For details, please refer to section headed “Operational Review —
Other Investments”.

Details of the investment in the Investment Fund are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 February 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, save as disclosed in note
33 to the financial statements, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures by

the Group.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
POLICIES

The financial statements set out on pages 104 to 217 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules, all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 45 full-time employees
(2020: 113 full-time employees). The Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all its
employees. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
incurred staff costs of approximately HK$76.3 million (2020:
approximately HK$80.7 million). For remuneration payable to key
management personnel, please refer to notes 10, 11 and 36 to the
financial statements. The remuneration of Directors was determined
with reference to the background, qualifications, experience
of each Director, level of responsibilities undertaken with the
Company and prevailing market conditions. In addition, the Group
offers a performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on
the achievement of business objectives and a sales commission
scheme to its sales team based on achievement of advertising
revenue targets. The Group has adopted a provident fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 8 June 2018, under which the Company may grant
options to, among others, employees of the Group to subscribe
for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) for providing them with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
as a reward for their contribution and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its Shares for
the benefit of the Company and the Sharcholders as a whole. For
details, please refer to the sub-section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME in the directors’ report of this annual report.

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 24 August 2018 which complements the
Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the
Shares may be awarded to employees, directors (including executive
and non-executive directors), officers, agents or consultants of the
Group for providing them with incentives to continuously make
substantial contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in
the future and aligning their interests directly to the Sharcholders
through ownership of Shares. For details, please refer to the
subsection headed “SHARE AWARD SCHEME” in the directors’
report of this annual report.
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DR. MA WEITHUA
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Dr. MA, aged 73, was appointed as a non-executive director and the
chairman of the Company on 21 November 2017 and 29 May 2018
respectively. He is currently the chairman of National Fund for
Technology Transfer and Commercialisation. He has been appointed
as a first member of the Mainland China Advisory Group of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited since July 2021.

Dr. MA is currently an independent director of Guangdong
Qunxing Toys Joint-Stock Co. Ltd.* (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code: 002575) since August
2020 and an independent non-executive director of China Gas
Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with stock code:
384) since February 2022, Haidilao International Holdings Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 6862) since
August 2021 and Legend Holdings Corporation (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 3396) since June 2015.

Dr. MA was previously an independent non-executive director
of China World Trade Center Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”) with stock code: 600007) from
August 2014 to June 2020, Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 1658) from
December 2013 to December 2019, and China Eastern Airlines
Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 670 and the SSE with stock code: 600115) from
October 2013 to December 2019.

In addition, Dr. MA was a deputy to the 10th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) from 2003
to 2008, a member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (‘CPPCC”) from 2008
to 2013 and a member of the 12th National Committee of the
CPPCC from 2013 to 2018.

*  For identification purpose only
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MR. XU PEIXIN
Executive Director

Mr. XU, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 21 November 2017. He is also a director of Target
Capital Management Limited (“TCM”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, a licensed corporation under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) to carry out type 1 (dealing
in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities. He has more than 13 years of
corporate executive management and investment experiences. From
June 2005 to June 2012, Mr. XU was a venture partner of New
Enterprise Associates (Beijing), Ltd., one of the group companies
of New Enterprise Associates, Inc. which is a venture capital firm.
He was primarily involved in designing and executing investment
strategies in the retail and healthcare industries. Mr. XU also
served as a director of AirNet Technology Inc. (formerly known
as AirMedia Group Inc.), a company listed on NASDAQ Stock
Market (“NASDAQ”), from January 2014 to December 2016. Mr.
XU founded Bison Capital Holding Company Limited, which is
an investment holding company specialised in investments in the
media and financial industries, and has been an executive director
since December 2013. In May 2010, Mr. XU was nominated as a
chief committee member of the Expert Committee of the APEC
E-Commerce Business Alliance. He is a director of Bliss Chance
Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited, which
are the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange) of the Company.

MR. SUN LEI
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. SUN, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 24 December 2018. Mr.
SUN is also an executive director and responsible officer of TCM.
He is also a non-executive director of Bison Corporate Finance
Limited (“Bison Corporate Finance”), a licensed corporation
under the SFO to carry out type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activities. Prior to joining TCM, Mr. SUN had worked
at Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited as an executive
director in corporate coverage from March 2014 to September
2015 and BOCI Securities Limited as a director from March
2011 to February 2014. With experience for over 18 years in the
financial industry, he has extensive experience in various aspects
such as corporate finance, fixed income and bond issuing. Prior to
stepping into the financial industry, Mr. SUN had been working on
environmental engineering, overseas corporate financing, futures
and project budgeting. Mr. SUN obtained a bachelor of engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology in July 1990.
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MR.ZHU DONG
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. ZHU, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director and the
chief financial officer of the Company on 13 December 2017. He
is also a non-executive director and chief financial officer of Bison
Corporate Finance commencing from 16 December 2020 and the
chief financial officer of TCM, and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He has more than 26 years of experience in
accounting, corporate finance and advisory services.

DR. QI DAQING
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. QI, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company and a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee and nomination committee.
He is a professor of accounting and former associate dean of
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (‘CKGSB”). He began
teaching in CKGSB since 2002 and was the founding director of the
executive master of business association programme. His primary
research interests are in financial accounting and reporting as well
as profit manipulation by management of the listed companies.

Dr. QI received his degree of doctor of philosophy in business
administration from Michigan State University in 1996, master of
business administration degree from the University of Hawaii at
Manoa in 1992 and bachelor of science and arts degrees from Fudan
University, the PRC in 1985 and 1987 respectively.

Dr. QI is currently an independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: SOHU)) since 2005 and
Momo Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ (Symbol: MOMO))
since 2014, and an independent non-executive director of),
SinoMedia Holding Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code: 623) since May 2008, Jutal Offshore
Oil Services Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code: 3303) since July 2015, Yunfeng Financial Group Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 376)
since February 2016 and Haidilao International Holding Ltd. (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 6862) since
May 2018. Dr. QI was previously an independent director of iKang
Healthcare Group, Inc. (a company privatised and delisted from
NASDAQ in January 2019 (Symbol: KANG)) from 2014 to 2019.
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MR. CHEN YIGONG

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHEN, aged 51,
executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He is

was appointed as an independent non-

the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and
a member of audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. He is currently a partner in PacGate Law Group,
a law firm in the PRC. Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor degree in
biochemistry in the Peking University, the PRC in 1992, and he
obtained a degree of jurisdoctor in the University of lowa, the
United States of America in 1998.

Mr. CHEN is currently an independent director of Ambow
Education Holding Ltd. (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”) (American depositary shares) (Symbol:
AMBO)) since March 2013. He was previously an independent
director, a director and president of Link Motion Inc. (a company
which was delisted from the NYSE (American depositary shares) in
January 2019 (Symbol: LKM)).

MR. FENG ZHONGHUA

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. FENG, aged 51,
executive director of the Company on 21 November 2017. He

was appointed as an independent non-

is the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company
and a member of audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. He was previously a director of AirNet Technology
Inc. (formerly known as AirMedia Group Inc.) from May 2011 to
December 2016, and served as chief operating officer with respect
to certain affiliated entities of AirNet Technology Inc. from October
2005 to December 2016. Mr. FENG received an executive master
of business association degree from Peking University, the PRC in

2009.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF w5 Pl s )y

DIRECTORS

The changes in information of the Directors since the date of the MR TR D %13.51B(1)1%5E%*&% E[S
2021 Interim Report of the Company which are required to be O E R T AR R H O R SR
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set BEES T

out below:

Name of Director Details of the changes

WA 5 B i

MA Weihua O He has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of China Gas Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code: 384) with effect
from 1 February 2022 and Haidilao International Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 6862) with effect from 24 August 2021 respectlvely

5 R 2E . Beorhl g —F A H*Eiﬁ%ﬁﬁ*.%%&?ﬂﬂxﬁﬁﬁ/\j — 7

W ir LW AR (Bt 384) ) LB —F ~—4/\H -+ HE#E
TAT B 1 S 15 180 R 22 LA PR & (— ) A 6 32 Br Tl i 28 /) (A AR 5%
6862) ZH L IEHATE S o

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information of the B I SCHT I #& & 41 MEHEAR 4 (LB AN 58
Directors that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 1351B(1)1%3E%&§E@ﬁ1@%$§*4°

13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
O

The directors (the “Directors”) of Bison Finance Group Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is situated
at 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in (a) the provision of financial services with the licenses
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively the “Financial Services
Business”) and (b) the provision of media sales, design services
and production of advertisements for transit vehicle exteriors
(“BUS-BODY Advertising”) and interiors (“BUS-INTERIOR
Advertising”), and provision of integrated marketing services
covering these advertising platforms in Hong Kong (collectively the
“Media Business”).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
October 2021, given the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in 2020
has brought enormous impact on Hong Kong economy, including
the various travel restrictions and quarantine measures being
implemented causing the minimum level of economic activities, the
sales performance of the customers from the Media Business were
severely hit. Amid the sluggish market and high unemployment rate,
the customers from the Media Business reduced their advertising
expenses having regard to the short-term economic outlook. In
addition, they are shifting their advertising expenses from the
traditional offline advertising platforms, which are mainly operated
by the Group, to online multimedia advertising platforms causing
the further reduction in the revenue of the Media Business. In
addition, the COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated the shift to
online advertising channels and the change in the preference of
customers and audiences on the advertising platforms have brought
the challenges and uncertainties to the Media Business which mainly
operates the traditional offline advertising platforms in Hong Kong.
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Based on the continuing loss recorded in the Media Business
segment since 2020 and the unfavourable business outlook for the
Media Business as set out above, the Company, Bus Power Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Citybus Limited,
New World First Bus Services Limited and Bravo Transport Holdings
Limited entered into a termination agreement in relation to the
agreement for the provision of bus body advertising agency services
with effect from 1 November 2021. With effect from 1 November
2021, the Group ceased to provide the BUS-BODY Advertising and
BUS-INTERIOR Advertising services and realigned its resources
and focus on the development on the Financial Services Business.
For details, please refer to pages 11 to 12 of this Annual Report.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Group are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements. The analysis of the
principal activities of the operations of the Group during the
financial year are set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend

for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of the risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing and particulars of important events affecting
the Group have occurred during the year are set out in the Letter
from the Board on pages 2 to 5 and Operational Review on pages
6 to 17 of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

The risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out on pages 61 to 65 of this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2021 taking into account the financial key performance
indicators is set out in Financial Highlights on page 18 and Financial
Review on pages 19 to 26 of this Annual Report.

APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVERS

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance
Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”), the controlling shareholder
of the Company that WAN Hiu Yeung and JONG Yat Kit of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited were appointed as joint and
several receivers (the “Receivers”) over 680,508,005 shares of
the Company (the “Charged Shares”). Based on the information
provided by Bliss Chance, the appointment of the Receivers over
the Charged Shares pursuant to a share charge entered into between
Bliss Chance as the chargor and Fruitful Worldwide Limited
(“Fruitful Worldwide”) as the chargee (the “Share Charge”).
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The Company was informed by the Receivers on 29 December
2021, the Receivers entered into a memorandum of understanding
with an interested party in relation to the possible sale of the
Charged Shares. In addition, the Directors are given to understand
that there is no definite timeline for the Receivers and the
interested party to finalise or complete the possible sale of the

Charged Shares.

In the event that the possible sale of the Charged Shares to the
interested party materialises and is completed, the interested party
will acquire 30% or more of the voting rights of the Company and
give rise to an obligation for the interested party and any party
acting in concert with them to make a mandatory general offer for
all the issued ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (other
than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by them) under
Rule 26.1 of The Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers
Code”).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
carrying out various measures to ensure the fulfilment of its social
responsibilities towards the preservation of the environment
and natural resources. The Group carries out its business having
recognised the importance of building awareness of environmental
conservation and minimising carbon footprints through utilising
resources efficiently, employing green office initiatives and
promoting environmental awareness among employees and other
key stakeholders. The Group understands the global implications of
climate change and is committed to minimising the potential impact
on the environment by its operation.

For details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance
and an account of the relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report on pages 70 to 93 of this Annual Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

On the Group’s business and operational levels, before using
any information, programme, music video or photo which is not
owned or taken by the Group, the Group shall first identify the
copyright owner, ascertain the ownership of the relevant copyright
work so to obtain consent from the copyright owner. In addition,
if any advertisement order is placed by the advertiser which may
have legal or compliance issues with the applicable laws, rules or
regulations, such advertisement order shall be pre-vetted before
acceptance. The Group constantly reminds employees of and
emphasises the importance of safeguarding the security of personal
data. When collecting and processing such data, the Group complies
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPO”) and the
guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data. The Group will not use or provide personal data
to any person for use in direct marketing unless the data subject’s
consent is obtained in writing. For the business operations of the
Group which involves regulated entities under the SFO, the Group
has formulated internal guidelines and has engaged compliance
officers to ensure compliance with the SFO, Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the PDPO, and ordinances
relating to disability, sex, family status and race discrimination, as
well as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its

employees.

On the corporate level, the Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the SFO including, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance matters, and
the Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that employees are valuable assets of the Group.
With a view to retaining talents, the Group offers a comprehensive
and competitive remuneration and benefits package to all of its
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has organised certain internal training courses and coordinated with
the third-party consultants to provide external training courses to
our employees to support their carcer development.

The Group believes that timely feedbacks are crucial to increase
customer satisfaction and improve performance. Therefore, we
actively collect customer feedback and if any complaints are made,
we handle them within 24 hours upon receipt by the responsible
person pursuant to the established procedures. We strive to build
a long-term relationship with our customers which is vital to our
business.

SHARES IN ISSUE AND SHARE
CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in order to strengthen
the cash position of the Group without incurring additional
finance costs, the Company allotted 236,973,066 Shares (the
“Subscription Shares”) to SunChat Trading Limited as subscriber
at the subscription price of HK$0.26 per Subscription Share (the
“Share Subscription”) pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the subscription agreement dated 18 June 2021. The gross proceeds
of the Share Subscription were approximately HK$61.6 million,
and the net proceeds of the Share Subscription (after deducting
all applicable costs and expenses in connection with the Share
Subscription) were approximately HK$61.6 million. Details of
movement in the share capital of the Company are set out in note
31 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Non-executive Director

Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Peixin
Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. QI Daqing
Mr. CHEN Yigong
Mr. FENG Zhonghua
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
Mr. XU Peixin, Mr. ZHU Dong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua will
retire from office by rotation at the Company’s forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Profiles of the Directors of the Company are set out on pages 27 to
30 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code as adopted by the Company, were as
follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Total
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Personal Corporate derivatives underlying issued
Name of Directors HEEMA interests interests (Note 1) shares shares
Bt 52 A A
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Bt 1y HE £ s CBTRNG
il N\ BE £ 2y W) BE £ (fit1) k] Hal
MA Weihua 15 7 - — 11,000,000 11,000,000 0.77%
XU Peixin (“Mr. XU") R (TER A ]) ~ 680,508,005 1,180,000 681,688,005 47.94%
(Note 2)
(Mtit2)
SUN Lei B 11,340,000 - 4,000,000 15,340,000 1.08%
ZHU Dong KA 6,500,000 - 4,000,000 10,500,000 0.74%
QI Daging YN~ 3,000,000 - 1,180,000 4,180,000 0.29%
CHEN Yigong BR T . - 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%
FENG Zhonghua 5 - - 1,180,000 1,180,000 0.08%
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Notes:

1. These interests in underlying shares under equity derivatives represent the
share options of the Company granted by the Company on 27 March 2020.
Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Share Option

Scheme” below.

2. 680,508,005 Shares are held by Bliss Chance, all the ordinary shares
of which are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital Financial
Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”). Bison Capital is in turn wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in Shares
held by Bliss Chance for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

3. On 26 August 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance and Bison
Capital that they ceased to be associated corporations of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) on 25 June 2021.

Short positions in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

B

1o R T EAGAR B B HE SR AR A A LR —E
TAE S T BAR AR RO o A B
JIGe AR A SR T ST B ) — £

2. 680,508,005 & [ 0 1 & B FE AT - 11 B B A 0 3
PR AREASBMBERARAR (THHFEA]) &
EREREA - AREAANRBEELERE R
WA - RE GBI B HG) HExVEr el b
RN E B A A BB B RE S o

3. WMIOEZ—HNAZTAH-AAFABEHEEE
FHEHFEARABN  ZHEAFAH F —FXH
:Jr}iElﬁ_TEﬁﬂF/\jZ/r‘EEﬁ?{:l%d (EFHR GF
I K EBEP)D HExvEr)

TP A 2 i) B Ay e R B e #9908

Name of Directors wWHEES Corporate Interests % of total issued shares
2T BT
2w HE 28 By @ 43 b
Mr. XU WA 680,508,005 (Note 1) 47.86%
(KtaEr)
Note: Fff 5% -
1. 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of 1. HEBRa E@680,508,00SE&H& {3 £ & 41 F Fruitful

Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong
International Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by China
Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss
Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital
is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. XU is deemed to be interested in the short positions in the Shares held
by Bliss Chance.

Huarong Asset Management Co.,

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved and adopted at the AGM held on 8 June
2018. The scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme
has been refreshed to 118,486,533 share options of the Company
(the “Share Options”), representing approximately 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of the resolution, which was passed at

the AGM held on 16 June 2020.
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The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company as a reward for their contribution
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its sharecholders as a whole. The Share Option
Scheme will provide the Company with a flexible means
of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to participants.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
employees, directors (including independent non-executive
director), sharcholders, suppliers, customers, consultants,
business or joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors,
agents, advisers, lenders or financiers of the Group and
associates of any of the foregoing persons.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 118,486,533 Shares, representing
approximately 8.3% of the issued Shares as at 13 May 2022
(the date of this Annual Report).

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Share Options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in

issue.

The exercise period of any Share Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must
not exceed ten years from the date of grant of the relevant

Share Options.

The Board has the authority to determine any minimum
period(s) for which a Share Option must be held before it can
be exercised. However, it is not a mandatory condition for
the participant(s) to hold the Share Options for a minimum

period before exercise of the share options granted.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the Share Options
must be made within 14 days from the date of offer with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from each participant.

The subscription price of Share Options shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the

date of grant.
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9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a = 9. IEAERT & H —F— NFNH/NHEH
period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the H ,ﬁyﬁﬁ_ﬁJrJrfﬁﬁqﬁéd(&%é& °
Share Option Scheme on 8 June 2018.

For further details of the principal terms of the Share Option S % %ﬂ'ijig{%%(%@—ﬂ%%?% ) TS
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 30 April BIARANFHMAE " FZ— /\FWUH=THR®A
2018. Bl ©

Particulars of the outstanding Share Options granted under the BE " FZ -+ H=+—HILFE  W#
Share Option Scheme and their movements during the year ended e FISE MR T ) 52 T e A AT 1) R R N

31 December 2021 were as follows: HEFWT
Number of Share Options
il I A ¢ H
Balance
Balance Cancelled/ as at
Exercise price as at Granted on Exercised Lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant per Share Exercise period | January 2021 during the year  during the year the year 2021
REZZ-—F REZZ-—%
—~H—H RS/ FSA=T-R
REA il 1 RATER WEE RERRE REREE A B
1. Director
i
MA Weihua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 11,000,000 = = = 11,000,000
26 March 2025
B “F-FFEZAZtENR Mot MIZTEREZASFTLHE
RCRFZASTAA
Mr. XU 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 1,180,000 = = = 1,180,000
26 March 2025
3 “F-FFEZAZtEHR Mot MIZTERE=ZASFLHE
RCRFZASTAA
SUN Lei 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 4,000,000 = = = 4,000,000
26 March 2025
i “ECREZASTEH Mot MIZTERE=ZASFLHE
RCRFZASTAA
ZHU Dong 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 4,000,000 = = = 4,000,000
26 March 2025
K& “F-FFEZAZtEHR Mot MIZTEREZASFTLHE
RCRFZASTAA
QI Daqing 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 1,180,000 = = = 1,180,000
26 March 2025
iON “ECREZASTEH Mot MIZTERE=ZASLTLHE
CECRE=AS+AH
CHEN Yigong 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 1,180,000 = = = 1,180,000
26 March 2025
HoR T “ECREZASTEH Mot MIZTERE=ZASFLHE
RCRFZASTAA
FENG Zhonghua 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 1,180,000 = = = 1,180,000
26 March 2025
ik “F-FFEZAZtEHR Mot MIZTEREZASFTLHE
RCRFZASTAA
2. Employees/Other 27 March 2020 HK$0.33 From 27 March 2020 to 36,500,000 = = (8,000,000) 28,500,000
Participants 26 March 2025
[ Ve Tty Es “F-FFEZAZtEHR Mot MIZTEREZASLTLHE
RCRFZASTAA
Total: 60,220,000 = = (8,000,000) 52,220,000

b
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Notes:

1. The closing price per Share on 26 March 2020, being the date immediately
before the date on which the Share Options were granted, was HK$0.31.

2. Share Options under the Share Option Scheme granted on 27 March 2020

has been vested immediately.

There were no Share Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
118,020,000 Share Options).

As at 31 December 2021, there were 52,220,000 outstanding Share
Options (2020: 60,220,000 Share Options) granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no expense
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme (2020:
approximately HK$9.3 million).

Save as disclosed above, there were no outstanding Share Options
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

In order to (i) complement the Share Option Scheme; (ii) provide
incentives for the participants to continuously make substantial
contributions for the long-term growth of the Group in the future;
(iii) further align the interests of the selected participants directly
to the sharcholders of the Company through ownership of Shares;
(iv) attract and retain talented participants who may be beneficial
to the growth and development of the Group; and (v) encourage
or facilitate the holding of Shares by the participants, on 24 August
2018, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) under which Shares (the “Award Shares”)
may be awarded to selected participants which include employees,
directors (including executive and non-executive directors),
officers, agents or consultants of the Group pursuant to the terms
of the scheme rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme
on 24 August 2018.

In connection with the implementation of the Share Award Scheme,
the Board or the Board committee may from time to time cause
to be paid certain funds to the trustee for the subscription of new
Shares and/or purchase of the existing Shares (either on-market or
off-market) and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the selected
participants and for the satisfaction of awards granted or to be
granted under the Share Award Scheme upon vesting. The trustee
shall not exercise any voting right in respect of any Award Shares
held in trust by it under the Share Award Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EoE R

B

1. ROFTREZA T ANHE (RBERAR R
BT — B ) B9 45 il 8 4 v Wro.310e

2. RTERCFFE S b AARR R R R
PR e HEE 2 R I B

BE - FZ-—F+__A=+—HI1LFE %
S AR I I M T B o AR (R AR
118,020,000/ H§ ¥ ) -

BE_Z-—4H+-_A=+—H BiEE
JBEHE ST B © 82 e A AT R 00 B R A L
52,220,000 ( =& —F4F 1 60,220,00017 H
HE) o

BEZFZ-—HE+_HA=+—HILEE
S0 0 AR 0 O G T 4 o 0 I IR A AR B 4R
i 7 MERR B 2 (=& AR - 499 9,300,000
JC) e

BRULEWEEN BE_F _—~F+ A
b Bk AR AR AR AR S R 4%
W) A AT (52 4 S B

JB& Oy % Jgh 5t 3

5y G)BC & W ERE ST B 5 Gy [ 5 A 48 18] oK Ak = 40
BRI ERE R D2 B A8 5 i)
7 R TR 2 B A I 1 O 2 HE— 2P
3% 2 BLE Y R 4 BRLAS 20 R IR R 4 B
B85 )R 51 KA B A Bl e ) A A B R X
BRI TS 2B 5 K (v) S B 2 B
BB ANFRBER —F—/\FE/ANH_+MH
PRAN 0y S a8 (T e Oy SEmh st &0 1) - bRt
JBe A7 (TS i JBE 4y | ) v A e A48 i 13 3% Jh it 1)
8 s ) A R B A RE 32 0 Mk 3 58 B T 44 0 & L
HoURALEZES EF (UHEUITES
RIEHATES) ~ SR A B~ AR R R o
St E A —F— \ENAH T HHER A
HRETT T4 A BT

A SR B B S > EF SR ERE
Z B & SO R 08 13 32 5E A SO T 48 A
R T B0y K e B AT TRy (MR 45 A G
$ph) o A J 1 188 22 B 1) ) i S S Bt AR Iy
BAR 9% B0y 5% Wb w1 &) 2 % ) sUEAR 1 22 )
1 DA 5277 5 A A BRI = 52 58 A HR B
{7y 5% i wt T e AR FE BT AR A A AT T 5 i B4
AAFAT AT AT 5 57

20214 HASBEBAERL A 41



DIRECTORS’
o

REPORT

Subject to the provisions of the Share Award Scheme, the Board or
the Board committee may, from time to time, grant such number
of Award Shares (subject to any vesting criteria and conditions or
periods for the Award Shares to be vested as determined by the
Board or the Board Committee) to any selected participants at a
price (i) equal to or lower than the average subscription price per
share of all Shares subscribed by the trustee at the date of grant
(other than those Award Shares granted but not yet vested) (in the
case of subscription of new Shares) or (ii) equal to or lower than
the average purchase price per Share of all Shares purchased by
the trustee as at the date of grant (other than those Award Shares
granted but not yet vested) (in the case of purchase of existing
Shares) on and subject to such terms and conditions as it may in its
absolute discretion determine.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award which
will result in the number of Shares granted under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of issued Shares from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no Share has been
purchased by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (2020:
10,000,000 Shares was purchased from the market at a total cost
of HK$3,671,210 (excluding all related expenses, transaction levy,
brokerage, tax, duties and levies) pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Scheme). As at 31 December 2021, no Award Share
was held by the trustee for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme
(31 December 2020: 43,890,000 Award Shares).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 43,890,000
Award Shares (31 December 2020: 11,500,000 Award Shares) have
been granted to the selected participants pursuant to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 32(a)

to the financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently
in force and was in force throughout the year ended 31 December

2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in notes 5, 21, 22, 24, 29
and 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. (Such transactions were ecither (i) fully exempted from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
sharcholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1)
and Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules or (ii) did not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.)

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company did not have any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the above section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, was subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND,
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
persons (not being Directors and chief executives of the Company)
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required

o

—
=

”
>

F R R HoAlh
B A B e o v

49,
My &

g

€
)4

B >
S

MRoE - —F+_HA=+—H - BAAFAESE
KB AT B AN A R AR 2N R B AT A
A (EFR A GBS R BB ExvEs)
() R 1 B A BRI 0 v AT AR IR GBI K &
B 55 XVER 22 S 343 F 78 & AR N A e B
TR R R AN TR GBS K B R 1)

to be entered into the register maintained by the Company pursuant

to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Total Number of

5336l EM A B B R M A RE s BOR B U ¢

% of total issued

Name Capacity Shares held Shares
i 2 H B B AT

E1 .74 X7 5ty i 5 5 T 48 8 B 4 i 43 b

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 680,508,005 47.86%

8 (Wit gt 2PN

Bison Capital (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%

AER (Hit2) X 1 i L 4

JIANG Feng Yun (Note 3) Interest of spouse 681,688,005 47.94%

HBE (KBit3) i {18 1) 1 4

Fruitful Worldwide (Note 4) Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 57.24%

Fruitful Worldwide ( #f7£4) T TR A3 e B IR B RE A5 A A

China Huarong International Holdings Limited Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 57.24%

(Note 4)

B il R A R (M aEe) A PR A7 v AT R i i 9 A

China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 4) Person having a security interest in Shares 678,259,144 57.24%

o I 2 il A BB A BRA R (M aEe) T JBC A3 o B A R i 4 P N

JONG Yat Kit (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%

HEHA (B ite) 1 i T 4 R

WAN Hiu Yeung (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%

L BERS (M 7t4) 2 PE Tk T Y i

SunChat Trading Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 236,973,066 16.67%

WY A RAE (Hits) L E7% Z-PN

SU Lihong (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporation 236,973,066 16.67%

RRRBAL (M1 its) 1 i T 4 R

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Person having a security interest in Shares 103,624,000 7.29%

Limited (Note 6)

WHEGE S (B SMZERARAR (Hite) BB HEEA RERER AL

Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd (Note 7) Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%

WA RN R (HiE7) 2P T U O i

China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 7) Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%

B R T R R A RAE (M A7) 1 i L 1

Cruiser Determined Limited (Note 8) Beneficial owner 103,624,000 7.29%

Cruiser Determined Limited ( ff7£8) Hafa A

TAN Bin (Note 8) Interest of controlled corporation 103,624,000 7.29%

W (Hits) 2 PE Tl T Y E i

DENG Xianzi (Note 9) Interest of spouse 103,624,000 7.29%

BT (B iEo) i 165 Y
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Bliss Chance owns 680,508,005 Shares.

As Bliss Chance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bison Capital, Bison
Capital is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by

Bliss Chance under the SFO.

JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested in
681,688,005 Shares which represents the same interest of Mr. XU for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

All these Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of
Fruitful Worldwide. As Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China
Huarong International Holdings Limited., which in turn is wholly-owned by
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd., China Huarong International
Holdings Limited and China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. are
deemed to be interested in the security interest in the 678,259,144 Shares
charged in favour of Fruitful Worldwide for the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO.

According to the relevant disclosure of interest notices, these Shares
represented approximately 57.24% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of the relevant event. The total issued Shares increased to 1,421,838,398
following the completion of the Share Subscription on 25 June 2021.
Accordingly, these Shares represented approximately 47.70% of the total
1,421,838,398 issued Shares as at 31 December 2021.

On 8 October 2021, the Company was notified by Bliss Chance that WAN
Hiu Yeung and JONG Yat Kit of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited were
appointed as Receivers over 680,508,005 Shares.

SunChat Trading Limited owns 236,973,066 Shares. As SunChat Trading
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by SU Lihong, she is deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares held by SunChat Trading
Limited under the SFO.

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Financial Holdings Limited (“Dongxing
Securities (Hong Kong)”) is interested in the security interest in
103,624,000 Shares.

As Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) is wholly-owned by Dongxing
Securities Co., Ltd. which is 52.74% held by China Orient Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd. and China Orient
Asset Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in the same

interests of Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong).

Cruiser Determined Limited owns 103,624,000 Shares. As Cruiser
Determined Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by TAN Bin, he is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares held by Cruiser
Determined Limited under the SFO.

DENG Xianzi is the spouse of TAN Bin. She is deemed to be interested in
103,624,000 Shares which represents the same interest of Mr. TAN Bin for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

4.
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Short positions in the issued Shares

AT P RIR A
Total Number of
Shares that are

subject to short % of total

Name Capacity position issued shares
BRBEEWRS HERORTR

(.78 % =4/ Y VEEE:RZA

Bliss Chance (Note 1) Beneficial owner 680,508,005 47.86%

=8 (i) Ha A A

Bison Capital (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 680,508,005 47.86%

HREAR (Mfit1) 21 5 T Y HE 2R

JIANG Feng Yun (Note 2) Interest of spouse 680,508,005 47.86%

A& RE (M it2) i 1) HE i

Notes

1. 680,508,005 Shares held by Bliss Chance have been charged in favour of

Fruitful Worldwide. Fruitful Worldwide is wholly-owned by China Huarong
International Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by China
Huarong Assct Management Co., Ltd. All the ordinary shares of Bliss
Chance are wholly and beneficially owned by Bison Capital. Bison Capital is
in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. XU. Bison Capital is deemed
to be interested in the short position of Shares held by Bliss Chance for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

2. JIANG Feng Yun is the spouse of Mr. XU. She is deemed to be interested in
the short position of the Shares held by Mr. XU for the purpose of Part XV
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests or short positions were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Sharcholder or any of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
were interested in any businesses that competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.
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MA]JOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively

during the financial year is as follows:
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Percentage of the Group’s total

A 45 [ A8 4 L
Sales Purchases
iR 79 3
The largest customer BRKEF 8%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEF 24%
The largest supplier e KAt FE P 26%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate HRUEER &5 41%

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the largest suppliers of the
Group include two external asset management consultants, Citybus
Limited, New World First Bus Services Limited, The Kowloon
Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited and Sin Fung Advertising
Production Company Limited. The Group recognises that it is
important to maintain good relationship with our suppliers so as to

deliver high-quality products and services to the customers.

No Director who held office at 31 December 2021 nor any of his
close associates; nor any sharcholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of

issued Shares) had any interest in the largest suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OFTHE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
its shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial

part of any business of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Shares Issued and Share
Capital”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” above,
no equity-linked agreement was entered into during the year ended
31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2021.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 218 to 219
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
participates in employee pension schemes organised by the local
governments of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) under the
regulations of the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG has resigned as auditor of the Company with
effect from 30 June 2020 (the “Resignation”). Following the
Resignation, Messrs. Ernst & Young (“EY”) has been appointed as
auditor of the Company with effect from 8 July 2020. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2020 and 8
July 2020 for details.

EY shall retire and offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor
of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the
re-appointment of EY as auditor of the Company shall be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

ZHU Dong
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 13 May 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Bison Finance Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and believes that in the achievement of the long term
objectives of the Group, it is of utmost importance to conduct the
business with accountability, transparency and fairness.

As of the date of this Annual Report, the Board with the assistance
of the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), continues to monitor and review the corporate
governance (“CG”) practice of the Group to be in line with from
time to time the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG Code”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year ending 31 December 2022, the Board shall conduct
the review of the current CG practice in accordance with amended
CG Code with effect from 1 January 2022 (the “2022 CG Code”)
and make necessary changes when appropriate.

Corporate Governance Practice

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG
Code to the Listing Rules effective up to 31 December 2021 (“2021
CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, except
for the deviation from code provision E.1.2 of 2021 CG Code as
explained below with considered reasons.

Under code provision E.1.2 of 2021 CG Code, the chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) and he should invite the chairmen of the
audit, remuneration and nomination committees to attend and to
be available to answer the questions at the AGM. However, the
chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committees were unable to attend the AGM held on 25
June 2021 (“2021 AGM”) due to other business engagements and
strict compliance with COVID-19 pandemic prevention and control

measures.

The Board had arranged Mr. SUN Lei, being an executive director
of the Company (the “Director”) and the chief executive officer
of the Company (“CEO”), to attend and Mr. ZHU Dong, being an
executive Director and the chief financial officer of the Company
(“CFO”) to attend and chair the 2021 AGM together with the
external independent auditor of the Company with a view to
answer and address the enquiries from attending shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”).
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THE BOARD
Overall accountability

The Directors are individually and collectively accountable to the
Sharcholders for the success and sustainable development of the
Company. The Board provides direction and approval in relation
to matters concerning the Company’s business strategies, policies
and plans, whilst the day-to-day business operations are delegated
to the executive directors (‘EDs”). The Board is accountable to the
Shareholders and in discharging its corporate accountability, every
Director is required to make decisions in the best interests of the
Shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence up to a standard in accordance
with the statutory requirements.

Board Composition

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the Company’s business. The majority of the Board members are
non-executive Directors who bring to the Board with a wide range
of professional experience in the management, finance and legal
industries, which provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

The Board composition of the Company during as at 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

%%/ ZHE

Directors/Committees

EHG
% 1 [ 3%

5 38l B 3G [R] A A 2% ) A B8 BL T < A
R R B o g R R LA E R
R AR 2 ) SEHS R~ B MO B B R B
FHEBENBRACTEE ([AITHEF])IE
HoBEREHABBRAT MRETEMER
A W5 > 4% = 7 DA SR B £ M) 4 2 40K Rt A i
PE - Sl AT A I E TR R R HE BT A 1 RE
TR~ R K B G R AT A AT

#3594l R

E G MU & A0 7 368 B % 00 E HRE
Lo ey - B G RA M B HIFRTES
ERGWREFMEN U RERTEZ
B W BEEG AT R AR
R A J1 34 -

BoE - —F T A=+ —HERHEEAFER
H» A mEE g Ay T

Audit
Committee

L E LY

Remuneration Nomination

Committee

RHERT

Committee

HMERE

e U

Independent Non-Executive Directors

QI Daqing TR B
CHEN Yigong ﬁ%l

iff 2

ERREDTES
¥ T

niTES

FENG Zhonghua

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
MA Weihua

Executive Directors

XU Peixin Rk
SUN Lei, CEO B (ITBAER)

RE(ERMBHE)

ZHU Dong, CFO

Notes:
1. C is chairman of the relevant board committees of the Company
2. M is member of the relevant board committees of the Company
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Biographical details of all the Directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors” section under this Annual Report. An updated list of
Directors identifying their roles and functions is maintained on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report, there
is no change to the composition of the Board and no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors (‘INEDs”) with Dr. QI Daqing, who is the chairman
of audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”),
and INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all INEDs to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of 2021 CG Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer of the Company (“CEO”) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Dr. MA Weihua is the
Chairman and Mr. SUN is CEO and their respective responsibilities
are clearly defined and set out in writing, in compliance with the
code provision A.2.1 of 2021 CG Code.

The Chairman is mainly responsible for an effective running of
the Board, with the support of the executive Directors and the
Company Secretary, to ensure the establishment of good corporate
governance practice and procedures, while CEO is delegated with
the authorities from the Board with the support of the Senior
Management, to manage the day-to-day business operation of the
Group.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) has
entered into service agreement or letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years. Such term is subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance

with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) as follows:

1. cach director who has been longest in office since his last re-
clection or appointment shall retire from office by rotation at

least once every three years; and

2. any director appointed by the Board, (i) to fill the causal
vacancy on the Board, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company (the “General
Meeting”) or (ii) as an addition to the Board, shall hold
office only until the next following AGM, and they shall then
be eligible for re-election at such either of General Meeting

or AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy since August 2013
which was updated in 2019 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with
an aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board that fits its own business model and specific needs in

order to enhance the quality of its performance.

In designing the composition of the Board, the Board shall consider
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity within the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board without focusing on only one single diversity

aspect,

The Board with the assistance of nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) shall review the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that it remains

appropriate and effective.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below. It may delegate the responsibilities to one
or more Board committees, which shall comply with the relevant

terms of reference with regard to their duties.

i. To set business goals and strategic plans and objectives of the
Company in the best interests of the Group and overseeing

their implementation;

ii. To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and

monitor operation and financial performance of the Group;

iii. To review the Company’s policies on corporate governance

and make recommendations to the Board;

iv. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and Senior
Management;

V. To review and monitor the internal control system and risk

management system of the Group;

vi.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual, if any, applicable to the directors and

employees of the Group;

vii. To review the Company’s compliance with the applicable

rules and regulations; and
viii. To provide insights on the Group’s culture and values.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has: (i)
reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of the Company
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (ii)
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management; (iii) reviewed
compliance of the Company with the CG Code, save for deviations
from code provision(s) as explained above; (iv) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (v) reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and its officers.
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Financial Reporting
All Directors are provided with an update on the Group’s major

business activities and key financial information on a monthly basis.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for cach financial year or period that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flows position for that year or period. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the

Directors have:

. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently with appropriate accounting standards;

. made judgments and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable; and
. prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Group’s financial statements. This responsibility extends to
annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures, as well as reports to regulators and
information required to be disclosed in a timely manner pursuant to
the relevant rules and regulations. The responsibility of the External
Auditor for the audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to 103 of this Annual Report.

Board Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held seven

meetings to review and approve the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, interim and annual results and the significant issues
and transactions and matters regarding operations of the Group.
The Chairman has held a meeting with INEDs without the presence

of other Directors during the year.

54 Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021

S 25 i o
R A A SR A S R S B
T Tl G B 55 R B0 BT A5 R

AT A A S A5 T A T ) ] R
i o 2% MBS W AR A EUE A o M
A5 [ A AT B 4 32 B T A B IR D~ S A B
Bkl RimREE_—F = —4F 12
H=+—HILFEN B HRRE > HHD

. BHGHEMWE
R i DA 5 e e

ﬁﬂ%%%@m%@%@

o MF R A B K B KR AG I

o DUSRRAAEE E QI A B K -

2 e Wl U S fim A 4 1 O R Y BUAE

ZE AT RS FE W L P s AR E A
T At B 55 4% 8% ~ 1) B A R B A A

LA R AR 5 A B A S0 8 4910 70 B T 45 6 Y
Ko SNSRI E F AN A E —F

ot T =4 Bk R BB R AR B AR A
AR 95 B2 5 103 B M S A% B HR 5

R
BHE_F_—HF+-_A=t+—HIL¥EE &
= AT LR R DU B R A v AR 4R B
R R W S UM~ P ) AR SR AR DL A
ALEBENEREIH L5 LEH - RF
P 1R A SL A S T SR S
TEFERT KRGk



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of the
Company, and AGM for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out below:
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Meeting(s) attendance/held

ik BT R

Audit Remuneration Nomination 2021 AGM
Board Committee Committee  Committee (Note 1)
R
R BAER G
Name of Directors BEHEY HHG THREE FMZEE RAZRHEE (Hit1)
Chairman and Non-Executive Director ER R E S
MA Weihua E R 177 n/aNEA n/a N n/a R 0/1
Executive Directors HhES
XU Peixin ik 27 n/aANEA n/a N n/a N 0/1
SUN Lei %& 777 /AN 0 RER na A EA 11
ZHU Dong K% 77 MR 0 REA 0 AEA 11
Independent Non-Executive Director VRV R
QI Daging LON 77 22 22 11 0/1
CHEN Yigong BT /7 22 2 11 0/1
FENG Zhonghua B 6/7 22 2 1 0/1
Note: B 5 -
1. MA Weihua, XU Peixin, QI Daqing, CHEN Yigong and FENG Zhonghua 1. HI H A 22 %5 % BF B 75 b A% 08 <7 8 28 5 iR o 25 By

were unable to attend 2021 AGM due to other business engagements and
strict compliance with COVID-19 prevention and control measures. Please
also refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Practice” above for
details.

Introduction and Continuous Professional
Development

Each newly appointed director, if any, is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Cornpany’s operations and businesses as well
as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and

regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to fully
discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. In order to allow the Directors
to understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance
issues, they are also provided with market news and regulatory

updates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, a summary of their records
of continuous development training is as below:

BHE_F_—F+_A=+—HILFEE F
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Attending webinars/
reading materials and
updates relevant to
corporate governance

hEmESa

B A B A SRR
Name of Directors HEHEEA B R 5B & B
Chairman and Non-Executive Director: EERIEPITEDS:
MA Weihua TS R \
Executive Directors: PiTE S
XU Peixin ik v
SUN Lei B v
ZHU Dong RE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors: Bor JEPATHE S
QI Daqing R B v
CHEN Yigong @%I \/
FENG Zhonghua U5 o v

Company Secretary

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to 15 May 2021,
Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Fun (“Ms. CHEUNG”) was the Company
Secretary until her resignation with effect from 1 May 2021. Ms.
CHEUNG took over 15 hours of professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.

Ms. WU Siu Ling (“Ms. WU”), who possesses the requisite
qualification and experience of a company secretary as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary and the authorised representative of the
Company, with effect from 1 May 2021 for accepting service of
process or notice in Hong Kong on its behalf under the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Ms. WU is a
fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and
The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. As at
31 December 2021, Ms. WU took over 15 hours of professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, including
audit, remuneration and nomination committees. The Board has
delegated the authorities and responsibilities to the relevant Board
committees and they shall comply with their terms of reference
in accordance with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. All the
members of the Board committees are INEDs.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. It
comprises three INEDs and is chaired by Dr. QI Daqing with two
members who are Mr. CHEN Yigong and Mr. FENG Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

set out below:

i. to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and the terms of engagement of the

external auditors;

ii. to review and monitor the independence of the external
auditor and its objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with the applicable standards. The Audit
Committee shall discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligation before the

commencement of audit;

iii. to review the engagement of an external auditor to supply

non-audit services;

iv. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual/interim reports and accounts and to review

significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

. _— . .
V. to review the Company's financial controls, risk management

and internal control systems; and

vi.  to review the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held and a summary of works is set out
below:

O reviewed the Directors’ Report, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the 2020 Annual Report and
made a recommendation to the Board for approval;

C reviewed the Company’s interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2021 and the 2021 Interim Report
and made a recommendation to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the Company’s accounting policies and its
compliance with the prevailing accounting standards of Hong
Kong and the results of the external audits;
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. reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of risk management
system, internal control system and internal audit functions,
taking into account the 2020 Enterprise Risk Assessment
Report, 2020 Internal Control Review Report and 2020
Control Remediation Follow-up Report as issued by LX
International Advisory Limited (the “Internal Auditor”),
being an independent professional firm, to assist the Senior
Management to review the risk management and internal
control system, and the letter of confirmation on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems
issued by the Senior Management;

. reviewed and monitored the compliance of the Group with
all applicable laws, regulations, standards and best practice
guidelines; and

. made a recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”) and approved the remuneration and the terms of
engagement of the External Auditor.

The Audit Committee also met in separate private sessions with the

External Auditor twice during the year.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee payable to Ernst &
Young, being the external auditor of the Company, as any entity
under common control, ownership or management with the
External Auditor or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally, in relation to audit and non-audit services is set out
below:

R %

Services
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Audit services
Non-audit services (Note 1)

Note:

1. Non-audit services for both years mainly consisted of the reviews of the
Group’s interim financial reports and the performance of certain agreed-
upon procedures, including taxation services and issuance of turnover
certificates.

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the EY
confirming that EY is independent of the Group in accordance
with the independence requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for the year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this Annual Report.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 23 March
2004. It comprises three INEDs and is chaired by Mr. FENG
Zhonghua with two members who are Dr. QI Daqing and Mr.
CHEN Yigong.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration

Committee are set out below:

i. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of remuneration of all Directors and
Senior Management and establish a formal and transparent

procedures to determine the remuneration policy;

ii. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

ili.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and Senior

Management;

iv. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive directors;

V. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and Senior Management for any loss or termination
of office;

vi.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved

in deciding his own remuneration; and
g bl

vii. to ensure the Company shall disclose details of any
remuneration payable to Senior Management by band in the

annual report.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the Senior Management on
the remuneration packages of the EDs and Senior Management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made by the

Remuneration Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee was held and a summary of works is set

out below:
. reviewed the policy for remuneration of executive Directors;
0 reviewed and approved the proposals regarding (i)

remuneration packages of executive Directors who are also
the Senior Management with reference to their background,
qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities undertook
with the Company and prevailing market conditions; and (ii)
directors’ fee of the Board members for recommendation to
the Board for approval;

. reviewed the proposal regarding grant of share awards under
the share award scheme of the Company to Dr. QI Dagqing,
Mr. SUN Lei and Mr. ZHU Dong for recommendation to the
Board for approval;

. reviewed and approved the proposal regarding the service
agreement to be entered into between the Company and
Mr. SUN Lei for a term of three years and the remuneration
package for recommendation to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 March 2006.
It comprises with three INEDs and is chaired by Mr. CHEN
Yigong, with two members who are Dr. QI Daqing and Mr. FENG
Zhonghua.

The principal duties and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

i to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate

strategy;

ii.  to review the Board Diversity Policy at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed revisions (where

required) to the Board for consideration and approval;

iii.  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board

members, and make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the criteria that
include professional knowledge and industrial experience,
personal ethics, integrity, time commitment and length of
service as set forth in the Board Diversity Policy, and whether
such candidate would facilitate or assist the development of

the existing or future business of the Company;
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iv.  to assess the independence of INEDs; and

V. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and CEO.

The nomination procedure and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year are set out in point iii set out above.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held and a summary of works is set out

below:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board;

. reviewed and discussed the proposal regarding the retirement

and re-appointment of the Directors by rotation at 2021 AGM
and the letters of consent for re-election received from the
retiring Directors for recommendation to the Board approval;

and

. reviewed and assessed the independence of INEDs for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and considered that all INEDs
were independent and recommended the assessment to the

Board for review.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has formulated risk management and internal
control systems to provide standard guidelines for identification,
assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of all materials
risks of the Company, which shall be reported to the Senior
Management, the Audit Committee and the Board when necessary.

The Company has established appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure a comprehensive, accurate and timely record
of accounting and management information. It also conducts a
regular review to ensure the financial statement is prepared in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and applicable

laws and regulations.

The Board acknowledge its responsibility for regulating and
maintaining sound and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and review their efficiency through
the Audit Committee with the assistance of the Senior Management
and the Internal Auditor, and the extent of the risks the Company is
willing to take. Such systems aim to manage, rather than climinate,
risk arising from the failure in achieving the business objectives, and
they can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against

material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework is based on a “Three

Lines of Defence” model with a systematic approach and clearly

defined roles and responsibilities of relevant parties:

1st Line of Defence

e - LES

o g B P HE SR
A A ] Y JE g A S R T = Bl AR )
Ao SR R HAE A 7 A0 B Al SR E AR BN £
(PSRN E R

Risk ownership

Vi B B .

2nd Line of Defence

Ci

Risk Owners

Jal B £ 5%\

identifying existing controls relating to the risks in their areas

and evaluating the adequacy of the control;

designing risk responses (i.c. actions to improve or optimise U

controls or mitigate risks identified during the risk assessment

process) for risks without adequate control to mitigate risks to

the acceptable risk tolerance level;

implementing the risk responses for which they are responsible ¢

for;

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of risk responses for ¢

which they are responsible for updating the Risk Management

Task Force at least semi-annually on the status of their risk

responses implementation.
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Risk management

Jo B 4 B .

Risk reporting
Jl, i W it .

Risk Management Task Force

J g A L R

providing support to the Senior Management during the .

process of design, implementation and monitoring of the risk

management and internal control systems, and ensuring that it is

consistently applied across the Group;

maintaining and updating the risk register;

providing the risk owners with the methodology for conducting

the risk and control monitoring activities, providing direction

and training on how to complete the risk response plans and

other risk reports; and

overseeing activities performed by risk owners, obtaining and ¢

reviewing work prepared by the risk owners.

Senior Management

A RERT s HEAT R s R By TR I R
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monitoring risk management process and developing relevant .

responses to risks;

certifying that they operate an effective system of risk .

management and have undertaken an exercise to identify and

assess significant risks faced by the Group;

reporting to the Audit Committee on the progress and status of

the risk management process; and

reviewing the risk register and reporting the effectiveness of .

risk management systems to the Audit Committee and the Board

annually.

62 Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021

L o TR I T L A I
[ hES
BEGEETHEANEREERL
i B BT AR LA SR A T4 A 4 18 i
TN o

I 5 % %% B T 450 B i LR 1) o
FE R A5 K

FHER LM TN EGER
R o TR R A B



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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2nd Line of Defence
BRI
Risk oversight Audit Committee EVERE
Jil By B 4% . overseeing the Group ’s overall risk management framework and ¢ B A A [ R e A TR 2 I
to advise the Board on the Group’s risk-related matters; A S 18 JE B A R ) S R
e
. approving the Group ’s risk policies and acceptable risk 0 L A 42 18] 1Y L B 1B T ] B 7 L B
tolerances level; EZIKFE S
. reviewing risk reports and the breaches of risk tolerances level ¢ 2 A B s DA B AR B R 37 KT
and policies; and MBS s &
. reviewing and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s D AR B A A 4 R B Eﬁj’g/ i
risk control/mitigation tools including the enterprise risk BT EL A A B A A S B B
management programme, the risk management systems, the # JEl B A T R AR BB A B
internal audit function relating to risk management and the ) 7R 2 42 T R B AR 4 T Y E B 3
Group’s contingency plans annually.
3rd Line of Defence
BB
Independent assurance  Internal Audit Function REE:3A {3
B r . outsourced to the Internal Auditor; 0 SNEN T IR A
. carrying out the audit plan, assessing and analysing if the 0 AT B FRAG S o i B A Bk
controls stated in the risk register is sufficient and effective; and 1 T 31 5 42 AR 5 A R R
. supporting the Board through the Audit Committee in reviewing BREGEAGIREFGRAALE
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system.
Risk Management Process IR 5 & PEFE 7
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Steps
55

Actions to be taken

BESR I 17 B

Step 1 - Risk Identification

B — AR

Step 2 — Risk Assessment
and Prioritisation

8% — b A R
5] B Ui )

Step 3 — Risk Owner
Appointment

RS -ZEEBAREA

Step 4 — Risk Responses

95 — o B M 4 i

Risks identified should include all risks whether or not they are under
the direct control of the Company. They can be identified from a
number of sources including a review of the strategic plans to identify
new risks and existing and standard risk areas. Risks to be identified
includes external risks, strategic risks and preventable risks.

To prioritise the risks identified in Step 1 in a logical manner based on
the impact and likelihood of the occurrence of the identified risks.

Risk owners will be appointed to all identified risks. The risk owners
are responsible for ensuring that an analysis over the causes and
consequences of the risk is conducted and an appropriate risk response

is in place to manage the main causes and consequences.

Risk owners design the cost-effective and efficient risk response plans
based on the Group’s risks appetite and nature of each risk category
which can enable the Group to prevent, adapt and anticipate risks that
would impact the business strategy.

Step 5 — Upward Reporting Risk owners shall report timely the identified risks and relevant risk

and Monitoring

responses to the Senior Management, the Audit Committee and the
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BhE- ﬁtﬁﬁﬁi&%ﬂ% Board, if necessary.

Enterprise Risk Management Assessment

The Company has conducted an enterprise risk management
(“ERM”) assessment for the year ended 31 December 2021 through
the Internal Auditor, based on the Group’s risk management
framework to assess the risks relevant to the business of the Group.

2020 Enterprise Risk Assessment Report and Control Remediations
Follow-up Report were issued by the Internal Auditors, to the
Board (i) addressing the enterprise risk assessment results; and (ii)
current status of action plans of remediation addressing the findings
and was reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Internal Control System

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board and the Audit
Committee have decided to outsource the review of the internal
control system to the Internal Auditor in considering the structure,
complexity and size of the Group. The Board has delegated to Senior
Management with the authority to the design, implementation and
monitoring of the internal control system as well as the review of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls procedures.
The Board shall review the need for establishing an internal audit
function within the Group annually.
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Control Environment

The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity
are clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct (as defined
below) and staff handbook, as well as the policies and procedures
manuals which set out the rules and policies, for the Directors
and employees of the Group to follow. These cover all aspects of
administrative and operational activities, including relationships
with customers, suppliers, competitors and fellow staffs. The
internal control system covers every activity and transaction of the
Group. The system is based on clear stewardship responsibilities,
authorities and accountability. Our employees are an important
part of our internal control system and the Group expects them
to contribute to that system. In addition to setting our guidelines,
principles and values, the Group recognises that an environment
where employees feel free to report problems to the management

is also necessary to make our internal control system successful.

Internal Control System Assessment

The Internal Auditor has issued Internal Control Review Report
to the Board (i) to address identification of internal control
deficiencies and weaknesses and propose recommendations for
remediation within the timeframe; (ii) to discuss the findings and
control deficiencies with the Senior Management or the responsible
staff member, who is responsible to rectify the deficiencies within
the reasonable period; and (iii) to perform a review of the follow-

up actions to ensure the implementation of the action plan.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
through the Audit Committee, Senior Management, and Internal
Auditor. As at 31 December 2021, the Company has adopted the
policies and procedures, including (i) Risk Management Manual, (ii)
Code of Conduct, (iii) Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
(iv) Reporting Policy on Connected/Continuing Connected
Transactions and Notifiable Transactions, (v) Whistleblowing Policy,
(vi) Climate Change Policy, (vii) Community Investment Policy,
and (viii) Sustainable Supply Chain Policy and all these policies are
applicable to the members of the Group.

The Board has received a letter of confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and is satisfied that such systems were
still effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2021.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Shareholders

were identified.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. In response to specific enquiries made by
the Company to all Directors and they confirmed that they have
complied with the Securities Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

Inside information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group
has been implementing the proper internal control procedures
including written pre-clearance from the designated director prior
to any dealing in the Company’s securities by the Director in
accordance with the Security Code, the Directors and the relevant
employees being subject to the blackout period prior to the release
of the Company’s financial results, identification of project by code
name and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on
a need-to-know basis to guard against the possible mishandling of
inside information which may constitute inside dealing or breach of

any other statutory obligations.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with Sharcholders
is essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the Group’s
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Sharcholders
and investment community may, at any time, direct enquiries in

respect of the Company to the Board by sending to:

Address:  6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2165 3000

Email: cosec(@bison.com.hk

Information Disclosure on Corporate Website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all stakeholders on a timely basis. The
Company maintains a corporate website (www.bison.com.hk)
where important corporate information and other relevant
financial and non-financial information such as annual reports and
interim reports, notices and announcements, circulars and other
information are available for review by Sharcholders and other
stakeholders.
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General Meetings

The Company’s AGM and special general meeting (“SGM”) provide
a useful platform for direct communication between the Board and
Shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each substantial

separate issue at the General Meeting.

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Company would arrange
for the notice to Sharecholders to be sent in the case of AGMs at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at
least 10 clear business days before in the case of all other General

Meetings.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, all Shareholders have 21
clear days’ notice of the AGM and SGM for the passing of a special
resolution, and 14 clear daysy notice of all other General Meetings
at which the Directors and Board committee chairmen or members
are available to answer their questions. A representative (usually the
engagement partner) of the External Auditor also attends the AGM
and will answer questions from Shareholders relating to their audit

of the Company’s financial statements.

The 2021 AGM was held on 25 June 2021. The poll results of the
2021 AGM were published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the same day.

Voting by Poll

Resolutions put to vote at the General Meeting (other than on
procedural and administrative matters) are taken by poll. The
results of any voting by poll are announced and published as soon
as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before the
earlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or any
pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting, on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders’ Rights

A summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirement
under Paragraph O of 2021 CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules is set out below:

Convening of SGM on requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Sharcholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at General Meetings shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board to convene a SGM for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The request must be
in written form with the purpose of the meeting stated therein,
duly signed by the Shareholders concerned and deposited at our
principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the confirmation by the
Company’s share registrars that the request is valid, the Company
Secretary will arrange to convene a SGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders.

Procedures for pu tting forward proposals at
General Mcctings by Shareholders

Sharcholders holding not less than one-tenth of the total voting
rights of those Sharcholders having the right to vote at the General
Meeting may submit a written request to move a resolution at the
General Meetings. The procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meetings is available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through (852) 2165 3000 or e-mail at
cosec@bison.com.hk or directly by questions at AGM or SGM.
Questions on the procedure for convening or putting forward
proposals at AGM or SGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary through the same means.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company,
the Board may from time to time declare dividends as appear to the
Board to be justified by the profits of the Company in any currency
and amount to be paid to the Shareholders. Any dividend for a
financial year shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval.

The Board may from time to time pay to the Sharcholders interim
dividends or special dividends as appear to the Board to be justified
by the profits of the Company.

68 Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021

i 51 HE A

MR CE SR B8k + P pr ik — % = — 4
A JEE A ST I8 O BeIH R 11 R ) 5% 5 B E ZH
1 45 B B4 BB T HE A E ZE A

M TR R A B IR FF A

WIEANE Z A FIAMA AR TR 2B KH
WA A D A S R IUE AR (B A 8 B3R
K RPMEF]) +5 2 — BB - H HEBE 15
iR ) e B R E R BB R AR R K
> DLRE A B B K HE B B AT Ao FIH o BIOK
HUEmERES S KeZ BN BHE
MR IE X B R AR AW A S
SEHE > SRR AN B F R o AR IR B AR
w3 PR R R T RR RS B OR A AR > A
b 351 2 BE 3 BRI AR R R & > W ARIE A A
F) 20N w4 R Bk e BEOR A T A R
JE 00 48 0 3 ) D o

JR AR R B L 18 22 i 0 72 )7

FRA S CROR & LA B HE 2 O 2 A
FEREARDI 0 2 — WBOR AT R 38 E T R oK
TR A B R & E B — TP ek R o i BOR
KRB 1R Bk 5 MR PP A A AS 28 7 A ol A B o

1i] 3 FF 6 )R A ] B FE

WA )R A A B (852) 2165
30001, & ﬁcosec@bison.com.hk%ﬁ #& N\ b
o B 0 IR AR R SR R AR R R &
R EER o A BA S BA RO AR R g SRR A
Regain g bk 2B E I8 L
Fugy K m AR R EHR S -

Jie B B3R

RETREERRARRZ A A HE
B A R A AR O R AR AR A S 2 1
DU A e A DA A AT 6 M A < 8 1) B SROUR %
8 S o AT ] b BB A JE ) RS 180 2 A TR SR oA
IR

A R AR A LR AR A S
A DU AN IR ) BBESRIR A e S B R B A
E o

RN



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition to cash, dividends may be satisfied wholly or in part by
the distribution of specific assets of any kind and in particular of
paid-up shares credited as fully paid up, debentures or warrants to
subscribe securities of the Company or any other company, or in
any one or more of such ways, with or without offering any rights
to the Sharcholders to elect to receive such dividend in cash. In
case of dividends to be satisfied wholly or in part in the form of
an allotment of shares credited as fully paid up, the Shareholders
entitled thereto will be entitled to elect to receive such dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
amount and form of any dividend in any financial year/period, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

. financial results of the Group

. Shareholders’ interests

. the current and future operations and future prospect of the
Group

. the current and future capital and investment requirements of
the Group

. any other factors that the Board may deem relevant

There can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or

declared in any given financial year.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no change in

the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”) is pleased to present this
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the

Environmental,

“Report”).

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules of Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and cover the period from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”) unless otherwise
specified.

During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged
in (a) provision of financial services with the licenses to carry
out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities),
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) (collectively the

Business”) and (b) provision of media sales, design services and

“ps . .
Financial Services

production of advertisements for transit vehicles exteriors (the
“BUS-BODY Advertising”) and interiors (the “BUS-INTERIOR
Advertising”), and the provision of integrated marketing services
covering these advertising platforms in Hong Kong (collectively
the “Media Business”). As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 26 October 2021, the Group has ceased to engage
in the provision of BUS-BODY Advertising and BUS-INTERIOR

Advertising services with effect from 1 November 2021.

This Report sets out the ESG management approach and strategy of
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the ESG
policies, initiatives and performance of the Group covering our
major business operations in Hong Kong, including the Financial
Services Business and the Media Business. Unless otherwise

specified, the scope of this Report remains the same as the last year.
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This Report has been reviewed and approved by the Board and
the preparation of this Report is strictly adhered to the following
reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
Consistency”. We have appointed ROMA Risk Advisory Limited,
being an independent ESG consultant (the “ESG Consultant”), to
facilitate our ESG data collection and analysis, as well as provision
of strategic advices on the development of our ESG practices in the

future:
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Materiality FHEP

Quantitative & fb

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out the
stakeholders engagement activities through a survey on the
review of material ESG topics to the stakeholders of the
Group. The results of this survey is summarized under sub-
section headed “Materiality Assessment” on pages 75 to 76.
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We disclose in this Report, the standards and
methodologies used in the calculation of relevant data, as
well as the applicable assumptions. The key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) are supplemented by explanatory notes

to establish benchmarks where feasible.
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Consistency — P

Balance F

This Report has been prepared in accordance with
the consistent methodologies for calculation of KPIs,
standards and reporting scope as compared to the previous
year, unless otherwise specified with the explanations
for the change of scope of disclosure and calculation

methodologies.
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This Report provides an unbiased overview of ESG
performance of the Group with our achievement and areas
of improvements in material ESG aspects.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Environmental Initiatives and Awards

. Donation made to Greeners Action for Mooncake Boxes
Recycling Programme 2021

. Participation in United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals — Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme (GOALS) and
Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling Scheme organized
by World Green Organization (“WGO”)

. Participation in Earth Hour 2021 organized by World Wildlife
Fund Hong Kong

. Participation in No Air Con Night 2021 organized by Green
Sense

Social Initiatives and Awards

. Sponsorship for Everyone Volunteers organized by Agency for
Volunteer Service

. Sponsorship for The 9th Hong Kong Volunteer Award
organized by Agency for Volunteer Service

. Sponsorship for Mid-Autum Charity Sales organized by Orbis
Hong Kong

. Sponsorship for Autism Awareness Week 2021 organized by
Heep Hong Society

. Participation in The 2021 Community Chest Dress Casual
Day organized by The Community Chest of Hong Kong

. Participation in Orbis World Sight Day 2021 organized by
Orbis Hong Kong

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has the overall responsibility of the ESG management of
the Group including the identification of ESG-related goals, targets
and risks, review of the ESG performance with the support from
ESG working group of the Company (the “ESG Working Group”)
which has been established during the Reporting Period, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
the designated members of the Group (including human resources
team, IT team, compliance team and other business teams) and ESG
Consultant.

The implementation and reporting of ESG initiatives, goals and
targets of the Group are carried out by the ESG Working Group
with approval by the Board. During the Reporting Period, the ESG
governance structure was enhanced by establishment of the ESG
Working Group and the adoption of (i) terms of reference of ESG
Work Group setting out the objectives, duties and responsibilities;
(ii) Climate Change Policy; (iii) Community Investment Policy; and
(iv) Sustainable Supply Chain Policy, in accordance with Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules. ESG Working Group comprises three
members and is chaired by one executive director of the Company
with two members including the Company Secretary and personnel
manager of the Group.
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To facilitate the decision-making process, ESG Working Group is
delegated with the following major duties and responsibilities by
the Board to support the fulfilment of the ESG objectives:

1. To make recommendation to the Board on the process
to identify the material ESG-related issues of the Group
including the risks to the Group’s business and to set the
ESG-related goals and targets in order to align with the goals
of long-term development of the Group;

2. To develop and implement the ESG-related strategies,
frameworks and policies of the Group and report to the Board
on the progress and effectiveness of implementation; and

3. To review and make recommendation to the Board on the
preparation and disclosures of the ESG report of the Company
in accordance with the internal policies and guidelines of the
Group, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The structure of our ESG governance is set out below:
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT F iy & 2 Bl

The Group’s stakeholders include among others, the Board and AEFENFOEEFEE AEBERET R
senior management of the Group, our shareholders and investors, EHREEAE BRRLKBEE -EF -EA-

clients, employees, suppliers, government authorities and regulators ﬁ-& JE T~ B }T{T M B T B M RE DL S AT I R
and community groups. &,

Stakeholders Communication Channels

Fr#& i PR 0E

The Board and senior management . Training and seminars
HRGREREMAE Bl Kbk ) g
. Regular meetings

8k

Shareholders and investors . General meetings
JBER B 38 JBE K €
O Annual/interim reports
G PR
. Announcements and circulars
85 B BR
. Company website

NGIE b

Clients . Company website
®FE > v HE i
. Feedback and complaints
A8 B AR R
M Face to face meetings

T 5 1 %

Employees . Training and seminars
=] B9l K b w e
. Performance appraisal meetings
BT W R
. Employee activities
B Ti58
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We strongly believe that an effective communication with our
stakeholders is essential to create a long-term value to them and to
facilitate the Board to have better understanding of their concerns
on the material ESG-related issues.

During the Reporting Period, ESG Working Group with the
assistance of ESG Consultant, has identified 16 material ESG-
related topics and invited our internal stakeholders, i.e. senior
management and employees, to participate a survey to evaluate the
materiality of the identified ESG-related topics based on the area of
impact towards the Group’s business operation. Based on the results
of the survey, the Group prioritized and identified the material
ESG-related topics and develop our ESG framework of this Report
and ESG management strategies to address our stakeholders’
concerns on the ESG-related issues in the future. Our approaches
to the materiality assessment are set out below:

/

Identification of potential
ESG-related topics
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* invite our stakeholders to participate

¢ establish a list of material
ESG-related topics and identify
the key stakeholder groups
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a survey to evaluate the materiality of
the identified ESG-related topics
based on the area of impacts towards
the Group's business operation
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* The Board reviewed the materiality

Validation

assessment matrix to develop man-
agement strategies of the Group to
address our stakeholders' concerns
on the ESG-related issues
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We formulated a materiality assessment matrix showing our FAM C i 2 B FEAG B R B
stakeholders’ concerns on 16 material ESG-related topics identified 16 E 3k Bl A9 R BR 35 - 4 & KB 16 40 B ok

as set out below:

»
|

&l

Higher Importance
G

FELY BRI DL AR

Materiality Matrix

B R

B R E R

Importance to Stakeholders

Lower Importance
Ee g i

»
»

Low Importance Signiﬁcance to Business Higher Importance

RV

Our Environmental F&AM i 3R55

| Emissions
ki 3587

2 Energy efficiency
RBUR R A

3 Waste management

JEE S A B

Our Operation &AM

Supply chain management
3 S A B

Customer services

% 5 IR

Service quality control
5 B i e

Protection of intellectual properties
R e e

Privacy protection
NS

Anti-corruption

R BTG

Whistle-blowing mechanism
S

Anti-money laundering

IS8
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Employment practices
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Occupational health and safety
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Talent training management and courses
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Prevention of child labour and forced labour
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Corporate social responsibility
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Based on the materiality assessment matrix, we identified 7
ESG-related topics which are significant to the Group’s business
operation and our stakeholders, including the (1) protection
of intellectual properties; (2) customer services; (3) privacy
protection; (4) corporate social responsibility; (5) anti-money
laundering; (6) whistle-blowing mechanism; and (7) talent training
management and courses.

OUR OPERATION
Customer Service

We take pride in the development of our excellent customer
relationships and value the reputation we have received of being
a trustworthy, caring and professional financial services company.
The Group has established the standard operating procedures of
the Financial Services Business and Media Business to ensure the
quality of the services. The Group recognizes the importance on the
customers’ feedbacks and needs which could enhance the corporate
brand connection and the overall customer experiences. We actively
collect the customers’ feedbacks through ongoing communication
and if the Group has received any complaints from our customers,
such complaints are handled within 24 hours upon receipt. During
the Reporting Period, no products or service related compliant was
received or products recalled due to the health and safety reasons

(2020: Nil).

It is our belief that the integration of ESG analysis in our
investment process can help us to identify business models that are
mostly likely to thrive in the long-term and generate sustainable
returns. The Group considers the business integrity and compliance
with internal policies and guidelines of the Group, all applicable
laws and regulations including among others, Internal Control
and Compliance Manual, Company Policy Manual (Anti-Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing), SFO, Code of Conduct for
Persons Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and Futures
Commission and Product Codes and the Fund Manager Code of
Conduct, as fundamental expectations to our employees of the
Financial Services Business during all working process.

The Group has established the Internal Control and Compliance
Manual, which outlines the standards and principles applicable to our
employees for provision of all product details and terms of service to
our customers in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
The Group has zero tolerance for corruption and money laundering,
All employees are strictly complied with the code of conduct of the
Company (the “Code of Conduct’)and they shall report promptly
to the Company Secretary or audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”), the suspected misconducts, malpractices or
irregularities relating to financial reporting, internal control and other
matters within the Group in accordance with the whistleblowing
policy. The Company Secretary shall be appointed to manage such
report from the whistle-blower and if necessary, an investigator from
the outsourced internal auditors shall be appointed to look into the
matter and any possible criminal activity will be referred to the Audit
Committee in consultation with the legal advisers to determine further
action, i.e. report to the relevant authorities. A final report with
recommendation of changes will be provided to the Board by the Audit

Committee, if necessary.
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Our employees who are the licensed persons (as defined under
SFO) are required to attend the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter Terrorist Financing e-learning courses during the
Reporting Period. The trainings aim to keep the licensed persons
abreast of the latest compliance trends and practices in the Financial
Business and enrich their professional skills and knowledges in
their roles and responsibilities regarding anti-corruption and
business ethics matters. We have appointed a compliance officer for
two licensed corporations who is mainly responsible on ongoing
monitoring the suspicious activities and the compliance obligations
of these licensed corporations in accordance with SFO. If and when
necessary, we shall fully cooperate with enquiries or requests from
the government authorities.

During the Reporting Period, prior to the cessation of the Media
Business, we provided the high-quality advertising services to our
customers and adhered to the comprehensive operating procedures
and has complied with the applicable laws and regulations including
among others, Trade Descriptions Ordinances, for the production
of advertisements.

In our daily business operation, we observe the importance on
the protection of intellectual property rights, through patents,
trademarks and copyrights. Our IT team has obtained all the
necessary licenses for the purchase of software and information
during our business operation.

The Group strives to protect the data privacy of our employees,
customers, and business partners, and is strictly compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations, i.e. Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (“PDPO”) and certain guidelines issued by the Officer
of the Privacy Commissioners on the compliance with requirements
under PDPO. The information of our customers is confidential and
handled by our employees with due care to avoid any data leakage
and misuse in accordance with the data privacy protection measures
and the Group shall regularly review the effectiveness of these
measures. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident nor
substantiated complaint concerning breaches of customer privacy
or losses of customer data (2020: Nil).

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering,
intellectual property rights and privacy leakage which have
significant impact on the Group nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees (2020: Nil).
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Supply Chain Management

During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted a
sustainable supply chain policy (the “Sustainable Supply Chain
Policy”) applicable to all the members of the Group, with an
objective to manage the environmental and social impacts in our
supply chain, including the procurement of products and services.
The list of suppliers shall be reviewed annually based on the
following major principles as set out in the Sustainable Supply

Chain Policy and Code of Conduct:

1. to achieve the ethical standards for the business operations;

2. to pursue the human and labour rights;

3. to follow the practices to conserve natural resources;

4. for impartial selection of capable and responsible suppliers

and contractors;
5. to maximise use of competition; and

6. to adopt the effective monitor system and management
controls to detect and prevent bribery, fraud or other
malpractices in the processes of procurement and tendering.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged a total of 209
suppliers, among which 206 are located in Hong Kong, 2 in the
United States of America, and 1 in Ireland (2020: 138 suppliers,
mainly located in Hong Kong). All such 209 suppliers are subject to
the Sustainable Supply Chain Policy.

We mainly sourced our materials, products and services from the
local suppliers which can minimise the carbon emission and support
the development of local economy and community. In addition,
the Group purchased with priority those office equipments with
energy efficiency label and stationery using environmental-friendly
packaging with certified labels. The Group shall regularly review
the effectiveness of the Sustainable Supply Chain Policy.
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OUR EMPLOYEES

We take pride in treating our employees with respect, fairness and
care. The Group has established policies and procedures to cultivate
our employees’ skills, realise their potentials and uphold a healthy
and safe working environment with equal opportunities.

People

We have established an Equal Employment Opportunity Policy
which applies across all the employees of the Group and is reviewed
regularly when necessary. It is strictly followed to ensure each
employee within the Group is treated with equality and fairly
under all circumstances. This policy promotes equal employment
opportunities where employment, recruitment, training, terms of
employment, benefits and promotions are offered to each employee
regardless of his/her race, sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability
or family status.

During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest period, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare, including among others, the
Employment Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Sex Discrimination Ordinance,
Disability Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination
and Race Discrimination Ordinance.

The Board recognises that employees are important and valuable
assets to the Group. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 40
full-time employees in Hong Kong (2020: 103 full-time employees
in Hong Kong).

Statistic of workforce
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Following the cessation of Media Business on 1 November 2021,
the Group is recommended to the optimum size to meet the
expectation of and responsibilities to our sharcholders. All the
employees of the Media Business have been made redundant in
accordance with the relevant laws. The Media Business has been
facing the significant challenges as a results of the COVID-19
pandemic since 2020. Accordingly, the overall employee turnover
rate in Hong Kong, net of replacement and recruitment, during the
Reporting Period was approximately 61.2% (2020: 19.5%).

Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group and
Gender
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employees as at the beginning of the Reporting Period minus number of
employees as at the end of the Reporting Period over number of employees

as at the beginning of the Reporting Period.

The Group has continued to explore various ways to lower the
employee turnover rate, by enhancing employee benefits and
strengthening ongoing communication with our employees.

Pursuant to the policy and manual in force and in compliance
with the Employment of Children Regulations made under the
Employment Ordinance, the use of child or forced labour are
strictly prohibited within the Group. During the recruitment
process, we conducted the employee background check by
inspecting the employee’s identification documents prior to
offering of the employment contract. An employment contract
specifies the agreement between the Group and its employees
on the working conditions including among others, their normal
working hours and overtime work arrangement. Subject to the Staff
Handbook, a compensation leave will be granted to an employee for
overtime work. If there is any suspected infringement, the Group
will conduct an investigation and terminate the employment of the
person where necessary. Such policy and practices will be reviewed
regularly by the human resource team to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations
relating to child and forced labour, including but not limited to the
Employment of Children Regulations and the Employment of Young
Persons (Industry) Regulations under the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, no case of child or
forced labour has been discovered under the Group (2020: Nil)
and there was no report of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to child and forced labour related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the Group.
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Keeping Our People Healthy and Safe
Occupational Health and Safety

Although our business nature does not expose our employees
to significant safety hazards, we are committed to ensuring our
employees’ health and safety as they are integral to our smooth
operation. The Group has included a health, safety and environment
section in the Staff Handbook to ensure all occupational, health and
safety procedures and regulations, including the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance and Employeesy Compensation Ordinance,
are clearly communicated and properly met at all levels. We provide
ergonomic office equipment and conduct regular maintenance and
cleaning for water dispensers, the air-conditioning system and the
carpet to ensure the health of our employees. We have also arranged
employees’ compensation insurance coverage and medical insurance
for our employees. Such measures are subject to regular review by
the Group’s management and are adjusted to reflect any influencing
internal and external factors as and when necessary.

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group is highly
concerned with the potential health and safety impacts brought to
our employees and other stakeholders. Having prioritised the health
and safety of our employees, customers and every community
member as top priority, we immediately implement all necessary
precaution measures. In addition to performing intensified cleaning
and disinfection works at our offices, we have also implemented the
following precautions to keep our employees safe:

. implementing flexible working arrangements including work
from home and work shift arrangements;

. conducting mandatory body temperature checks before
entering our offices;

. ensuring sufficient disinfection supplies like face masks and
hand sanitisers in our offices; and

. using online video conferencing tools and other technologies
to avoid non-compulsory face-to-face contacts.

There were no work-related fatalities occurred in the past three
years including the Reporting Period, nor there were any lost days
due to work injury (2020: Nil). During the Reporting Period,
there was no report of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, i.e. Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, that would have a significant impact on the
Group (2020: Nil).

Sexual Harassment

We provide a working environment for all our employees free from
harassment with an equal opportunity and treatment in accordance
with our Sexual Harassment Policy and the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance. In case of complaint or report of workplace harassment,
the human resource team of the Group will initiate investigations
and conduct follow-up actions, if any, in strict confidence.
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Keeping Our People Happy
Compensation and Benefits

We take care of our employees by ensuring that our employees
can achieve a work-life balance. Our employees are entitled to the
statutory holiday, annual leave, compensation leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, sick leave and COVID-19 vaccination leave, etc.
During some special occasions such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter
Solstice, Christmas Eve and Chinese New Year Eve, our employees
are allowed to leave work earlier to celebrate with their families

and friends.

Remuneration

We have established a systematic payroll process that allows
employees to receive salary payment in a timely manner. The Group
offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration and benefits
package to its employees. The Group also offers a performance
bonus scheme to its senior employees based on achievement of
business objectives and individual performance. Competitive sales
commission schemes are also set up for the sales teams of the
Financial Services Business based on achievement of targets of the
revenue targets. The Group has adopted a mandatory provident
fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Such scheme
enables our employees to make their own investment choices and
directly benefit from the funds after retirement.

To increase employee involvement and incentive, we have adopted
the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme since 2018,
providing our employees with incentives to strive for the long-term
growth of the Group and aligning their interests directly with our
sharcholders through ownership of Shares.

Development and Training

Nurturing and retaining talents are vital to maintain the Group’s
competitiveness and productivity. We provide our employees with a
good career prospect and opportunity for personal development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has:

C organised certain internal training courses for the licensed
persons as registered with the Securities and Futures
Commission relating to Anti-Money Laundering & Counter-
Financing of Terrorism, Anti-corruption (Bribery, Extortion
and Money Laundering), and the relevant regulatory
requirements relating to compliance with notification

requirement;

U organised other internal training courses to directors, our
senior management and managers of the Group based on the
needs of their roles and responsibilities; and

O provided external training courses, i.e. ESG seminar and anti-
corruption training to directors and senior management of

the Group, organised by third-party consultants.
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To encourage our employees to further enrich their knowledge and
skills, the Group provides subsidies to our employees for attending
training courses and certified professional seminars. Our employees
were also entitled to paid examination leave on examination date.

During the Reporting Period, 33 employees, who have received 298
training hours in total through attending both internal and external
training courses (2020: 130 hours in total), with a breakdown by
gender and employee category as follows:

Employee Training Information by Gender and
Bmﬂ@weﬁn%mqf

7y S R B — 2 R Ok B Re > A SR
W 2% R B 22 0BG B AR % A R R B
ot & 1 A G o R B R TR Bt H O A A
% ol -

T A 3344 M BB R 2 i ER & AN
Bl AR & LR 2 T 2o/ NRFRY BRI (= F
FTAE  F IR0/ IE) o FR R R AR B R B
BT AN

;‘5'/5?}}'”}2 1 & 3 5 2] 7 19 1 B 5 il &

Total number of employees receiving training

2 B0 8 B 11 29

Percentage of employees receiving training' IR B | 4 H 27.50% 55.00%
Average number of training hours completed B2 8 B 58 B -2 55 31 K5 5L
per employee 6.23 10.43

Total number of employees receiving R BN E B 488

training 3 21 9
Percentage of employees receiving | ORI =NER A

training1 7.50% 52.50% 22.50%
Average number of training hours B4 18 B 2T

completed per employee i IR g 4.67 12.52 2.33

Note:

1. The percentage of employees of the Group receiving training is calculated
based on total number of employees receiving training by gender or
employee category during the Reporting Period over total number of

employees as at the end of the Reporting Period.

A significant increase of such training hours from approximately
130 hours in 2020 to approximately 298 hours during the
Reporting Period was mainly due to the promotion and
encouragement of the Group to engage our employees to
participate the training courses on the continued development of
their professional skills and knowledge.
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OUR COMMUNITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is important to us and we
make every endeavour to provide resources to the underprivileged
within our community through continuous support to various
activities organised by NGOs and charities. To cater the specific
needs of the local community, the Group has formulated the
Community Investment Policy to understand the needs of the
community, identify the focus areas and allocate appropriate

resources to cmpower the community.

As certain community contributions were made through our Media
Business which was discontinued since November 2021, the Group
therefore considers the number of activities participated by it would
represent the Group’s commitment to the community in a more
meaningful way, as opposed to disclosing the amount of monetary
or time contribution due to the nature of community contributions
made by our Group through different business units. Focusing on
contributing to the needs of the community, the Group participated
in ten social-related initiatives/activities in 2021, including
Mooncake Boxes Recycling Programme 2021, No Air Con Night
2021 and The 2021 Community Chest Dress Casual Day. Our Media
Business also, through sponsorship for advertisement placement of
their event on the bus body, sponsored Everyone Volunteers, and on
the Group’s social networking platform, sponsored The 9th Hong
Kong Volunteer Award, Autism Awareness Week 2021, Mid-Autumn
Charity Sales, Orbis World Sight Day 2021, Earth Hour 2021 and
participation in Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme (GOALS)
and Eco-Healthy Workplace Award Lebelling Scheme.

The Company has been awarded “20 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo 2021/227 by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of its continued commitment in caring for the

community, the employees and the environment.

/ T
caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
ERL G RGBS RE

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and community where it operates the business.
The Group has integrated environmental consideration into our
decision-making process and embraced the responsibilities to
create an environmentally sustainable business. Considering the
Group’s business nature, we have taken measures to facilitate the
environmental-friendliness of our workplace by encouraging a
recycling culture within the Group. To enhance our environmental
governance practice and mitigate the environmental impacts
produced by our operations, we have implemented relevant
environmental protection policies, such as the environmental
section in the Staff Handbook and Green Office & Eco Healthy
Workplace Best Practice, and communicated such policies to our
employees clearly.
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During the Reporting Period, there was no report of non-
compliance with the relevant local environmental laws and
regulations, i.e. Air Pollution Control Ordinance, the Waste
Disposal Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance and Noise
Control Ordinance that would have a significant impact on the
Group (2020: Nil).

Emissions and Waste
Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s greenhouse gas (‘GHG”)
emissions primarily came from the direct GHG emissions resulting
from the consumption of petrol and diesel by company vehicles
and the use of refrigerants (Scope 1), as well as the energy indirect
GHG emissions from purchased electricity (Scope 2) given that
the main business operations of the Group are Financial Services
Business and the Media Business. There is no other direct emission
of GHG, air pollutant and other discharges into water and land.

The Group considered that the additional disclosure of intensity on
GHG emission of 1,000 sq. ft. lettable areas during the Reporting
Period is necessary to the meaningful comparison due to the
number of employees was significantly reduced resulting from the
redundant of all the employees of the Media Business in November
2021 as compared to the corresponding period in 2020. During
the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions intensity decreased by
approximately 21.20% from approximately 0.52 tCO,e/1,000
sq.ft. in 2020 to approximately 0.41 tCO,e/ 1,000 sq.ft. A summary
of GHG emissions performance during the Reporting Period as set
out below:

R 2 00 7 0 4 A7 I A R
SR R (H 8 5005 B e )~
I )~ OK T e 0 (R
8 W ) ) T A 9 e K R TR
(BRI ) -

S U

PE T B B T W

HKY

TR A A A SR B SRS Ty
R 55 S M R S > AR I I SR (T
SR ) PR T B B 4 F I FE I &
St DA Be o ) 5 v ) S AR B B 4R i SR A
o (HE ) o DL AN TE A AR ) RE R [R] 4K
i = 5 B D e (SR 1 2) o MR A e UK e B - M
T PR R SRR 2 SRS e W S A PR
B -

AREBMBLE BN -F - —F+—HREE
HEK2ERES  EHE T T FEBM
PR B O\ BRI 38D > R UG A 0 2 18 R i
510 A 1,000°F 7 WURT H A TR A UL SABE
PR B B8R > IEA B 0 i o A
HEN R ERBEYEREER F FEN
#1451,000°F 5 WRo. 5208 — F AL B B 2 D A
21.20% % %) & 1,000°F 7 Wo.41 M — & Ak i &
z%oﬁéiﬁ%%ﬁﬁq » 2 4R [E 1) U SRR PR T
nr:

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 12.18 18.50
L i 5 SR PR (A1) Mg A AL R R R
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 92.68 115.00
AE VL 1M i 2 S B PR e (R 2) LT /3
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 104.86 133.50
i 2 SRR Pk A Mg — A AL R R R
Intensity’ tCO,e/ 1,000 sq. ft. 0.41 0.52
Gl o WE — AL B E 1,000 J7 R

tCO e/employee 2.62 1.30

W — ALk R 8
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Notes:

GHG emissions data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent
and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Bank
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the “Global Warming
Potential Values” from “The Fifth Assessment Report” of the United Nations
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, “Sustainability Report 20217
published by HK Electric Investments Limited and “2021 Sustainability
Report” published by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited.

2 As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group had a total of lettable floor
area of 255,438 sq. ft. These data are used for calculating the intensity data.

The Group targets to maintain or reduce its GHG emission per
1,000 sq. ft. lettable area for the year ending 31 December 2022,
using such performance during the Reporting Period as its baseline
and organise an internal training on environmental protection
annually from 2022 to increase environmental awareness of our
employees. In addition, the Company will annually sponsor a green
lunch box for each of the employees to promote reduction or
elimination of meat from their diet which can help to contribute
a more sustainable food system as meat accounts for higher GHG

emission from the food production.

The Group manages to reduce its GHG emission through
continuous implementation of green office initiatives and efficient
use of resources. Also, the Group strives to explore different
ways of reducing carbon emissions. On top of that, the Group
implemented various measures, including using more energy-
efficient LED lights and reducing the need for air-conditioning
during the Reporting Period.

Hazardous Waste

Given that the Group was principally engaged in the Financial
Services Business and Media Business, the Group’s hazardous
waste are mainly attributable to fluorescent light tubes and toner
cartridges used in the office during the Report Period and in 2020.

A summary of our hazardous waste performance during the
Reporting Period as set out below:

BRBE A& RS
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Fluorescent light tubes pieces 4 6
BN I
Toner cartridges pieces 15 29

eh) £ i

There was no other hazardous waste generated by the Group
during the Reporting Period and in 2020. These kinds of waste
were collected and recycled as set out under the section headed
“Recycling Our Waste”.

R A RO T R AR A AR I A
e H A A B Y o oA T[] Wi BE SE) | —
P> % 55 B S B SR T [ o
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Non-Hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group are mainly the
advertising stickers used on bus-body and bus-interior during the
operation of the Media Business, along with the paper, plastic and
aluminium used in the office during the Reporting Period and in

2020.

A summary of our non-hazardous waste performance during the

Reporting Period as set out below:

T A B T AR AR AN AR ] AR Y A
RS R A I SR U T B A R 2
o H By R U R R Y R AR DL
A R AR - R B 88 o

R 15 0 A 4 R S DU B A AT

Sticker for Bus-Body, Bus-Interior and tonnes

Billboards, and paper for Bus-Shelter Poster

F A - HE B~ B B A AR M
A AR > LA B B8 o f B 9l S ) AR

88.20 111.00

Note:

During the Reporting period, there is no waste relating to sticker from
Billboards advertising business and poster from Bus-Shelter advertising
business due to discontinuation of these advertising businesses since the
second half of 2020 (2020: 13.80 tonnes).

The Group targets to maintain or reduce the production level of
both its hazardous and non-hazardous waste for the year ending
31 December 2022, using the performance during the Reporting
Period as its baseline. In addition, the Group targets to carry out
at least two waste reduction activities to increase employees’

awareness on waste reduction.

Recycling Our Waste

We promote the concept of “Reduce”, “Reuse” and “Recycle”.
The Group actively engages in recycling paper, plastic bottles,
aluminium cans and toner cartridges in order to moderate the
environmental impact caused by our waste. In order to minimise
the waste consumption, we have regularly monitored our level of
waste consumption and implemented the following waste reduction

initiatives and measures:

. designated area is assigned for collection of recycling
materials;
. reusable containers and utensils are provided for employees in

order to reduce disposable tableware usage and employees are

encouraged to bring their own lunch boxes;

. paper consumption is reduced in the workplace through

duplex printing; and

. “paperless office” is promoted by encouraging employees to

utilise electronic communication means.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group made donation to
Greeners Action for Mooncake Boxes Recycling Programme 2021.

A summary of our recycled waste performance during the
Reporting Period as set out below:

BRBE - dh & AR R WOl

TP S 0 T A A B A A BF & (] iR #2021
BT BRETE -

TP i A 390 P9 o ) [ A 15 LM A 0

Fluorescent light tube waste pieces 4 6
JBE BB ICIEE G

Toner cartridge waste! pieces 28 29
JBE BERR A £

Paper waste kg 719 1,312
JB% FE AR T

Other waste’ 2.97 =

kg
HoAth 5 )2 T

Notes:

All the toner cartridge waste collected in 2020 together with the toner
cartridge waste collected during the Reporting Period were recycled
during the Reporting Period, resulting the total number of toner cartridge
waste produced was less than the total number of toner cartridge waste

recycled.

During the Reporting Period, other waste consists of 1.79 kg plastic waste,
0.20 kg aluminium waste and 0.98 kg electronic waste. In 2020, these
wastes were counted in the unit of piece instead of kg, and there were 359

pieces of plastic waste and 1 computer for electronic waste.

Use of Resources

Other than the advertising stickers and paper usage as mentioned
above, the main resources consumed by the Group are electricity
and water. In view of our business nature, no packaging materials
for finished products were produced during the Reporting Period
(2020: Nil).

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of effective use
of resources and is committed to optimising the use of resources
across business operations. We promote a green office and operation
environment and continue to introduce resource efficiency and eco-
friendly measures to the Group’s operations. We have paid attention
to the potential environmental impacts brought by the consumption
of resources and established related policies and initiatives,
including but not limited to those mentioned in the Staff Handbook
and Green Office & Eco Healthy Workplace Best Practice, covering
topics on better utilisation of resources like energy, water, and
other natural resources.
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Electricity Consumption

The Group has actively engaged energy conservation projects
such as the usage of more energy-efficient LED lights. In addition,
we remind employees to switch off idling lights and electrical
appliances. During the Reporting Period, the Group gained the
label for Green Office & Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling
Scheme Autumn organised by World Green Organisation in
recognition of its devotion to energy conservation.

The Group’s energy consumption is mainly related to petrol and
diesel consumption by vehicles and electricity consumption. During
the Reporting Period, we continue to manage and reduce our

electricity consumption.

The total energy consumption by the Group was decreased by
approximately 26.40% from approximately 1.25 MWh/1,000 sq.
ft. in 2020 to approximately 0.92 MWh/1,000 sq. ft. during the
Reporting Period. A summary of energy consumption during the

Reporting Period as set out below:
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Direct energy consumption1 MWh 45.77 70.08
H R VR TH FE JK Iy

Indirect energy consumption’ MWh 188.22 250.05
] 422 RE U TH #B° JK BU IRF

Total energy consumption MWh 233.99 320.13
REVRVE FE A & JK G s

Intensity MWh/1,000 sq. ft. 0.92 1.25
R JK FCIE,1,000°F 77 IR

Notes: P 5 -

The Group’s direct energy consumption were approximately 2,463.28
litres of petrol and 2,046.35 litres of diesel during the Reporting Period
and of approximately 3,885.43 litres of petrol and 3,029.54 litres of diesel
in 2020.

The Group's indirect energy consumption were electricity consumption

during the Reporting Period and in 2020.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group targets to maintain
or reduce its energy consumption intensity in 2022, using such
performance during the Reporting Period as its baseline and carry
out at least 1 energy saving activity annually to increase employees’

awareness on energy saving.

Water Consump tion

Our motivation in environmental sustainability has driven us to
continuously improve water efficiency and pay close attention to
our water consumption. During the Reporting Period, the Financial
Service Business operated it business in the leased office premises of
which the water supply and discharge were controlled by building
management office and it considered that provision of water
consumption data of individual tenant was not feasible. Accordingly,
only water consumption data of the Media Business was covered in
this Report.

The water consumption intensity by the Group has decreased by
approximately 32.81% from approximately 0.64 cubic metre/ 1,000
sq. ft. in 2020 to approximately 0.43 cubic metre/1,000 sq. ft.
during the Reporting Period.

As explained in the sub-section headed “Emission”, the Group
considered that the additional disclosure of intensity on water
emission of 1,000 sq. ft. lettable areas during the Reporting Period
is necessary to the meaningful comparison as compared to the
corresponding period in 2020.
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A summary of our water consumption during the Reporting Period
as set out below:

et 0 KNS DU T

Total water consumption cubic metre 109.00 163.00
KR AN

Intensity cubic metre/employee 2.73 1.58
% SOk B AR E

Intensity cubic metre/ 1,000 sq. ft. 0.43 0.64
I S5 K ,1,000°F IR

We have regularly monitored our water consumption and
implemented the following water conservation initiatives and
measures during the Reporting Period:

. reminder of water savings notices were displayed in
designated areas;

. water taps with automatic open or close device were widely

adopted; and

. periodic maintenance of the water boiler and water dispensers
to prevent leakage and provide safe drinking water.

As explained above, only water consumption of the Media
Business was covered in this Report, it was considered that it was
impracticable in formulating a quantitative target based on such
data. However, the Group targets to organise at least 1 water-saving
campaign in 2022 to improve employees awareness on conserving
water consumption.

During the Reporting Period, our major water usages were mainly
consumed at our office premises, including toilet flushing, water tap
and drinking water. As such, we do not encounter any significant
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Environment and Natural Resources

Although the Group considered that the business nature of the
Financial Service Business and Media Business has minimal impact
on the environment and natural resources, we are committed to
mitigating our potential environmental impacts through adopting
industrial best practices with an aim to reduce natural resource
consumption and develop effective environmental management. We
regularly assess the environmental risks of our businesses, adopt
preventive measures to reduce potential environmental risks, and
ensure our compliance with relevant laws and regulations. We are
also devoted to achieving sustainable development for generating
long-term values for the community and our stakeholders.
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Indoor Air Quality

The Group is committed to providing employees with a
comfortable and green working environment to increase work
efficiency. We regularly monitor and measure the indoor air quality
in our workplace. Air-purifying equipments are installed and air
cleansing plants are placed at the workplace to filter air pollutants,

contaminants, and dust particles.

Climate Change

We recognize that climate change has been posing more challenges
among all industries and their business operation. The Group is
committed to manage the climate-related risks and provide a low-
carbon working environment across its operation in order to
mitigate the impact of climate change on its operations.

During the Reporting Period, no significant climate-related issues
have impacted the Media Business and Financial Services Business
which have been identified by the Group in accordance with
the Climate Change Policy. In addition, the Group assessed the
potential climate-related risks which may have impacted on the
Financial Services Business and the possible way to manage the
relevant climate-related risks.

In accordance with Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, climate-related risks can be divided into two major
categories: (1) risks related to the transition to a lower-carbon
economy and (2) risks related to the physical impacts of climate
change. For transition risks, the Government in 2021 announced
implementation of Hong Kong’s Climate Action Plan 2050 with
the participation of the whole community in order to achieve the
carbon neutrality before 2050. It is expected that the government
authorities will implement more stringent policies and regulations
to reduce GHG emissions and wastes and to promote the awareness
of the public on the climate change. In 2021, SFC has issued a
circular regarding the management and disclosures of climate-
related risks by fund managers to all licensed corporations including
our subsidiary conducting the Financial Services Business, the
Compliance Department of the Group shall review the amendments
to the relevant rules and shall adopt the new measures, if
applicable, to avoid any non-compliances of the Group. The Group
shall monitor the regulatory changes to respond to the potential
transition risks.

For physical risks, the long-term shift in climate patterns may cause
more frequent and intense extreme weather events, including super
typhoons and heavy rainstorms. Under the extreme weather events,
the safety of our employees is threatened and our office may be
damaged, which may cause the disruption to the normal business
operations of the Group. To minimize the potential physical risks,
the Group adopts the flexible working arrangements and employees
may work from home in adverse weather conditions, if applicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Ernst & Young
27/F, One Taikoo Place
§j{ 979 King's Road,

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Bison Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bison
Finance Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 95 to 217, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in
the “Basis for qualified opinion” section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As explained in note 21(c) to the financial statements, included
in the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of HK$75,023,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position is the Group’s interest in a private equity fund (the
“Fund”) of HK$71,274,000 which included an aggregate amount
of HK$46,150,000, representing the Group’s share of the carrying
values of the Fund’s two underlying investments in two unsecured
redeemable bonds issued by Emerge Ventures Limited (“EV”), a
private company, (the “EV Bond”), and A Metaverse Company
(“AMC”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “AMC Bond”) (collectively,
the “Bonds”). During the year, net unrealised fair value gain
arising from the Bonds attributable to the Group amounted to
HK$990,000 and was included in the total net unrealised fair value
gain arising from the Fund included in financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss of approximately HK$2,231,000 recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as set out in note

21(c) to the financial statements.

As also explained in note 21(c), subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the EV Bond and the AMC Bond were not
redeemed upon their respective maturity dates in January 2022 and

February 2022.

No audited financial statements as at 31 December 2021 of EV had
been provided by EV to the Fund or to the Group.

As further explained in note 22, a receivable from AMC brought
forward from prior years had remained unsettled as at 31 December
2021. The trading of AMC’s shares has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 1 April 2022. As at the date of this report, AMC has
not announced its audited results for the year ended 31 December

2021 and trading of its shares has not been resumed.

Management engaged an independent valuer to conduct fair value
assessments of the Bonds based on financial data obtained from
the unaudited management accounts of EV as at 31 December
2021 and the unaudited interim financial statements of AMC as
at 30 June 2021. Neither the Fund nor the Group were provided
with additional information or other details about the status of
the operations and financial position of EV and AMC for their
assessment of the recoverability and the carrying values of the
EV Bond and the AMC Bond held by the Fund as at 31 December
2021. Management was unable to provide us with other sources of
information or other evidence to support the appropriateness of
the key inputs and assumptions adopted by management in their
assessments of the determination of the carrying values of the
Bonds as at 31 December 2021.
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As a consequence, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence we considered necessary to assess the fair values
of those underlying investments of the Fund and there were no
other satisfactory procedures that we could perform to determine
whether any adjustments to the share of the carrying values of
the Bonds amounting to HK$46,150,000 included in the Group’s
interests in the Fund accounted for as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and the net fair value change of HK$990,000
included in the net unrealised fair value gain are necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for qualified
opinion section, we have determined the matters described below

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

3 57 1% B b e

DR Ut - 3 A 4 v 7 15 3R M 58 4 0 B 7R 4
%E‘J%%ﬁ’é#‘“u%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BN O (A H IR M AT HoAh A A ME W
ZEFUEERETFEHA HE£ER
SR (AR A A REEF AR
2 EREE) 2 oAk 5% 5 2 IR T (E
46,150 ,0007C M 71 A 7 58 B 4% Fo A8 (B Wi 43 5 BR

;;ﬁ:f‘f@”@u%%ﬁ#%%%o 0007G 1 AT fo]
EJ%EO

T A MR 9 A Hs o A &AM GRS
R ([ (FBFFTRAY ) ETHES -
M 7E 5% % ¥ B R AR B BAT B ARG T
M F 5l 5 6 M B WM ERARBE N BT B
A i — ﬁ&ﬂm%ﬁﬁ*‘%‘%@ w1 i 2 € 28 i
M) CELE gt RmE =<y HIl ) (BLF 6 78 [ 58
) > 308 & I BB AT SF I
Fh A A B3 T AT o FRAM AR A > FRAF P
510 25 w1 IS A8 AE 70 e M 08 b B 3R A G 14 H
= LRI SE

[3# o & Wt 55 JH

] S 2 = T AR AT 1 S B R
AR ARG MBS MR I B R e S R S IH
a4k 2 TH R 7 AP B A IR AR S B R K
R R R AT R LAY o AN A B BE L IH
RAEBHER -

B AR B S 1 2 — i it iy SR IELA) - A
FifE S T At 2 T 2 A S I T T A Y B
AT IH o

20214 HASBEEARL A 97



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3 57 1% B b e A

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures

designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results

of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had goodwill amounting
to HK$178.4 million before
accumulated impairment
of HK$178.4 million and
intangible assets amounting
to HK$40.4 million before
impairment of HKS$13.8
million, which are related
to the “Investment advisory
services business and fund
management business” cash-
generating unit “cguy.

Management engaged an
independent professional
valuer to determine the
valuation models for the

impairment assessment.

The determination of the
recoverable amounts, being
the value-in-use, requires
significant management
judgement and estimates of
variables such as expected
growth in revenue and

discount rates.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 18 and 19
to the consolidated financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included
assessing the competence and
objectivity of the independent
professional valuer engaged
by management; reviewing
management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts; examining
and recalculating management’s
discounted cash flow projections
for the determination of value-
in-use; assessing key assumptions
by comparison to the historical
performance of the CGU;
performing sensitivity analysis on
the assumptions used in the cash
flow projections; and involving
our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in the assessment
of the methodology and the
discount rates used to determine
the recoverable amounts of the
CGU.
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Key audit matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment of accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had accounts receivable
amounting to HK$64.2
million before impairment of
HK$19.8 million. The Group’s
accounting for impairment
on accounts receivable was
based on a lifetime expected
credit loss (“ECL”) under the
simplified approach, and the
measurement on the Group’s
accounts receivable under
such approach was estimated
by management through the
application of judgement
and use of highly subjective
assumptions. The impact of
economic factors, both current
and future, and forward-
looking factors specific to the
debtors were also considered
in management’s assessment
of the likelihood of recovery

from customers.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3 and 22
to the consolidated financial

statements.

Our audit procedures included
assessing the controls over
the monitoring of accounts
receivable; assessing the inputs
and historical loss patterns used
by the Group in calculating the
ECL impairment allowance by
agreeing details to respective
transaction records, checking the
ageing classification, historical
default data and forward-looking
assumptions involved; involving
our internal valuation specialist
to assist us in evaluating the
methodologies and assumptions
used in the calculation of the
ECL; and examining the working
files and modelling documents
to understand the procedures
and assumptions involved and
evaluating these documents
against HKFRS 9 requirements.
We also evaluated whether
the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on
the current economic conditions
and forward-looking information
and reviewed the subsequent
settlements after the year
end to assess the adequacy of

impairment allowance.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment of loans receivable

As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had loans receivable
amounting to HK$53.6
million before impairment of
HK$23.4 million. The Group’s
accounting for impairment
on loans receivable was based
on a 12-month ECL under
the general approach, and the
measurement on the Group’s
loans receivable under such
approach was estimated by
management through an
application of judgement
and use of highly subjective
assumptions including the
identification of loss stages,
estimates of probability of
default, loss given default,
exposures at default and
discount rate, adjustments for
forward looking information
and other adjustment factors.
Management judgement was
involved in the selection of
those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are
included in notes 3, 23 and 24
to the consolidated financial

statements.

100

Our audit procedures included
assessing the controls over the
monitoring of loans receivable;
assessing the inputs used by
the Group in the calculation of
the ECL by agreeing the details
to the loan agreements and
checking the contractual due
dates, assessing the loss stages,
recovery rates by reference to
financial information of the
debtors and their credit rating,
if available, checking forward-
looking assumptions involved;
evaluating the competence and
capabilities of management’s
specialists; involving our internal
valuation specialist to assist us in
evaluating the methodologies and
assumptions used in calculating
the ECL impairment allowance;
understanding and discussing
with management for judgements
used under the ECL approach;
and examining the working
files and modelling documents
to evaluate the procedures
and assumption during the
calculation of the ECL and
staging allocation.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 7 A% B e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AR IH R
Year ended 31 December 2021 B & —& ——4+ " H =+ —H L4

2021 2020
B e R
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT oo
Notes (Restated)
B &1 (REF)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FrA R B R
REVENUE LN 5 75,573 78,977
Other income and gains/(losses), net HAthdg A i 45~
(5 18) A 6 48 (82,773)
Cost of services IR B A (31,353) (27,905)
Staff expenditure BIXH (46,474) (42,174)
Depreciation and amortisation P18 S 4 7 (22,818) (23,546)
Provision for impairment losses, net U501 Ji 48 13 1 1 AR 7 (134,178) (99,624)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B Bt 2~ 7
(548 /i i 7 (505) 7,879
Other operating expenses HoAth K8 2 2 8 (22,493) (28,819)
Finance costs il R A 9 (10,448) (18,603)
LOSS BEFORETAX FROM PR R B EH
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B Be il fes 18 7 (192,648) (236,588)
Income tax credit Jr 15 B 4K S 12 3,799 2,468
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM PR R BB
CONTINUING OPERATIONS AAE B B 4R (188,849) (234,120)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BIEREEH
Loss for the year from a %i%@%%i’%
discontinued operation A 18 13 (69,911) (109,853)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR A2 w BEAT N AL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS A4 s 1R
OFTHE COMPANY (258,760) (343,973)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A2 6l 5 A\ BE 1
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY B B s 18
Basic %ZIK
— For loss for the year — AR 1R HK(19.97) cents HK(30.17) cents
15 (19.97) ¥ il (30.17)# Al
— For loss from continuing operation —FHEREETZ HK(14.58) cents HK(20.53) cents
5 18 15 (14.58) ¥ il (20.53) A1l
Diluted 7
— For loss for the year — KA 18 HK(19.97) cents HK(30.17) cents
15 (19.97) ¥ il (30.17)# Al
— For loss from continuing operation —FHEREETZ HK(14.58) cents HK(20.53) cents
JE5 18 15 (14.58) ¥ il (20.53) Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
a5 A W AR 3R
Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE =& = —4+ A =+ —H L4

2021 2020
= e e e
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

BT W T oo T I

LOSS FOR THE YEAR A% 4 5 i 1R (258,760) (343,973)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip 2wkt (&iE)
INCOME/ (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) that W EH SR
may be reclassified to profit or :‘lﬁ 5 Y ,ﬁ\%é i}
loss in subsequent periods: L[&ff}_/ ( E?TE) :
Exchange differences: [@;E%%ﬁ :
Reclassification adjustment $$T§ B &5 % @9[‘
for a foreign operation disposed of %ﬁ% ] E%ﬁﬁ@
during the year R 33 (7) 289
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE A A B Al 42
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, Wtk (4R ) -
NET OF TAX 11 By B JH 1% (7) 289
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Ao v A N AL
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE A A BE 2 T i 18 A8
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (258,767) (343,684)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
% 11 B 5 SR Dl 2%

31 December 2021 A —F - —4F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
=& —z-zk
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5E #W T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IF ¥ BY &
Property, plant and equipment and VESY Y&
right-of-use assets DA % fifi FH HE & 16 9,199 22,783
Goodwill [k 18 - 78,554
Intangible assets I G 19 26,576 49,644
Prepayments, deposits and TEATE ~ 8 K
other receivables A BB A B K 20 - 13,881
Financial assets at fair value through AN REEFIABEZ
profit or loss & & 21 2,000 95,043
Loans receivable JiE i 8 3K 23 10,783 -
Total non-current assets I Ui B & A 48,558 259,905
CURRENT ASSETS i B ¥
Accounts receivable JFEE iz B 3k 22 44,408 77,586
Loans receivable JE i B 3K 23 13,703 86,716
Loan to a related company 4T BB A 2 B 24 5,665 -
Amount due from a related company JREE A B /2 ] 3k I 24 513 206
Prepayments, deposits and TEATE ~ 8 K
other receivables At BB A B K 20 7,393 5,153
Financial assets at fair value through e RAEEFTA
profit or loss 4t 2 & [VE E 21 73,023 6,333
Cash held on behalf of clients REFFRAHE 79 1,007
Pledged deposits [REELPEEY 25 1,175 32,175
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KRB &5 EY 26 147,437 151,939
Total current assets T B & E AE 293,396 361,115
CURRENT LIABILITIES it B £1 1
Accounts payable JE AT B 3k 27 6,797 7,340
Other payables and accruals A A R Bk I ME R 28 31,162 41,023
Contract liabilities G R A 28 205 7,136
Lease liabilities GENCS=R 17(b) 7,773 14,405
Promissory notes KR 29 90,000 143,553
Tax payable JRE A5 ol T — 5,097
Total current liabilities it Bl B A AL AR 135,937 218,554
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

i BB AR DL (4E)

31 December 2021 A —_F _—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—F O R TEAF
Notes HKS$’000 HK$ 000
R 5E W T Vi Tt
NET CURRENT ASSETS B B A 157,459 142,561
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & e AR A O B B
LIABILITIES 206,017 402,466
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik i B £ R
Lease liabilities GENCS=E 17(b) - 7,773
Deferred tax liabilities % JE Fod TH A A 30 3,648 7,459
Total non-current liabilities I E) & A 3,648 15,232
NET ASSETS JogE R 202,369 387,234
EQUITY RE £
Equity attributable to owners of AN B BEA O\ HE AL HE 25
the Company
Share capital & A 31 142,184 118,487
Reserves fitiffs & 60,185 268,747
Total equity HE 25 #{H 202,369 387,234
Sun Lei Zhu Dong
#éE KA
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEH HIrTEH

2021 4 #

Ok m e B AR A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021 # % & ~—4F+ " H=+—H IL4FEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

LYAEE XN

At 1 January 2020 REZBZBE-H—H 118,487 250,804 (53,009) - 531,569 (605) (5,932) (119,479) 71,855
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = - - - (343,973) (343,973)
Other comprehensive income AEEL A
for the year:
Reclassification of exchange BB BB ERN
differences for a disposed T 5t £ %
foreign operation = = = = = = 289 = 289

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) KEFELTRS/ (BR)

for the year Wi - - - - - - W GBI (BB
Purchase of shares for share B0 S Bt B T 6

award scheme (Note 32()) (Hit32a) - - (3,679) - - - - - (3,679)
Vesting of shares of share award TR 58 B e £ 5

scheme (Note 32(2)) (Hit32a) - - 3,450 - - - - - 3450
Vesting of shares of share option B AT B B

scheme (Note 32(b)) (Hatsom)) = - = 9,292 - - = = 9,92
Transfer of share option reserve Gy BT ETS Gt

upon the forfeiture or expiry of RIS HE Bt (1 #132))

share options (Note 32(b)) - - - (3,937) - - - 3,937 -
At 31 December 2020 and REBZFEFAZT-HER

1 January 2021 SRR 118,487 BOSUE (53 53556 531,569t (605)* G @9slsE 387034
Loss for the year KRR - - - - - - - (28760)  (258,760)
Other comprehensive loss R A2 R -

for the year:

Reclassification of exchange THNEC L ERNEEN

differences for a disposed WE SR (Mits3)
foreign operation (Note 33) - - - - - - (7) - (7)

Total comprehensive loss AEEATEESE

for the year - - - - - - M ssIe0)  (258,767)
Placing of new shares (Note 31) RLEH M (M) 23,697 37,916 - - - - - - 61,613
Vesting of shares of share award e 4 B - £ 5

scheme (Note 32(a)) (Hat32a)) - - 12,289 - - - - - 12,289
Transfer of share option reserve MR HE A W

upon the forfeiture of TR IBCHE Bt (1 #320))

share options (Note 32(b)) - - - (678) - - - 678 -
At 31 December 2021 [ e e 8 S 142,184 WE0F (40,949)¢ 46TTF S3L569* 055 (GE0)F (717,897) 202,369

e A 3 Joe A oy e
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * EK%%E@@%}%;;QE;%;W&%%.% = ﬁ‘ﬁ‘%w}
HK$60,185,000 (2020: HK$268,747,000) in the consolidated statement of 60,185,0007C ( — % — % 4F : i M268,747,0007C) °

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
maBEmEE

Year ended 31 December 2021 # %2 —F ——4F -+ H =+ —H ILF

2021 2020
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$ 000
Bt 5T #¥ T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R HAREBFHH B &5 &
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax o i i s 1R
From continuing operation AR T A A E S (192,648) (236,588)
From a discontinued operation A &R KRS TS (69,916) (108,805)
Adjustments for: BEDAR 45 TEAE o
Finance costs Pl A 10,476 18,837
Interest income FE A (5,083) (11,583)
Depreciation and amortisation P8 Sk 6 7 22,818 30,816
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries B o F 2
e, (it ) 7 505 (7,879)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE- B M
plant and equipment TH H ik 4 — (14)
(Reversal)/provision for impairment W3 -~ i m B it
loss on property, plant and 56 FH O (E
equipment and right—of-use assets WEE ($ W) /ﬁ?ﬁ 16 (804) 25,334
Gain on lease modification & BT I 17 (150) -
Impairment loss on goodwill PR 2 2 Y (E s 18 7 78,554 99,890
Impairment loss on intangible assets T & B 2 WAE 1R 7 13,834 35
(Reversal)/provision for impairment TEATEKIE -~ & &
loss on prepayments, deposits and Al i I ik
other receivables e HE (4 /ﬁf{% 20 (143) 1,989
Provision for impairment loss on JFRE A R R U (L M 1 9 A
accounts receivable 22 18,910 1,427
Bad debts recovered B i 1| 358 i 22 (70) -
(Reversal)/provision for impairment JARE Wi M
loss on loans receivable 5 E (BEm) 23 22,653 (2,019)
Provision for impairment loss on ué(ﬁ\%g FHEJ Eﬁ Hﬁ%’& ﬁ‘l ﬁ‘?ﬁ
a loan to a related company Z WA e 18 B 24 381 =
Net realised and unrealised (gains)/ AN REE R A B A
losses on financial assets at fair value ) 4 il & 7 A B
through profit or loss KB (Its)
Jies 18 15 6 (941) 85,855
Equity-settled share-based payment D T &5 8 DLy £
expenses SRR AT 3K BA S 32(a) 12,289 12,742
(89,335) (89,963)
Decrease in accounts receivable JFEE Sz e 25k Tk 13,638 66,809
Decrease in loans receivable JFEE i 5 2 IR D 36,733 47,880
Decrease in prepayments, TR - 8 K
deposits and other receivables A ol I sk D 12,102 38,245
Decrease in an amount due from JiE e — ] [R] 3% Fft & A &)
a fellow subsidiary AR IR D - 7
Increase in an amount due from JREE i — [ B it 2 )
a related company FXIE 3 (307) (206)
Decrease/ (increase) in cash held on REREF AR E
behalf of clients W () 928 (107)
Decrease in pledged deposits C K4 A7 2 > 31,000 66,248
Decrease in accounts payable JE A B 3k Ik D (543) (772)
Decrease in other payables and accruals S Ath, B AF 2K T I E H
2 Y (20,312) (22,267)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
GEBemER (H)

Year ended 31 December 2021 #%E —F ——4+ " H =+ —H IL4F %

2021 2020
o4 | —z-%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
M 5 BT BT
Cash generated from/ (used in) é:(«'%’{ﬁ@jﬁﬁ / (BT H)
operations B (16,096) 105,874
Interest received SRS 1,543 8,802
Hong Kong profits tax paid B A5 9 A1 75 B — (2,065)
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) = ’H‘ GiE N E L 2
income tax paid (e ) Brig s (5,104) (168)
Net cash flows from/ (used in) mEEE S, (A
operating activities B & U B R (19,657) 112,443
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AR H B W BB
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, YN/ BN & ]
plant and equipment HH - (2,272)
Proceeds from disposals of items of HEY - F& B B i
property, plant and equipment Z gk 804 5,552
Purchase of financial assets I A 5 f/\ﬁfg [EGIWN
designated at fair value through HiEZ & MEE
profit or loss (6,995) (10,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial W B A REEEA
assets designated at fair value 1815 2 4 /&
through profit or loss 1% 3 IH 8,289 =
Proceeds from capital withdrawal of 18 %#/\ﬁfﬂfﬁﬁ']\
financial assets designated Hii 2z & EEERE
at fair value through profit or loss 1% ji*j( 26,000 =
Interest received 2 U] B 340 2,138
Proceeds from refund of non-pledged W A B TR 21 0] HOHR AR
time deposits with original =8 A zZ FE K E 1
maturity of more than three months A7 2R 3R BT 45 308
when acquired 5,038 5,033
New non-pledged time deposits PN B RS R
with original maturity of =AW A Z 8 FE A
more than three months when acquired JE WA 3K (5,040) (5,047)
Disposal of subsidiaries & M‘TE /| 33 (186) 28,705
Net cash flows from investing activities A H G R R SR 28,250 24,109
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
madlafiER (4)

Year ended 31 December 2021 # % & ~—4+ - H=+—H IL4EF

2021 2020
g TR FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt 5T #®WT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 2 A il B T B 0 B 4
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments LB ATk 2 2 4 8B 43 34(b) (14,255) (17,403)
Interest element of lease payments ATz FE (396) (773)
Issue of promissory notes %éﬁ?g(ﬁﬁﬁ%#% 29 — 20,000
Redemption of promissory notes HE ] 7 o0 SR 48 29 (53,553) (61,447)
Placing of new shares i 65 5 ik 31 61,613 -
Purchases of shares for Share Award 7 B oy 52 B w1 H B E
Scheme J& Ay 32(a) - (3,679)
New bank loans B ERAT B K 19,000 4,000
Repayment of bank loans B SR AT B K (19,000) (4,000)
Decrease in pledged deposits C K4 A7 2 > - 275
Interest paid A FLE (6,506) (18,678)
Net cash flows used in financing activities AR E GBS B2 R E
B (13,097) (81,705)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN Be kB eEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥, (WA)BH (4,504) 54,847
Cash and cash equivalents FHB & B EEEY
at beginning of year 146,901 92,054
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBERBEEED
AT END OFYEAR 142,397 146,901
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF Bl KBl &% EYiH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS vigiy
Cash and bank balances B4 M R AT & B 26 142,397 146,901
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCH E W A7 26 5,040 5,038
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in 45 A B R Il 2 BT 31
the consolidated statement of Bl R Bl EEY
financial position 147,437 151,939
Non-pledged time deposits with I AW IR 2 1 B AR
original maturity of more than =AM A Z FEHE
three months when acquired JE A AE 3K (5,040) (5,038)
Cash and cash equivalents A Bl &R R
as stated in the consolidated W& KB &5 EY
statement of cash flows 142,397 146,901
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e 3¢ Wt Gk

31 December 2021 —F ——F+"H=+—H

1.

112

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Bison Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
company, incorporated in Bermuda and has its registered
office at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in (i) the
provision of financial services; and (ii) the provision of media
sales, design and management services and production of
advertisements (“media business”).

On 26 October 2021,

subsidiary, Bus Power Limited (“Bus Power”) entered into a

the Company’s wholly-owned

termination agreement to early terminate the agreement for
provision of bus body advertising agency services to Citybus
Limited, New World First Bus Services Limited (the “Bus
Companies”) (as amended and supplemented) for a term
of three years expiring on 30 June 2023 (the “Advertising
Agreement”) and the ancillary documents relating to the
Advertising Agreement (as amended and supplemented)
(the “Ancillary Documents”) with effect from 1 November
2021. Therefore,
(“Discontinued Operation”). Details are included in note 13

the media business was discontinued

to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company are Bliss Chance
Global Limited (“Bliss Chance”) and Bison Capital Financial
Holdings Limited (“Bison Capital”), respectively. Bliss Chance
Global Limited and Bison Capital Financial Holdings Limited
are incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

On 8 October 2021,

Chance that it received a letter regarding the appointment

the Company was notified by Bliss

of two joint and several receivers (the “Receivers”) over
680,508,005 shares of the Company (the “Charged Shares”),
which were charged under a share charge executed by Bliss
Chance as the charger and Fruitful Worldwide Limited
as charge (the “Share Charge”). Based on the information
provided by Bliss Chance, the Receivers were appointed by
Fruitful Worldwide due to non payment of quarterly fixed
dividend by Bliss Chance in accordance with the terms of an
investment agreement dated 17 May 2017 which constitutes
an event of default pursuant to the Share Charge, causing
the security under the Share Charge become immediately
enforceable.
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=] b 2 e
CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ~ul REEER (5)
INFORMATION (continued)
On 29 December 2021, the receivers have entered into a RoFE - —F+_H_TILH EHEA
memorandum of understanding with an interested party. B ) 25 AR BN 5T 7 i A A S Bk o
Up to the date of this report, no further action was taken by B EAREE B 385 A0 45 57 BUE —
the Receivers and there is no change to the Group’s holding ATHE) > A B PR A A ) o
companies.
Information about subsidiaries B B 2 w0 E R
The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise Bk 55 7 45 WA A0 > Br R B 03 480 A 35 A 48
specified. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries J o AR F FEME AR FERE R

are as follows:

Percentage of

Issued and equity attributable
paid-up to the Company
Place of incorporation/ share capital T AR A 2 i B E e
Name of company operation (Note(i)) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
CH#IT R
BB A
AT AR AE L N (W) B Mk FEEH
Acton Eagle Limited The British Virgin [slands/ usst 100 —  Investment holding
Hong Kong B RER
ERELHE/ K
Bison Corporate Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,001 - 100 Provision of advisory services on
H ﬁﬂ:\% il g HRAH %‘\% it i|{%z7,000,00 17T corporate finance

28 A
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1. 2w REBEER (5)
5 R 2 W B R ()

Percentage of

Issued and equity attributable
paid-up to the Company
Place of incorporation/ share capital OB A A 2 ) IR BE 23 b
Name of company operation (Note(i)) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
c#fTk
BRBA
kA MRS 2 B (M) HE Mg EEEE
Bison Financial (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Investment holding
it b BE
Bison (HK) Management Services Limited Hong Kong HKs1 - 100 Provision of management services
it b {7 (LA R
BTS Investment Limited Cayman Islands USs0.03 - 100 Provision of fund management
HemrE 0.03F 70 services
R4 4 IR
BTY Investment Limited Cayman Islands USs0.02 - 100 Provision of fund management
HemrE 0.02F 7t services
R4 IR
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Provision of media sales service for
? s b3 tﬁ%{lfﬁ advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors and interiors and
became dormant during the year
A5 {750 U 551 S0
RS M s R B
TR BE AR T ) 4 ]
Creative Time Global Limited The British Virgin Islands usst 100 ~  Investment holding
£y gy 17 BB
Initial Glory Limited The British Virgin Islands usst 100 ~  Investment holding
b i E BB
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Investment holding
ik ot BB
Plenty Prestige Management Limited The British Virgin Islands uss1 100 —  Investment holding
KEEAHE E BB
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

operation

ok M3/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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1. A REEER ()
5 T 1 24 00 R (40

Percentage of

Issued and equity attributable
paid-up to the Company
share capital J AW A< 25 i M E A b
(Note(i)) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
CH#AT R
BRBA

(Wika) — EE ME EERE

Premier Future Limited

RoadShow Media Holdings Limited

RoadShow Productions Holdings Limited

RoadShow Productions Limited

RoadVision (Beijing) Limited

RoadVision Holdings (China) Limited

RoadVision Holdings Limited

RSG Resources Limited

The British Virgin Islands

e el

The British Virgin Islands

e el

The British Virgin Islands

KR AR S

Hong Kong

ik

The British Virgin Islands

KBELHE

The British Virgin Islands

KEELHE

The British Virgin Islands

KEELRE

Hong Kong

Eik

usst 100 —  Investment holding
0 Rk
usst = 100 Investment holding
o REHR
Usst - 100 Investment holding
E RgHR
HKS$2 - 100 Events production and management
i cHbH services for transit vehicle

interior and exterior advertising

and became dormant during the

year
% 18 B B 0 S0
HIEE R LSRR A
TR FE BRI ) 8 ]
usst - 100 Investment holding
E fiagadli
usst - 100 Investment holding
E REE
uss2 - 100 Investment holding
T REEK
HKs2 - 100 Provision of employment agency
T services
AR AL b A TR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

ok

Place of incorporation/

operation

ok M3/

1. AV REEER (g)
1[5 B ) 2> =] B ORE (%)

Percentage of

Issued and equity attributable
paid-up to the Company
share capital T AW A< 25 i B A e
(Note(i)) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
CH#AT R
BRBA

(W#EGi)) Hik M FEEE

Shangtai Asset Management Limited

Silver Sea Limited

Target Capital Management Limited

REBEERARAT

TR AREAEREHARAA

TR (i) i) )
Notes:
(i) The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
specified.
(i) It is registered as a limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands

HEHE

Hong Kong

ik

Hong Kong

ik

The PRC (Notes (ii), (iii))

or Macao’s sole proprietorship of legal person).

(iii) ~ During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, NanTai
Investment Limited (“NanTai”) was disposed of. In addition, an
agreement was entered between b H AR wiE B A S A B
N a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and Ankai (Tianjin)
Economic Information Consulting Company Limited (“Ankai”), a
wholly-owned variable interest entity of the Group, for terminating
the variable interest entity relationship. On 1 December 2021,
Ankai ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group. Further details are

included in note 33 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which includes all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair values. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the necarest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

118

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early
adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKEFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018—-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework '

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or

Joint Venture *

2
Insurance Contracts *

2
Insurance Contracts >°

Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative

Information *°

Classification of'
Liabilities as Current or
Non-current >*
Disclosure of Accounting

Policies *

Detinition of Accounting
Estimates *

Deterred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a
Single Transaction 2

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use '

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract !
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, llustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41!
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align

the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKEFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

© The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 to permit a classification overlay
for financial assets presented in comparative periods on initial
application of HKFRS 17

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has concluded that the adoption
of the new and revised standards is unlikely to have a

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

120

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For cach business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquircc’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.
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A V4

B A AHL G A 2R 0 K
B S 05 i R R o

MR TE A HRZE MR FEE
Y3 ] A= 2%

_ @M
ir

R D= A HRZE IR E
$ ] 2 2%

5 1) A 200 F BT 0 R R E - {ELTT (I ER A

* H (B E R ERD Bt 2B (F ik
W ) SRS UEAS BF AR A 1Y B — 1 N
ﬁﬁ%‘%%ﬁﬁﬁ”z 1 HY A2 R BB HY 7 B

Ei‘HLﬁﬂ“T DA AR 8 5 vl £

E ﬁﬁ'ﬁ ¥ i /1 5

_(_‘

HIA S =% AR A U R
ot WA 1798 2 B HT > CGF ¥ BB
HE Q) SR 49 MEAE W LA R IR RS L LT
MBAFRR -F =4 —H—HZHHE
) 4F B2 A T E ) R s & s MR R S 30%E T
o BB i HE R SRk

¢ FHEFHA R GRlEMEHREELD) 58
V7R EAT R R R (B BB
et e R S5 179 IRr L ] 2 5 Y 5 A
FE O SR A

A 45 [ OE AE G Al 5% 25 B T BT HE R I
T B U T S0 I TR P AR
e By 1k > 7 B2 B R 1 BR AN T T K KRB

R HE QR O AT B 3 AR A B i R o
P2 L

2.4 HOK 5t BURBER

AU R

SETS G OF PR T WO 35 51 AR o S 1A 4%
W S RS 2> Fo {8 (E R > B AR 4 ) P
o AR I RIS 2 i AR 2 D i
AN B S A SR ] f5 T O 4 S
E T 8 A7 B R A WS 1 2 e A M Y
RN kA5 TH B A 0 o AN 4R R4
S 19 43 O AE M AL BT WSO 2 ] Y AT sk
I ¥ (EL Y L 51w A A W 2 R B JF
EBRE SR (% BUAT B A R E o M 4 b
e A NAE T AR DU 4% LU o0 A
{ED) o 4% JBORE 2 ) BT A K A 28 03T 20 4
O SUABRAE R B o WO AR B AR A E A
ARz o

AT —E B R EE A —IHE
BB K — TR R R 1 W & Al
FE A9 E T A EE R MR A SR RS B L
£ Wil — JH SE 8



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group'’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its listed and unlisted equity investments
and private equity fund at fair value at the end of cach
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that

market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the nature
of the impaired assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.4 WO E s BURBEE (40)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(if)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same Group;

(if) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a

member);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of cither the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leaschold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Audio and visual equipment 5 — 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 — 7 years

Hardware and software 5 years

Panels Over the remaining lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

cach financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent customer
relationship, fund contracts and website and mobile apps
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Intangible asset with an indefinite useful live represents
a licence and is tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the

right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

(b)

Rjgb t-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost or valuation, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term
Billboards Over the remaining lease term
Panels Over the remaining lease term

Motor vehicle 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives reccivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

(©)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets
to leases that are considered to be of low value. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. No leases of low-value assets
were noted for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or

loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instrumen ts)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or

impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has ncither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control of the asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a

lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of

recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit

risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired

at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial rccognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
accounts payable, other payables, certain accruals and

promissory notes.

Subsequen t measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends

on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well

as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Cash held on behalf of clients

The Group maintains segregated clients’ accounts with
licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from normal
business in connection with the Group,s brokerage activities.
The cash held on behalf of clients is restricted and governed
by the Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules (Chapter
5711) of the laws of Hong Kong under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Group has recognised the

corresponding clients” accounts payable to respective clients.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as
to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or

recovered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or

services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

If a contract meets all the criteria for a contract with a
customer at contract inception, the Group does not reassess
those criteria unless there is an indication of a significant
change in facts and circumstances. When there is an indication
of a significant change and deterioration in a customer’s
ability to pay the consideration, it triggers the Group to
reassess the contract by considering the customer’s ability
and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it is
due. When the Group considers the customer has no ability
to pay the consideration for the remaining services after
reassessment, the Group does not recognise revenue from the
contract for the remaining period until all or substantially
all consideration is received from the customer with no

remaining obligations to transfer services to the customer.

(i) Income from production of advertisements for transit
vehicle exteriors and interiors, shelters and outdoor
signages is recognised when (a) the production of
advertisements services are rendered at the point in
time and (b) the related advertisements are telecast
or commercials appear before the public over the

advertising period of the related advertisements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

Fee income from media sales, design and management
services, production of advertisements and advertising
agency services is recognised when the related services

are rendered.

Financial advisory and consultancy fee income is

recognised at a point in time on completion of services.

Commission income for brokerage business is

recognised when the transaction is executed.

Underwriting and placing commission income is

recognised when the transaction is executed.

Fund management service income is recognised
over time on a time-proportion basis as services are
provided. Management fee is calculated ecither at a
percentage of client’s committed contribution or
at a percentage of the net asset value of each fund
and performance fee is calculated based on a fixed
percentage of the increment in the net asset value
during the relevant performance period. Fund advisory
service income is recognised over time on a time-
proportion basis as services are provided. Advisory fee
is calculated based on committed contribution or the
net asset value of the investment funds.

External asset management advisory commission
income is recognised at the point in time when the
Group refers individuals to the third party financial
institutions for account opening. Commission is
calculated based on percentage of the brokerage
commission earned by the third party financial
institutions from the individuals. Hence, the commission
gives rise to variable consideration which is constrained

until the individuals trade.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

S 255 e 3 B ik (4)

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

2.4 O E s BUORBER (40)

BN B R (
FRaGHPA (

(i)

(i)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

Elf;
»\E’

ml;l

A B B~ Rt KR B AS ~
VB BE 5 B B 5 AR B IR BS 1Y 2 e A
THTE SR A B AR 5 Ry ke w8 o

S5 R 1) e kWA TR R 5 52 A
F¥) BRF [] 25 e R o

A8 K2 5 I 4 WO TR 52 g 2 IR Tl

Ei’o

£ 8 J e 85 I e A TR AE &
Eﬁwu"

R

e < A TR S WSO IS £ 14 I S IR B
I3 ] 4% fiy [H] LU f51) ik Y6 fe 5 - 457 2L 2
MR 5 R B E 0 e
B EE T EMN A EHE > AR
25 AR AR R B 3 A N O (R
1B E | o b5 o A el iRk
5 AT 4 A3 i 25 B3 B Iy ] 4% R[]
B o) 5 e e 5 o 5 ) 2 4R ol
BRI GRS EE FHENSA -

B e A B R A 4 WA A AR R
VI 18T N9 78S 265 26 = T < B A B
J5 IR B 58 o {4 12 50 = T 4 A
EREPNG &S W UNER o i
B o RG> 1) < 7 AR 14 T 8 AR £ &
DARR A > B 2R AZ 5 2 ik -

H i A W5 19 W N

AE 8 WSO AARABREL 1 4 B[] B £ 56 YE it 2 o
M7 JF PR B — 4 B LR 2 W] SR

(RE

TP JFLE A A S ] A R A WO o

2021 4E . HHZLSMEEARAL A

139



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)

Interest income from loan financing is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount

of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the sharcholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme and a share
option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

. .
transactions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value of share awards is determined
based on the closing market price of the Company’s shares
that were publicly traded on the Stock Exchange, while the
fair value of share options is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in
note 32 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group,s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of

that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service

and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. When awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the

date of modification.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described

in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/ (loss)

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the cmployccs’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Groupys subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
amount for the employees in Mainland China, pursuant to the
local municipal government regulations. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The MPF Scheme and the central pension scheme in the
Mainland China are defined contribution plans. Forfeited
contributions will not be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contributions. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.c., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement

of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of PRC subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment ofgoodWiII

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. As at 31 December 2021, the goodwill
was fully impaired and the carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2020 was HK$78,554,000. Further details are

given in note 18.

Provision for expected credit losses on
accounts receivable and loans receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for

accounts receivable.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.

For fund management fees receivable, the Group also takes
into account the recoverable amount of the underlying assets
that can be realised from each of the managed funds to arrive
at the ECL.

Loans receivable were based on probability of default
approach to estimate the ECLs under general approach,
and the measurement of the Group’s loans receivable under
such approach was estimated by management through
an application of judgement and use of highly subjective
assumptions including the identification of loss stages,
estimation of probability of defaults based on their credit
ratings; loss given default based on the recovery rate,
explosures at default rate, adjustment for forward-looking

information and other adjustment factors.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

3.

146

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on
accounts receivable and loans receivable
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group,s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
a customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Groupys accounts receivable and loans
receivable is disclosed in note 22 and note 23 to the financial

statements, respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets (otber
than goodWiII)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The information about the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets and intangible assets is disclosed in notes
16 and 19, respectively.

Useful lives ofintangib]c assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation charges for its intangible assets. This estimate is
based on the existing longevity of licence and fund contracts
and the life cycle of the industry in which the Group operates.
Management reassesses the useful lives at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates
the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit

rating).

Fair value of a private equity fund

The private equity fund has been valued based on the net
asset value which considers the fair values of the underlying
investments. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3 (2020: Level 3) as the private equity
fund invested in two (2020: two) unlisted investments
during the year. The fair value of the private equity
fund at 31 December 2021 was HK$71,274,000 (2020:
HK$95,043,000). Further details are included in note 21 to
the financial statements.

Fair value of unlisted financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss

The unlisted equity financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss have been valued based on a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation references to the recent investment
transactions in the investee company and certain observable
inputs. The Group classifies the fair value of these investments
as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at
31 December 2021 was HK$2,000,000 (2020: Nil). Further
details are included in note 21 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4.

148

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION
No operating segment information is presented as the Group

the

financial services which comprise loan financing services and

only operates in one singlc operating segment, i.e.,

licensed businesses including provision of investment advisory
services, advisory services on corporate finance, securities
brokerage services, securities margin financing services,
external asset management services, securities undcrwriting

and placing services and fund management services.

In the prior year, the Group also involved in media business
which comprise the provision of media sales, design and
management services and production of advertisements for
transit vehicle exteriors and interiors, advertising businesses
and provision of integrated marketing services. During the
year, the Group had terminated the media business which
was included as discontinued operation for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. Further details are included in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Non-current assets

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s non-current
assets were mainly located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

No major customer information is presented as the Group did
not have customers with sales amounting to 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. REVENUE

An analysis of revenue from continuing operation is as

follows:

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

5. LA

Frig e

BREBWAIHTNT -

2020
ZERIRAE
HK$’000
BT
(Restated)

(R HE )

Revenue from contracts with customers EFE A KA 70,828 68,599
Revenue from other sources HAh A W AT YA
Interest income on loans receivable JRE Wi B 3K 1Rl A 4,745 10,378
75,573 78,977
Revenue from contracts with customers ®FEaH/WA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) SR N &G H
2020
SECEE
HK$’ 000
BT T
(Restated)

(RH5)

Types of services

Fund management service income and

performance fee income

Jike 25 2 2
5 A PHUAR 5 WA B
BB WA ([HE

(“Fund management service income”)* FIRBULA L) = 25,596 32,540
External asset management advisory 5’|\ %[3 ﬁ é %}E EE F'ﬁ

commission income RPN 40,026 35,152
Financial advisory and consultancy SRS o ) S R A

fee income 2,370 —
Insurance brokerage service income ’f% Fﬁi,@ # H&i}% A - 112
Others HAh 2,836 795
Total revenue from contracts with % E & #U A RBER

customers 70,828 68,599

Fund management service income was carned by subsidiaries
of the Group acting as either general partners, investment
advisors or investment managers of investment funds which
hold equity and/or debt securities in various companies
including third party companies and companies in which
Mr. Xu Peixin, an executive director of the Company, or
his close associate holds share holdings, cither directly or
indirectly, or is a director. Such investment funds were not
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Group companies of the preference sharcholder
of the Company’s holding company act as limited partner
or investors of the funds and apart from designating the
portfolio of investments, would not be involved in the

management or control of the funds.

* HE A IR B A R AE A
WA N B R B A Y AR
A2 0 A Jo 2 BRI - 5% S BB G
HZ RN AR & B R
LA 8 =07 o W) B AR o8 BUAT FE AR
R St A B B U N L T 4
PR B AEE R A A A o % 55 1 2
Sz 37 8 T A A W 5 T HROR B A A
MR o A 0 ] 8 M 4 W] B 5T IR R R A 4R
B A AR R R A R B NI E
Fo B EREHEI NG 2
Y B e R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

5.

150

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Disaggrega ted revenue information

(continued)

either at a percentage of the committed contribution of
the investors in the funds or at a percentage of the net

asset value of the funds.

Set out below are the book values of the investment

portfolios of the funds that have invested in, inter alia,

WA (2
%ﬁA%%A,@

() #IFUATH (4

ZHETHFEE -

~

SEHERBRAZBEE N EE

The fund management service income was calculated R4

2R B E A R S R

TR R B R B SR BB
HABRBARNARNZEREM

companies related to Mr. Xu and/or his close family A2 IRHE :
member:
2021 2020
—E A B CERE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT BT
Book values of the funds’ investments in & A B AR 5'6?5&/
companies related to Mr. Xu and/or jZ/H\E EXN
his close family member: HEBMW AR EN
R T B
— in funds whose management fees are — LT EHE
calculated at a percentage of E S Ty
committed contribution HER A
of the funds* Al 404,183 320,355
— in funds whose management fees are — LT EHE
calculated at a percentage of net B ERE
asset value of the fund* FEME ST
Al 1,652,856 1,434,353
2,057,039 1,754,708
& Book values of the funds' investments above are extracted * Il R B 0 MR T (L A Bk ST

from segregated portfolio reports issued by the independent

third party fund administrators.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA (50

Revenue from contracts with customers EREaRWA (&)

(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (1) BTN EF (78)
(continued)
In addition, set out below are the management fee 1 N N7 PR NN 2 /NI
and performance fee of the funds in which group BB RMERAARE EHERN
companies of the preference sharcholder of the WREHSRERESNAERAE A
Company’s holding company have invested (as limited SRR ) 1Y R 4 B RN A
partner or sharcholder which would not be involved DA T 1 55 S i 4 1 Gl B

in the management or control of the funds) and their
committed contribution in the funds:

2020
e e 3
HK$’ 000
ik i AT
Management fee (2020: Management fee G (F A
and performance fee) B W) 25,581 31,329
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (ii) WA 78 IR
2020
— o
HKs’000
T o
(Restated)
(KEESI)
Services transferred at a point in time e 755 7 AR IR FH] 22 $§-*§ 45,230 36,034
Services transferred over time H&?%Bﬁﬁ B% il $§-*§ 25,598 32,565
Total revenue from contracts with FF A #HIUW A HEE
customers 70,828 68,599
The following table shows the amount of revenue RSN R R A R A AE
recognised in the current reporting period that was T 7 A e 4 10 D e 2 UG A
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
2020
SFE B
HK$’ 000
T
Fund management business HEEEMER 2,242 2,641
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31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

5.

152

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(iii) Performance obligations

Information about the Groupys performance obligation
is summarised in the revenue recognition paragraph of
“« . . . o« e ”»
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”.

The performance obligations are satisfied upon services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to

90 days from the date of billings.

Except for fund management service, the Group has
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose information about the
remaining performance obligations that have original
expected durations of one year or less.

The amounts of transaction prices (excluding the
variable considerations) allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) for fund management service income
which is calculated at a percentage of the committed
contribution of the funds as at 31 December are as

follows:

5.

WA ()
EEEHBA (%)

(iii) JE %) & (E

A T A 4R B B 4 AT B EDR B A
[ EE R & T BUORMEZ ] BT Ol A il w8
7 o

JB &) AT A 45 135 AR 5 5 22 B> 1 A+
POE R MRE H A F30%90H A
# o

BRI B RGN AEEBER B
s BB S HE R SR sSE SR 11 B
B AT AT R R O R > R 4 R RO R
R — F 0 R 8RB A AT &
Ko

W+ _H=+—H> e RHE
HEESRFE AR EESE M
MR UL AR T CRBEAT 3 K B
1) B EAT R B8 (B ] s AE
AR UNE

2021 2020

= == EErEET

HK$’000 HK$’000

i AW BT

Amounts expected to be recognised TERHERR AU A I & %E -

as revenue:

Within one year — 4N 6,358 12,794

After one year —IE 15 1,777 6,259

8,135 19,053
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

6. HAW A Feiti,” (fi548)

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/

(LOSSES), NET

An analysis of other income and gains/(losses), net from

continuing operation is as follows:

e

(B8 FREATT -

A A AR A SE S B H A A R i g

2020
—z=zh
HK$ 000
BT T
(Restated)
(RH)
Interest income from banks R H AT HALEd A 338 1,111
Other interest income HoAth A Bl A — 94
Dividend income from the investments in s REEF AR
financial assets at fair value through ZEMEEREN
profit or loss BBk A 208 -
Rental income from a related company LEN LNl
HE A 307 206
Government grant T A6 B - 50
Sundry revenue M TE R A 405 434
Other income HoAth e A 1,258 1,895
2020
R FE
HK$’000
T
(Restated)
(R&E5)
Foreign exchange gains, net [P b, i 4 V3 AR (2,151) 1,187
Net realised and unrealised gains/ (losses) WA REMEF ARG Z
on financial assets at fair value S A A ) B B K
through profit or loss (note 21) KB ()
B (Mat21)
— Equity investments ~ RHERE (1,290) (3,446)
— Private equity fund ~ PR 2,231 (82,409)
Other gains/(losses), net Hihkzs,~ ()
FH (1,210) (84,668)
Other income and gains/ (losses), net H A A Rz~
(fE18) 1§ 3 48 (82,773)

2021 4 #
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

7.

154

LOSS BEFORETAXATION

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is

arrived at after charging/ (crediting):

7. Br B i 1R

A B2 1) i 298 AL 7 SE 55 1Y R B I Jls 1R A

B (FFA) T o4& A ER

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
#HT U BT
(Restated)
(R &)
Depreciation charge (note 16) PregE i (Mfitie)
— property, plant and equipment — W2 BE KA 2,905 2,903
— right-of-use assets — {7 ) E 10,679 11,409
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19) TV & WSS (M at19) 9,234 9,234
22,818 23,546
Provision for/(reversal of) U (E e R A ()
impairment losses, net {%%E
— goodwill (note 18) — TR (M at1s) 78,554 99,890
— intangible assets (note 19) —IEEE (MiE9) 13,834 =
— prepayments, deposits and other receivables —FET KA & K
(note 20) HC At JE i B K
(Mt7t20) (143) 573
— accounts receivable — JE i B K 18,899 1,180
— loans receivable (note 23) — MEW LK (M E23) 22,653 (2,019)
— loan to a related company (note 24) — A THBEARZ
B (M it24) 381 -
134,178 99,624
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) 65 BT 2
e, (i as)
(Kt7E33) 505 (7,879)
Foreign exchange differences, net FEE 58, 2% % 1% 28 2,151 (1,187)
Lease payments not included in Kt AHEAER &
the measurement of lease liabilities Z B AT K 964 406
Auditor’s remuneration A2 R I 48 5,564 3,811
Employee benefit expenses (excluding directors’ 1l & 45 F1 BA 52
and chief executive’s remuneration): (N FEE S K&
R RATELN B
Wages and salaries LTEK#H& 26,605 27,270
Equity-settled share-based payments (note 32) DA TR &5 B DA A 4%
FEBE AT K (M FE32) 9,069 7,828
Pension scheme contributions FEXI NS R e
(defined contribution scheme) (A€ sk wt #)) 1,211 1,109
Less: Government grants* Bk BURT A B+ - (2,396)
36,885 33,811

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to &

these grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

8. H A&

R AR A 2605 1 AL RS B 0 A dn T

8. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

An analysis of other operating expenses from continuing
operations is as follows:

2020

“EFE

HK$’000

i

(Restated)

(RHEF)

Auditor’s remuneration % BTN 4 5,564 3,811
Building management fee and air-conditioning K-S E- gkl

charge 72 1% H 1,923 1,981

Entertainment JEE T . 4 469 650

Government rent and rates i AH K 7 i 427 487

Repairs and maintenance HE1 T AR % 67 365

Information and technology expenses Bl B B4 S 1,146 1,117

Lease charges for short-term leases HHENHES M 964 406

Legal and professional fees B K EERE 9,567 8,646
Share-based payment — others DAy 25 B 1)

5 3K — HiAth - 2,901

Transportation and travelling A2 48 [ 72 ik BH 32 484 456

Miscellaneous e TE 1,882 7,999

22,493 28,819

9. RIE WA
45 AP S T 0 O A BT

9. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as
follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on a promissory note
Other interest expense

HEAMZHE
TR S SR 2 FILE
oAt AL B 32

2020
CECEE
HK$’000
BT
(Restated)
(KEHE5))

305
9,834
309

601
16,863
1,139

10,448 18,603

2021 4 #

HAEcmERARAA
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

10. # FH 5 W

Mg CERBLAD - B (R r kb 56
383(1)(a) * (b)~ (o) B (Ot B¢ W) (4% 5% &
H M 2 B KL SR E R BLE > AR A
AR AT BN B R R

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T
Fees i 1,500 1,500
Other emoluments: H At 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 AL K
B Y48 F 4,805 4,655
Equity-settled share-based payments DA B HE &5 54 A A
J A3 75 25 TR B9 AT 3k 3,220 2,013
Pension scheme contributions FER YN (K5I 64 64
9,589 8,232

During the prior years, share options were granted to
directors in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are included in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting

T AR 4 BE > Bt 3 2 0 R 4 R Y
He 5 1o 45 55 5 i1 B B AE > o 7 SRR B S
e 2 W k32 o T B JE 30 (] A 4 i 5% A R
1 5% S5 B RO HE 1) 28 o (B (ED R 4 1 ) B e
E > wE A A BE BB R 1 e B EOR B

period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. = 3 3 W (40)
(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) B EPITES
2021
—E 8

Independent non-executive directors ByEpfmES
Dr QI Daging BERE®EL 300 840 1,140
Mr CHEN Yigong BRR TS 150 - 150
Mr FENG Zhonghua i 150 - 150
600 840 1,440
2020
—mo
Directors’s
fee
#HHM S
HK$’ 000
T
Independent non-executive directors B BT HE
Dr QI Daging R B 300
Mr CHEN Yigong 1 I e 150
Mr FENG Zhonghua L 150
600
During the prior year, there were no other emoluments A b — A M 4 AT ST JF AT
payable to the independent non-executive directors. 3 A 4 o
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. = FFH B (@)

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive (b) ﬂﬁ%% ~JEPUAT S R
RATBA B

directors and the chief executive

2021
ZRI K

Executive Directors WiTEF
Mr XU Peixin RS 200 1,770 18 1,988 - 1,988
Mr SUN Lei RExE 200 1,565 28 1,793 840 2,633
Mr ZHU Dong RAKE 200 1,470 18 1,688 1,540 3,228
Non-Executive Director FHATEH
Dr MA Weihua BRERL 300 - - 300 - 300
900 4,805 64 5,769 2,380 8,149
2020
“EFE
Salaries,
allowances
Directors’ and benefits Retirement Share-based
fees in kind scheme Sub-total payments Total
HacmERk BRIEHH LR A B
HHE  HWER i3k ANFE EERERY T3k Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT %I W¥Tx W Tc T
(Note 32)
(H&E32)
Executive Directors WiES
Mr XU Peixin TRk 200 1,703 18 1,921 - 1,921
Mr SUN Lei RELE 200 1,536 28 1,764 2,013 3,777
Mr ZHU Dong i 200 1,416 18 1,634 - 1,634
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Dr MA Weihua B RTHE R 1 300 = - 300 - 300
900 4,655 64 5,619 2,013 7,632
There was no arrangement under which a director HE 4 A AF N BT 5L A B 3 = 5 sk TR
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the BB e (o F R
year (2020: Nil). ) o
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. A& MER

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
directors (2020: nil), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above; and four non-director employees (2020:
five non-director employees). Details of the remuneration of

the non-director highest paid employees are as follows:

ERN - A RETME ST —Z#ESR
(B A ) CGHB R #Un £ XX
Migkio) s RMAFEHEREB (ZF_F
FHAAFERERR) - HEmHMIEES
& B BT

2021 2020
D2 T
HKS$’000 HK'$000

W T oo T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B Y AR A 15,706 13,331
Pension scheme contributions FERANE I I KF T 69 90
15,774 13,421

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

B B <2 A P LA o (B 2 B B O
F R mEmATE B R B MBI

Number of individuals

A#

2021 2020
2 T FLE

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #: %1,500,001 T &

#2000,0007C - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 #%52,000,001 7T &

2 500,0007C - 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$ 3,000,000 #H2 500,001 7C &

# 3,000,0007C 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$ 3,500,000 #:%53,000,001 7T &

5 3,500,0007C 1 .
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 #H53.500,001 5 &

W 4.000,0007C 1 .
HK$4,500,001 — HK$4,500,000 7 ¥4,500,001 T &

W4 500,0007C - 1
HKS$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 7 #5,500,001 T &

# M 6,000,0007C 1 .

20214 HASBEEARL A 159



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

12. INCOMETAX

160

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in Bermuda, the Cayman Islands and the
BVI. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. In the prior year, no provision
for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the Group had
available tax losses brought forward from prior years to
offset the assessable profits generated. The PRC corporate
income tax (“CIT”) is applicable to subsidiaries located in
Mainland China. No provision for CIT has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in the
PRC during the year. All of these subsidiaries were subject
to the applicable CIT rate of 25% during the year ended 31
December 2020.

12. Fr 149 Bt

MEORE-WHEHEREBELHE
A A5 KRR B > A B T O JECRR 1
BH 2 T 55 % % JB8 i Lo T I AR AT AT BT A
Bt o A A 48 1 7 A 4 2SI 48 A 7 ok
AR AT A R vk A > I S i A o A A
BUAE M o 1 £ —4F 1> R AR A
&5 0 A 1 4 2 AT B JE e 15 AT ) LA
HE 8 P77 2 2 B R B v A > BT A A
WERIAFBLAE th B o P A SEPT AR (T4
SEPIT A1) B A T I R e ) S
28 ) o B R A A R A A TSI S AE
FE A AT ] JRE SR i P o Sl R A £ 2 B
RSB E R RES TN
=+ —HIEFEE Br A a5 i E 2 F A
29 ) A S P A5 Bl Bl A 2596 -

2021 2020
2= & —x-z
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T
(Restated)
(K& 51))
Current — the PRC AR —rh
Charge for the year GRANE 173 - 6,042
Under/(over)—provision in prior years it ﬁf 55'5 E @%% N /@/
(BB 7 (945)
Deferred 1R S (3,806) (7,565)
Total tax credit for the year from SR VNN
continuing operation ol T H1 B A BH (3,799) (2,468)
Total tax (credit)/expense for the year from B R ER R
a discontinued operation BiIE (%) /E‘IEJ <
A (5) 1,048
(3,804) (1,420)
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12. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before

tax from continuing operation at applicable tax rates are as

follows:

B 985 e 3 Wit ik

(%)

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

12. i B ()

T2 9 A B SR G 0 B T K G B R A AR
ST 2 BRALAT RS IR B AR

2021 2020
HKS$’000 HK$’000
#¥ T T
(Restated)
(R&HE )
Loss before tax from continuing F 48 48 SE S R B I S 18
operation (192,648) (236,588)
Loss before tax from A1k R SEHS R B S 1R
a discontinued operation (69,916) (108,805)
Tax at the statutory tax rate R EB R ET B R BLIE (43,323) (56,990)
Different tax rates for specific jurisdictions T E A VA RE IR
i 3 22 il (31) 1,065
Adjustments in respect of current tax of A8 A S0 D v A A T ) R
previous periods 7 (1,143)
Expenses not deductible for tax ASA] A B s 22,935 35,026
Income not subject to tax RBUA (84) (796)
Tax effect of tax losses utilised A8 A 4 T (S R ) S
from previous periods T 8L 1) 0 L 2 B¢ - (678)
Tax losses not recognised 7 e wR B S s 1R 16,692 22,215
Others HoAth - (119)
Tax credit BiIE K (3,804) (1,420)
Total tax credit from continuing operation A 4L E E: BB —1.97%
at the Group’s effective rate of —1.97% (ZFZFF T 1.04%)
(2020: —1.04%) AT KRR R
ol T H H A BH (3,799) (2,468)
Total tax charge/(credit) from AL B E B R 0.01%
a discontinued operation at the (ZFFHF10.96%)
Group’s effective rate of BRI RS R
~0.01% (2020: 0.96%) BUESC W (HR 5 483 (5) 1,048
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

162

On 26 October 2021, Bus Power entered into a termination
agreement to carly terminate the Advertising Agreement
and the Ancillary Documents with the Bus Companies
with effect from 1 November 2021. A termination fee of
approximately HK$50,716,000 was made by the Group to
the Bus Companies, in which HK$18,669,000 being the
work deposit was previously provided to the Bus Companies
upon signing of the Advertising Agreement and the remaining
HK$32,047,000 was settled on 1 November 2021. Following
the termination of the Advertising Agreement and the

Ancillary Documents, the media business was discontinued.

IR B

E/\ggiyﬁiﬂ—ﬁ — 175 H > Bus Poweri)

b toh ko R ET AR R B 4 N FD Y
ﬂiﬁ%m&ﬂﬁ%i# HoZ - —4F+—
AH—HBEER - AELEHC M E A A
5} % 11 25 49 Hs %550,716,0007T » o A ik B
18,669,000752%’55‘6HUE@%TE*%%%W

B "R AR R TR 4> R K s B
32047000755')3’\ > _—%+—H—H
BT o A Kk T Atk T BB SR AR s 1R
'ﬁﬂ%ﬁa%@ﬂ:ﬁf“

The results of Media segment for the year are presented A A R A R AT
below:
2021 2020
-z
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T
Revenue A 128,413 219,322
Expenses B (198,301) (327,893)
Finance costs il & AR (28) (234)
Loss before tax from a discontinued operation ,» %%%%E%
I o i e 48 (69,916) (108,805)
Income tax credit/ (expenses) %ﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ (F3%) 5 (1,048)
Loss for the year from a discontinued ,» %ﬁ’%’%]’%j—‘ﬁz
operation 18 (69,911) (109,853)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

The net cash flows incurred by Media segment are as follows:

13. B IEBE B ()

BRI E AR EREFHEMT

2021 2020

2= 5 —z-zrF

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T BT T
Operating activities PSSl (28,121) (26,753)
Investment activities i& &I &) 804 (2,797)
Financing activities Al 1 (2,270) (1,852)
Net cash outflow BRI R RE (29,587) (31,402)

Loss per share: e 1R

Basic, from the discontinued operation

Diluted, from the discontinued operation

B (LR ER)
B (R IR RS R

HK(5.40) cents
(5-40) ¥ il
HK(5.40) cents

(5-40) ¥ il

HK(9.64) cents
9.64) 5l
HK(9.64) cents
9.64) 5l

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from a

Il KE A SE RS B B AR I gl 1R I AR

discontinued operation are based on: LA K IHFHE -
2021 2020
-~ EEPErL
Loss attributable to owners of the Company AN T A N AL Ak HK$69,911,000 HK$109,853,000

from discontinued operation S R
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FH A BT A A B AR s 4R
in issue during the year used in the basic 2N B AT A
loss per share calculation FA) T ST 2 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares PR w5 I v e 1R
in issue during the year used in the diluted 2N B AT A
loss per share calculation FA) T ST 2 B

¥ 69,911,0007C

1,295,455,558

1,295,455,558

%109 853,0007C

1,140,093,026

1,140,093,026

2021 4F ) H&E %

MAEEARLA
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14.

15.

164

DIVIDENDS

No proposed final dividend is payable for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No final dividend in respect of the financial year ended
31 December 2020 was approved and paid during the year
(2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OFTHE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$258,760,000 (2020: loss of approximately
HK$343,973,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,295,455,558 (2020: 1,140,093,026)
in issue during the year. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares is arrived at after deducting the shares held

for the share award scheme (see note 32(a)).

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 in respect of dilution as the impact of the share
options had an anti-dilution effect in the basic earnings per

share amounts presented.
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15.
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MR RE T 4
SR LY
4 )

+=A
—F-F

ML S R AE A HEVE R R E T A
TZA=1+— EIJ}:HJTEJIET”E’JEKEHH&M
AE )

%&ﬂ%ﬁk@ﬁﬁ%%

BBRERNEGERESEIRBEANRAES
/\WEHZI-‘ETLE’J‘TE”N’E%ES 760,0007C
(9 R Eﬂﬁ%{%”ﬁé‘su 973,000

&EWE% ﬁ%%%%%
ﬂJ%Zl 295,455 5585& (ZF ZFA4F
1,140,093,026ﬂx S ﬁﬁiﬁﬂé%zi’]%l
H?u[&’%ﬁifﬁﬁé@%%ﬁ%ﬁzEﬁﬁz‘fﬁ%%
A (R EE32¢) )

(ZF=F

FH 7 S B 3B A T 2 97 A BB AR 1 P
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE

ASSETS

16. Y3 ~ W s B wix i VA B £
JH BE & B

Owned assets Right-of-use assets
HRFE g

31 December 2021 REZZ-HFZAZE-R
At31 December 2020 and REF-FEFAZ-RR

1 January 2021 i St S i Rl
Cost ik 2472 15,768 3,158 19,24 57,864 40,003 917 813 873 106,397
Accumulated depreciationand R A7 R

impairment (13,246) (241 (14,196) (2061) (19,224) (51,199) (24209 (1917) (489) (32615) (83,814)
Net arrying amount TR 3,99 - 1572 1,097 - 6,665 15,79 - ) 16,118 078
At January 2021, net of REF--F--0

accamulited depreciationand 1R B AT K i

impairment 3,99 - 1572 1,097 - 6,665 15,79 - 4 16,118 08
Reversal of impairment RERR - - 404 40 - 804 - - - - 804
Depreciation provided R

during the year (2,005) - (5%9) (341) - (2,905) (10517) - (162) (10679) (13,584)
Disposal i - - (404) (400) - (804) - - - - (804)
A3 December 020 netof — REFZEFZAZT-H

accumulated depreciation and B BB Rl

impairment 191 - 108 736 - 3,760 507 - 162 5,439 9,199
31 December 2021 RZFZ-F+ZA=+-H
Cost ik 6536 - 2,763 1,690 - 11,009 39,236 - 813 40,049 51,058
Accumulated depreciation and Lt Rm

impairment (4,363) - (1,750) (934) - (149) (33,959) - (651) (34,610) (41,859)
Net carrying amount TR 1,991 - 1013 756 - 3,760 5077 - 162 5439 9,199
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31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS (continued)

16. Y13 ~ W5 B s i VA B fif
FH HE

Owned assets Right-of-use assets
AENE (il e
Audio
Leaschold and visual Hardvare Furniture Motor
improvements cquipment — and software~ and fitures Pancls Subtotal Buldings Bilboards Pancls hidle Subtotal Toal
fgHEKE BERh  ERRRE  REREE [ it [ £ A 5] it it st
31 December 2020 CECREFCHZ R
At January 2020 REF-FE-A-H
Cost fik 17,102 2476 16,564 3863 16,593 56,59 41,694 1839 7917 §13 52,263 108,861
Accumulated depreciation and 2t B Rl
impairment 9,149) (0.444) (13,415) 017 (6,030) (33,215 (11,63) (119 (1,639) (326) (14,316) #7,531)
Net carrying amount IR 7953 3 3,149 1,686 10,563 338 30,061 1,10 679 487 37,947 61,330
At 1 January 2020, et of RZZ-ZE-A-R,
accumulated depreciation and B BB Rl
impaiment 7953 3 3,149 1,686 10,363 23383 30,061 1,120 6279 481 1947 61,330
Additons rote 17) T8 (Wit 140 - Bl 17 1631 330 5,889 - - - 5,889 9,001
Lesse modificaton note 17) REBT (Kit7) = = = = = = 825) = = = 82) 825)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEREAR - - (13) - - (13) - - - - - (13)
Depreciation provided FRirkit
during the year (3,146) ) (%34) 406) (1978) (6,468) (133M) (7)) 819) (163) (15,108) (21,576
Impairment Wi 1) (8) (1,154) (200) (11,216) (13,549) (5.957) (368) (5:460) B (11,785) (25,334)
At 31 December 2020 net of REZFZBEFZA=1-H-
accumulted deprecationand R BFHTE R (E
impairment 3,99 - 1,57 1,097 - 6,665 15,79 - - pil) 16,118 2,783
At 31 December 2020 REFZFET-AZL-H
Cost A 17,41 2141 15,768 3,158 19,04 57,864 40,003 - 7917 813 873 106,597
Accumulated depreciationand A7 Kb
impairment (13,46) 04 (14,196) 2,061) (19,24) (51,199) (24,209) - 7917 459) (32,615) (83,814)
Net carrying amount T ¥ 3,99 = 157 1,097 = 6,665 15,794 = - M 16,118 20,78

In the prior year, the Group’s management considered that
the media business continued to be adversely affected by
the unfavourable market situation and an impairment loss of
HK$25,334,000 was recognised to write down the carrying
amounts of the related items of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to their recoverable amounts of
approximately zero based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a period of the remaining licence period of the Bus-body
licence agreement with Citybus Limited and New World First
Bus Services Limited. The pre-tax discount rate applied for
the cash flow projection was 15.66%.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. LEASES 17.

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings, billboards, panels
and a motor vehicle used in its operations. Certain equipment
and others generally have lease terms of 12 months or less
and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.

(a) Rigb t-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Groupys right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are further set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

W 5 i 3 B Wk (4
31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

il

A 55 1A 2 R AL

AL BT TR 605 RO M T B 5 AR - TR
FEAE MR E S 4 oo T s i o H
i T H A AE 8 128 H B LR &
oy A ] g AR A (L - — M 5 > ASEE AN
16 A £ 8] DA S0 - WA o AELAH B

(a) EHRER 7
A B [ 4 P (R O E 110 R T (L %
Bl 1 O £R S BB R M e o

(b) #E A
A R B RO R T (B S S B AN T
2021 2020
St S Sl S s
HK$’000 HK'$ 000

W T o T T

Carrying amount at 1 January w—H—H IR E 22,178 34,517
New leases (note 16) WS (Mitie) - 5,889
Lease modification &g BT (150) (825)
Accretion of interest recognised GANIER T PSS

during the year 396 773
Payments 5 3K (14,651) (18,176)
Carrying amount at 31 December WR+H+ZH=+—HK

iR TH {EL 7,773 22,178

Analysed into: SHTINE

Current portion i B 43 7,773 14,405

Non-current portion I Ui B &8 43 - 7,773

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.

R 5 18 2 B0 H o3 A B s ik
Wi k3948 5 o
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31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

17. LEASES (continued) 17.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(C) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

ME (@)
A A B RN (40)
() T8 %5 FE R ) A S AR B SR JE I R -

2021 2020
= e e
HK$’000 HK$’000

W Tou T T

Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 396 773
Depreciation charge of right-of-use 6 R & PE T EE B S

assets (note 16) (KiiE16) 10,679 15,108
Expenses relating to short-term leases BT E 2 B 2 1,000 406
Impairment of right-of-use assets it A 7 ek M - 11,785
Gain on lease modification GENRC NS (150) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss AR 2 R Y AR 11,925 28,072

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain of its buildings in Hong Kong
under operating lease arrangement. The terms of the leases
generally require a related company to pay a security deposit
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was HK$307,000 (2020:
HK$206,000), details of which are included in note 36 to the

financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

A 45 AR 2t A A

AL EAR PR RET E TP U A
T 48 5 o FH A5 OB H R B WS A X
A5 0 4 Sl AR B 7 IR BELAT T U0 A2 9 R A
Lo AEEPAENHEROHES LA L
¥307,0007C ( & —F 4 i 206,000
TG) o oI O B R M 3e o

BoE o —EF A=t —HAEH
B PRI ARG EHEE N2
R A [T 2Rl B0 s AL S TR A T

2021 2020
= e e
HK$’000 HK$’000

W T oo T T

Within one year — R

307 206
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31 December 2021 —HF _—4HF+_H=+—H
. GOODWILL 18. &
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2020 W_FE_FE—H—H
Cost A 178,444
Accumulated impairment BETE -
Net carrying amount TRE(EN 178,444
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment N FEZFFE—H—HB A
F0Bx B 5 E 178,444
Impairment during the year A B ok (B (99,890)
At 31 December 2020 WoEFZFET+ZH =+ —H 78,554
At 31 December 2020: AR REH A=+ —H
Cost A 178,444
Accumulated impairment BEHE (99,890)
Net carrying amount EIRE [ 78,554
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment MEFEZ—F—H—HWEA
1FR 2 5t (H 78,554
Impairment during the year A B Yok (EL (78,554)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 W_E - —%+_HA=+—H
Y A % MR T % (L =
At 31 December 2021: W_E - —F+-A=+—H:
Cost A 178,444
Accumulated impairment BEHE (178,444)
Net carrying amount H T V(L -

& mhAE A R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

18. GOODWTILL (continued)

170

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(CGUs), where are the investment advisory services and fund

management business.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the investment
advisory services and fund management business amounting
to HK$29,845,000 (2020: HK$143,528,000) is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on historical data and financial budgets
approved by the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) covering an eight-year (2020: eight-year) period.
Cash flows beyond the eight-year (2020: eight-year) period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the businesses in which the CGU
of the investment advisory services and fund management
business operates. The directors adopted a financial budget
of an eight-year (2020: eight-year) period to demonstrate a
more appropriate change in free cash flows before applying
the terminal value in the value-in-use calculation. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate which is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

For the investment advisory services and fund management
business, the key assumptions used in the value-in-use

18. RG22 (%)

TR 2 A B

AR IR TR 4 R ([H
AL o RPRE B R IR A4
FHEET o

&=

pier
E]

WERBMBRE R ESEHELNR &L
JEE L7 1) AT oA [ < B S <29, 845,0007T (
T T k¥ 143,528,0007T ) i 4 AE
HEtEEE - AT EAHSRE
FEH - AR PRI S B AR AT E R ([#
H)GHAZH N (T FFE)\HF)
B PR BT SR o NI (T B4 )
% 4R 22 RAR ISR
R o T A R R R
BRI RS M B B B G A E R
MEENEBRN RN FHHERER &
ERANFMBBEEAE (T FF: N\
AEH) > DARERA A BB A R R E AR
AR R A (E A AL B B R o B
BRI BRI E Il B
R BRI B S W R BR B 4 AR EE BT 1Y
5 5 AR -

MK R IR M IS B ERN S
TR AERN B RERREEM R

calculations in 2021 and 2020 are as follows: BEZ FEMBWT :
2021 2020
—2= & —z-z
% of revenue growth Iz R H 4 b Nil to 5% Nil to 3%
ZE5% F 3%
Long term growth rate R R R 2.5% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate Bl AT B B R 15% 15%

An independent valuation was performed by an external
valuer for the 2021 and 2020 impairment assessment.

As at 31 December 2021, based on value-in-use calculation,
it was determined that the carrying value of the CGU of the
investment advisory services and fund management business
was greater than its recoverable amount, resulting in an
impairment loss of HK$78,554,000 (2020: HK$99,890,000)

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2021

Cost at 1 January 2021, net of

accumulated amortisation and

ZF2-E+ZA=4—H

RoEZ—F—H—HK
WA > bR Bt 8 )

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

19. BIE & =

impairment WA 4,472 17,219 27,953 - 49,644
Amortisation provided A [ 8 1 A
during the year - (5,740) (3,494) - (9,234)
Impairment during the year A 1R 36 - (11,479) (2,355) - (13,834)
At 31 December 2021 e 3
+ZH=+—H 4,472 - 22,104 - 26,576
At 31 December 2021: i ek s
TZH=+—H:
Cost A 4,472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation and 2GS RO
impairment - (28,699) (12,837) (468) (42,004)
Net carrying amount HR T 35 (8 4,472 - 22,104 - 26,576
Fund Customer Website and
Licence contracts relationship mobile apps Total
FE SR
M BEEA%  FFEE EAER At
HKS$'000 HKs'000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
WL wETo  w%Tx B¥Tr  wWTx
31 December 2020 “RIREFZAZT—H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of RZEZEF—H—HH
accumulated amortisation and A B BT S KO A
impairment 4,472 22,959 31,447 41 58,919
Amortisation provided during the year A PRy B4 6 45 = (5,740) (3,494) (6) (9,240)
Impairment during the year N (E - - - (35) (35)
At 31 December 2020 i - id
+=H=+—H 447 17,219 27,953 - 49,644
At 31 December 2020: R-F_FHE
ToAEt—R:
Cost A 4472 28,699 34,941 468 68,580
Accumulated amortisation and RIS RO
impairment - (11,480) (6,988) (468) (18,936)
Net carrying amount R T 15 (B 4472 17,219 27,953 - 49,644
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

172

Note:

In assessing the useful life of the licence, due consideration is given
to the existing longevity of licence, the life cycle of the industry in
which the Group operates and the renewal barriers of the licence
in the future. In light of these considerations, no factor could be
identified that would result in the licence having a finite useful life
and accordingly the licence has been assessed as having an indefinite
useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which

the licence is expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.

The Group’s intangible assets were allocated to the investment
advisory services and fund management business CGU for
impairment assessment. As at 31 December 2021, since the
operation of this CGU was challenged by the unfavourable market
situation, the corresponding recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets were significantly reduced. Based on managcmcnt’s estimates,
an impairment of HK$13,834,000 (2020: HK$35,000) was
recognised to write down the carrying amounts of these items to
their recoverable amounts of approximately HK$26,576,000 (2020:
HK$49,644,000) based on value-in-use calculations applied for the
impairment assessment of goodwill as detailed in note 18 to the

financial statements.

In addition, the sequence of impairment of intangible assets was
made with reference to the profitability of the underlying activities
in the CGU. Since the fund management business suffers losses in
the current year, full impairment of HK$11,479,000 was provided
for the fund contracts and impairment of HK$2,355,000 was then
provided for customer relationships which related to the investment

advisory services business.
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19. B & & (4)

TR T Ak R BR Y AT ARSI > T8 B E
i B B A O - A 4 I T TE AT 3
¥ A i 4 ) e A A6 0 AR R IR I IR TR o ik
T % 55 75 i, > I e 5 BT A A B e R
A A B AT T AR T A PR E > S R T TE D 2
s L2 [ 27 A A8 37 ) 4 B4 30 i Sl 4R T BB
il PRI O e A L R A 2 B A SRR AT
G

A 42 W TR A A T & BOA R IR B
o ik 4 5 BH 2B HS B 4 A A B0 D E AT
Hifi - —FE - —F T+ _H=1T—H>
H S #% B 4 A AR B0 1 2 B R R T
R B > TR Y AE R AT TR 4 A K
kD o AR R R 00 A R B E R (E
#13,834,00000 ( =& ZF 4 ##35,000
J6) > PUME % 45 TE B R BR T R O AT
Ui [8] 4 %8 49 s %526,576,00000 ( & &
A 49 644,000 ) o A U [0] 4 KE AR B
JRE FED % T 3 B Ay A o P (L w0 (L o
FE > wE R B R M R as o

W Ah > TR Y W AE T )Y 2% B 4
Az B KA B IS B 0 22 R BE T AR o B R
FE 4 A5 B JEH P A AF BE B AS e 4R B
G A A B BT AR k(B W 11,479,000 > BE
1% wh B 4% R R IR S 2E A B K T BRAR
w4 ok (5 52,355,000 7T ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
St % e e i i ( 46)

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 20. FEAT SR H ~ 144 B B il JE
OTHER RECEIVABLES I B 3%
2021 2020
R R
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T oo T T

Prepayments TEAT A 1,323 3,290
Deposits and other receivables ¢ 4 B HAth BB Wi R 3k 6,500 17,733
7,823 21,023
Impairment allowance NRIERE L ]
— prepayments - ?E'T‘_J' Bé‘k IE - (1 ,416)
— other receivables — JHCAth, 1 i HE K (430) (573)
(430) (1,989)
7,393 19,034
Portion classified as non-current assets SRR EREEER
#B 43 - (13,881)
Current portion R e 7,393 5,153
As at 31 December 2020, the prepayments included a W ER EFEF A=+ —H T
prepayment made for acquisition of property, plant and TH AL 35 7 1B SE 15 I B 3 e MRk
cquipment for the Media Business of HK$1,416,000. The A 1 TELASE 2CTE 5 1 ,416,0000C > H A FHAT
estimated recoverable amount of which was approximated Wi B 4 RE AT R T SR A A AE (B R
to zero based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow B A A (R AR B B ek 2 FRA A
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining Kot A8 — B R B A RA R 5T/
license period of the Bus-body license agreement with B2 - B By 4 T 10 v R B R R U 9 B BOTE
Citybus Limited and New World First Bus Services Limited. BERMWBESRENEE -HEeREE
The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow projection T BT Bk A B 0 i B B 28 5 15.66% o B
was 15.66%. The prepayment of HK$1,416,000 was written PRSI EEY RE _F ——F
off during the year ended 31 December 2021 as a result of + = H =+ — B 14RO TE AT B OE
the discontinuation of the media business. e ,416,0007C ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

174

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent work
deposits, rental deposits and utility deposits, consideration
receivable from disposal of a subsidiary, and staff redundance
receivables. Where applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default. In the situation where no credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group assessed that the loss allowance under the
application of HKFRS 9 was insignificant.

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

20. VEAF 3K JH ~ % & M 3L At B

W B 3% ()

e 4 % A (R K E B9 TAR (R
AH 4% 5 By 3 SR < B TR
J& 2 ) B R AR % R AR B AR o
2o B 0 25 RE 7R 2 /Y AT RE TR AEAT
AR 7> AT (A 28 ) o v 488 95 ik ol £ 4
Ao TH A5 Bl 1878 i 2 % A 4R B A
s 18 A B (6 ) S 18 R IR AT MG R o B 18
2566 TP R R A0 A R DA S B R IR DL K
TR ACKEFEARDL « & —F = —4F K —
FoTESH =+ —H AEE A
W ot T 5 o YR D) SR oS A i 4R
BHAA TR

A B S K S (A 498 A 9 52 ) B
T

Expected credit losses

B EEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FfEB ol Bt LRl st
57000 $7000 $7000 $7000
BT BT BT T BT
At 1 January 2020 REZFZTE
—H—H = = 76 76
Impairment losses W (518 45 = 528 573
Amount written off as L H 8 Fr A mT i [e]
uncollectible 28 = - (76) (76)
At 31 December 2020 and " i
1 January 2021 FZA=Zt—HkK
“F_—%—-—H 45 - 528 573
(Reversal)/provision of impairment losses WAE R () /ﬁ;ﬂ% (45) = (98) (143)
At 31 December 2021 N F A
+-HA=1+—H - - 430 430

The financial assets included in the above balances classified
as stage 1 relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2021, the loss allowance for balances classified as stage 3 was
assessed with the probability of default ranging from 75% to
100% (2020: 50% to 100%) and loss given default at 65%
(2020: 41%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIRVALUE 21. &2 A B A ANEZE 2 4

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

il

v
& e
2021 2020
R TR
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000

Bt W T oo T T

Listed equity investment, at fair value A REEFEZ (a)
iR E 1,749 6,333
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value A REEFEZ (b)
I bl R RERE 2,000 -
Private equity fund, at fair value A REHEFEZ (c)
FLBE R HE B & 71,274 95,043
75,023 101,376
Portion classified as non-current assets NEAEEREIEEN
Py (2,000) -
Current portion s e 73,023 101,376

(a) Listed equity investment, at fair value

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a net
unrealised fair value loss on listed equity investment
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$1,290,000 (2020:
HK$3,446,000) was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

(b) Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

During the year, the Group subscribed 10%
shareholding interest in a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong at a total consideration
of HK$2,000,000. The board of directors considered
the Group has neither significant influence nor joint
control over the investment and therefore it is classified
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
in accordance with the requirements under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments. No change in fair value was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

(a)

(b)

Egﬁ%ﬁ%%itﬁﬁﬁ

BE-_F- 4+ _HA=+—HI
RS HB LT REREZ A AE
ﬁ%@%@%l@ﬂﬁﬁi%ﬁ%%%l 290,000
JC (& R AR 1%%344600075)
Eﬁﬂ-?“?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%—”o

%o R R Z IR B ik
RE % &

AR > AR 4R B R — TR A U s T
FST B FA NN B B 1095 HE - A8 AR
£ H5 52,000,00070 © # H G 7R 50 A
LEEHZ AN EE KRS IR
g T R] $2 )AE > R U AR 98 G Vs B
B e Ry oy &/ TR MW
A B A s nEEF AR
i 1 4 Rl o %&Eﬂﬁ/\fﬁﬁﬁ & )
R EEA B RN ERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 25 e o Pt (46)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. iff

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(c) Private equity fund, at fair value

On 22 February 2019, Premier Future Limited
(“Premier Future”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and BeiTai Investment Limited (the
“General Partner”), an independent third party of
the Company and its connected person (as defined
under the Listing Rules) (“independent third
party(ies)”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Premier Future has agreed to
subscribe for limited partner interests in BeiTai
Investment LP (the “Investment Fund”). As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s capital contribution
amounted to HK$77,000,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$103,000,000), representing 71% (31 December
2020: 71%) of the aggregated capital contributed
by all partners in the Investment Fund, which was
reduced by HK$26,000,000 from HK$103,000,000
as at 31 December 2020 due to the withdrawal of
capital contribution in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the amended and restated limited
partnership agreement for BeiTai Investment LP dated
20 March 2020 as determined by the general partner
of the Investment Fund at its discretion. The remaining
capital contributions to the Investment Fund were
contributed as to 19% (2020: 21%) at HK$21,000,000
(2020: HK$31,000,000) by Fullbest Star Limited
(“Fullbest”), a company wholly-owned by a close
family member of an ex-director of a subsidiary of the
Company during the year ; and as to 10% (2020: 8%) at
HK5$11,000,000 (2020: HK$11,000,000) by a private
equity fund managed by the Company’s subsidiary. The
Investment Fund is not consolidated in the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.
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ﬁ/{\ g quz H= + H > Premier
Future Limited ([ Premier Future | > —
%ZIKZ\EIE‘J%%?W%Q}@)E@BQTM
Investment Limited rﬁﬁA%AJ 5
Zl—‘/z}ﬁJ&, B AL (Eg A (b
Tﬁ%ﬁﬂw B M8 37 A = 75 KA
=y %Tn /H%T%}JJ %lﬂﬁpremier
FutureI—J = n;u E%BEITaI Investment LP

(TREEE])WARA YRS R
“EF - —Ft+ZA=1+—H: ZIK%
B 1Y 1 #E A W 1577,000,0007T (-
TR 5 %9103,000,0007T ) 0 A6
B4 A B 5 4 0k A
71% (ZF ZF4F:71%) > W B
“EZEFE++ A=+t —HZ#H
#5103,000,0007C ¥, 2 #5 #526,000,000
I > JI A A AR T AR R R
WA NG E W B A =
9::45'5 = H —+ H ZBeiTai Investment

LPREAEw] I H A A BR G 5% Wh ok 2

KRG A R R 3 R T B - AR N R
%‘ﬁ Z 8% T {F & M Fullbest Star
Limited ([ Fullbest J > H 4 2 /) — [
WEAFR —ZAERZHRBES
EHEA 2 AF) BE19% (ZFEFE
A 019% ) BD i %21,000,0000C (- F
TR AR Y H31,000,0000C) 0 M H AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Private equity fund, at fair value (continued)

The Investment Fund is a close-end private equity fund
structured as a limited partnership in the Cayman Islands
with an investment objective to achieve long-term capital
appreciation through investments in convertible bonds and
other investments. Under the partnership agreement, none
of the limited partners may take any part in the conduct of
the business of the Investment Fund or be involved in the
making of any investment decision of the Investment Fund,
and is subject to the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Subject to certain kick-
out conditions, the General Partner may determine to invest
in debt securities or equity securities of both private and
listed companies in Hong Kong or elsewhere or by investing
in such other financial instruments, and shall act at all times
in good faith. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has neither significant influence nor joint control over the
Investment Fund and therefore it is classified as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
the requirements under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any unpaid
capital commitment in the Investment Fund (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the underlying investments of the
Investment Fund included equity securities of a Hong Kong
listed entity which is independent of the Group; an unsecured
redeemable bond which was stated at the carrying value at its
principal amount of HK$22 million at fixed coupon of 15%
as at 31 December 2021 with a maturity date of 18 January
2022 issued by Emerge Ventures Limited (the “EV Bond”),
a private entity in Hong Kong which is wholly-owned by a
business associate of a close family member of Mr. Xu; and
equity securities of and an unlisted unsecured redeemable
bond which was stated at the carrying value at its principal
amount of HK$43 million at fixed coupon of 8% as at 31
December 2021 with original and extended maturity date of
11 December 2021 and 15 February 2022, respectively, and
issued by A Metaverse Company (‘“AMC”) (previously known
as Starrise Media Holdings Limited) (the “AMC Bond”)
in which Mr. Xu holds a less than 30% indirect beneficial
interest. The Group’s share of the carrying values of the two
unsecured redeemable bonds amounted to $46,150,000 as at
31 December 2021.

S 255 e Ptk (46)

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. ¥ A R fEM G ABE Z &

& (4)

%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁiiﬁ%%%%ﬁ
b=
BWERESHHHARLIERAMERES LI
SHEAREEGE 2 EME T BE
H AL 2 40 4 8 A A 2 S HAth 4%
EEHRMEAMBE - RBEAE R
WMEAR G NGRS TGRS EH
AR NS 2 B AT T 3 G ok > i
ZRNHSEHEERCGRBEEGHE
(BAER]) - BIFEA T BRIMEM > L@ S
W O] % A v B A 0 FA N R
EHARIMERE SRS RS
Hih 4w TH W H—HEmirE - EF
TRy AN AR B B A L 4 W A R Y
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P A] B 2 (TR R mE SR > UK
—LFHAR ([—HFEH | e ZEH
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31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE  21. #%

178

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

Private equity fund, at fair value (continued)

The Group’s interest in the Investment Fund is accounted for
as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss based
on the share of the net asset value of the Investment Fund
because its contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest. During the year ended 31 December
2021, net unrealised fair value gain of approximately
HK$2,231,000 (2020: net unrealised loss of HK$82,409,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the total
accrued coupon interest as at year end for both the EV Bond
and the HMC Bond had been subsequently settled while the
bonds had not been redeemed upon their respective maturity
dates.

On 22 February 2022, the Investment Fund has reached the
end of the investment term. The General Partner has initiated
the liquidation process of the Investment Fund by realising the
underlying investments by sales of the listed equity securities
on stock exchanges and redemption of bonds. The proceeds
from the liquidation of the Investment Fund (after deducting
the handling charges) are expected to be recovered by the
Group before the end of 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

B 985 ¥ A it ik (48

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

22. JE WL IR 3K

2021 2020
= e
HKS$’000 HK$ 000

W Tou T T

Accounts receivable B WA B K 64,230 79,783
Impairment T AE (19,822) (2,197)
44,408 77,586

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
30 to 90 days from the date of billings. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivable and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are

non—interest—bearing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an account
receivable amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2020:
HK$1,200,000) before impairment of HK$1,200,000 (2020:
HK$540,000) that was due from AMC in which Mr. Xu
Peixin had a less than 30% indirect beneficial interest since
April 2020. Such account receivable was repayable on credit
terms similar to those offered to major customers of the

Group.

AEEBEHEFNE SRR EELFEE
e & F — ﬁ’i BT BRI 5 &
H— B AIRE HESB0E0H - BEEST
BIak A e (5 PR AR - Zl—‘%@ﬁ)‘]ﬁé‘%
MRS B 5&1“%?5_@451* R
%fﬁﬂjﬁlﬁ'ﬁm ’“F%iﬂ[‘xzom&%
IEAE%EH%%LE%K?X o
1 M A 4 ) ' ) I A kB oK B R[] &%
F A B > il 4 E R A B 4 P R o AR
191 S 4 55k EL B T R A R R A R R AT AT
%gﬁmdz/ﬁm%%mﬁma o JiEE Wi HiE K
:wﬁuut’

AEFAR _F_—F+_H=+—HMW
JE Wi B K 2 s 2ooooom(¥?g$
E {%%1 200,0007G) > A FIBR BE UL — T
fff‘(ﬂiﬁ’“f‘aiﬁgig Elﬂlﬂi
hﬁ.u A 7D A 3091 [H 42 45 1 4 ) 1Y
T)\Iﬁﬂﬁ{%”f% 200,0007C ( % T4 ¢
7 H5540,0007T ) © 7% 4 FE ISR 3R 0 5 B
BRI P AREE EEE ST A -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

180

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

22. EWL IR 3% (@)

T S R B WSCHR K (B M 1R B4
B H R ARE S T ef B R

2021 2020
SR B R

HKS$’000 HKS$ 000

BT BT

Within 1 month D 1R A 36,467 67,653
1 to 2 months 152218 H 3,693 2,934
2 to 3 months 2% 38 H 2,510 1,404
3 to 12 months 3z 1218 A 1,530 2,825
Over 1 year A — 4 208 2,770
44,408 77,586

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

accounts receivable are as follows:

B W SR ok 1M 1R AR P S B

2021 2020

2= & —z-zk

HKS$’000 HK$’000

#HT U BT

At beginning of year )| 2,197 1,037
Impairment losses T H 5 18 18,910 1,427
Bad debts recovered B AR i [m] (70) —
Amounts written off as uncollectible L AB 1 AS AT i ] 4 (1,215) (267)
At end of year R 19,822 2,197

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region, service type, and customer
type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021

T2l A H O X BT 8 A R e A AT el (E
o3 AT - DLaT B (G B - B R R
?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁwﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂgﬁlg}gﬁ\%ﬁiﬁ
175 48 (RO b I~ i 85 BRI~ % 5 BRI K
FF AR ) T B ) H BT & e s% R A R A
RPNAE &5~ & W IR B (E B R i H
AT 15 09 A BR A 2 S 1 RIIR A R
8 9 1R W 7 ’J/\Iiﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ
— M o M R K An A A R A — AR
UF 78 32 BR 7 8 3047 15 8 R DA



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)  22. JE W IR 3K (4)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk B A O B A S E@}%Wﬁ&
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a PrOViSiOn %ﬁ Eg {;gﬁgﬁ g*’ﬂ'ﬁﬁ” ﬁu—F :
matrix:
Financial Services Business (continuing ERREXEE (FEARBER)
operation)
As at 31 December 2021 W _Z_—4#+_H=+—H

Past due

i )

Expected credit loss rate Tﬁ ﬁ}i ’F“ BlEH% 33.09% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 90.48% 48.87%
Gross carrying amount (HKS’000) AE OB¥TT) 28,319 10 200 50 11,042 39,618
Expected credit loss* (HK$’000) TE,%%. Bl (BT o) 9,370 - - - 9,991 19,361
As at 31 December 2020 W _EFEFH=1—H
Past due
Within 1to?2 2t03 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total
e SR A 1Z28 A E3MA E3MEA M5t
Expected credit loss rate iR ULER ] R 0.09% 0.00% - - 22.41% 3.38%
Gross carrying amount (HKS’000) W A (B %T o) 26,784 2,945 . - 5,154 34,883
Expected credit loss* (HKs'000) MG SRR (B%Tor) 25 - - - 1,155 1,180
& Included in the balance was impairment for receivables derived @%ﬁﬁgéﬁﬁ%iﬁéiﬁgﬂ%q&%ﬁ@ﬁ%%
from fund management business of HK$15,620,000 (2020: Nil). 15,620,0007C ( =& "4 - ) o AR $E AL & 09
The assessment of recoverability for the accounts receivable from %ﬂkﬁ& ﬁi‘%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ&%ﬂ@ﬂﬂ& [
cach fund based on the financial position and settlement pattern of P o
each fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continuedy 22, MEWCHR 3k (41)

Media Business (discontinued operation) R (RIEREEE)
As at 31 December 2021 w_E2_—4#4#+_H=+—H
Past due
i i

Expected credit loss rate HREERE 0.01% 0.11% 0.09% 0.04% 39.52% 1.87%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) R A8 (T o) 10,861 6,658 3,496 2,461 1,136 24,612
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) FE BEE (BT ) 1 7 3 1 449 461

As at 31 December 2020 W oEFEFFE+_H=1+—H

Past due
i

Within 1to?2 2t03 Over
Current 1 month months months 3 months Total
e PR A 1528 A E3EA EEsEA M5t
Expected credit loss rate HMREERE 0.03% 0.21% 0.71% 1.13% 37.52% 2.07%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) JE T 440 (% T or) 32,608 5,362 2,955 1,419 2,556 44,900
Expected credit loss (HK$'000) FIfE S EE (% T o) 10 11 21 16 959 1,017
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

W05 R Wk (4])
31 December 2021 —F - —F+_H=+—H
23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 23. JBE W Bk

2021 2020
S= R —z-zx
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT BT T
Secured PEE L - 13,543
Unsecured 40E HE 47,528 73,562
Impairment allowance T 18 A (23,042) (389)
24,486 86,716
Non-current FE L) 10,783 -
Current i Eh 13,703 86,716
24,486 86,716

The loans were made to three (2020: four) independent third

parties with effective interest rates ranging from 5% to 12%

(2020: 5% to 12%) per annum and are repayable within one

to two years (2020: one year).

During the year, provision of expected credit losses of
approximately HK$22,653,000 was recognised (2020:
reversal of HK$2,019,000) (note 7) in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Movement in expected credit losses is as follows:

ZERERECRBETF 2B IE = (—
TR L) > BEBRERRB5%E
12% ( ZF ZFF 1 5%F12%) dﬁfﬁﬁ/‘—
B NER (D FF 1)

EN R EEER
T 49 15 522,653,000 7T (

36 2% e U0 £ 5
SR Sr ZOF

o] 5 #62.019,0007C) (B EE7) o

HIE SRR T

Expected credit losses

BEE ik E
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1P B 5ol Bt 530 B Rt
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
wHTor  w¥Tr B%To w¥Tx
At 1 January 2020 R_F T
—H—H 2,771 2,531 - 5,302
Reversal of impairment RN 25 mRE
losses, net (2,019) - - (2,019)
Disposal of subsidiaries B B 2 (363) (2,531) - (2,894)
At 31 December 2020 and N T R
1 January 2021 +ZA=t—0 Rk
—F-—4—H—H 389 - - 389
Impairment losses, net RN EisRE R (389) - 23,042 22,653
At 31 December 2021 WE
+—-H=+—H - . 23,042 23,042
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 e e P BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

23. MEWC B K ()

e AR % A R AE B R AR A R o S
T H =4 — B SR W EE AT 2

classification is as follows: T

23. LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December
by the Company’s internal credit rating and year-end

BB
As at 31 December 2021 +ZHA=+—H
Internal rating grade WS (5 BT
Cc/CccC C/CCC - - 47,528 47,528
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
AEHEBEN  FEBEW
EAEY BEEHENG BEZEHN
e S S FEER BENGFEER BENGEEER
As at 31 December 2020 +-H=1+—H (1B (P Bt (3B Mt
Internal rating grade W5 B FFH
BB BB 17,963 = = 17,963
B B 13,543 - - 13,543
B B- 55,599 - - 55,599
87,105 = = 87,105
BB: Obligations rated BB are judged to be speculative BB : BB B A [A] A B ME 0 A FE K

and are subject to substantial credit risk. {55 B0 B o
Band B : B MB—#k & R A B MEW A

B and B—: Obligations rated B and B— are considered
= 15 BB

speculative and are subject to high credit risk.

c/cccH ARl AR B
Rl fe (B JE & ) &4 H
AT fe i 8] AR 4 J A B, o

C/CCC:  Obligations rated C/CCC are highly speculative c/CCC -

and are likely in, or very near, default with some

prospect of recovery of principal and interest.
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24.

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

LOANTO/AMOUNT DUE FROM
RELATED COMPANIES

The balances are with related companies which are controlled

by or otherwise related to a close family member of Mr. Xu.

Disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations which is applicable to the amount due from a

related company, is as follows:

24,

B 985 e 3 Wit ik

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

4 1 B ok 23 W 2 SRRk
W 156 W6k 2 ) K JH

B A B T BB A ) (BRI
B ¥ 1 K B H A 7 X SR 2 0
RHLATB) -

1‘%% CRU A AR 55383(1)d)h X <</4}
(B % 38 =5 01 4 ERE) B 25330 (@
JW?ELI&I ] [ W A ) R IEL) Tﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂT

(#8)

At 1 January
2020,
Maximum 31 December
At amount 2020 and
31 December outstanding 1 January Security
2021 during the year 2021 held
R-F R
—“H—H->
i e 2.3
+=A
REFZ—4 =t—HRk
+=A ENERE —FZ
=t+—H AEEE®  FEHAH i 46 490
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Amount due from a related company B BB A AHE
Bison Finance & Credit Limited AHGEARAH 513 513 206 None

The amount due from a related company is interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2021, the loan to a related company
in the amount of HK$5,665,000 (2020: nil) (which is not
a connected person under the Listing Rules) is interest-
bearing at 10% (2020: Nil) per annum and repayable in May
2022. During the year, a provision for expected credit loss of
approximately HK$381,000 (2020: nil) was made (note 7)

and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Bank guarantees in the amount of HK$31,000,000 were
provided in the prior years to independent third parties in
connection with due performance and payment under certain
licence agreements entered into by certain subsidiaries.
As at 31 December 2021, the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$31,000,000 has been paid pursuant to the
bank guarantees.

As at 31 December 2021, the remaining deposits amounting
to HK$1,175,000 (2020: HKs1,175,000) were pledged for
the corporate credit cards issued to the Group.

25.

JE WS I i )RR A e S SRR A B R
R -

W oEFE 4+ HA=+—H - &HTH
o \) (Sl FF b TR R JE R 2 B J\j&)
Z B HE M5 665,00000 ( T AR 4
AR R 100 (% — RAF < 4E) ntu&é,ﬁ
W oFE A AAMEE-FNEFHEE
%‘ﬂ“ﬁléﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ%‘w 0007C ( —~ &
TR AE) (W EE7) O £ 18 25 % A T

L/
ol

C 1K # 72 3K

I I o S E I NN 1 1 2l
N2 HE TR RE T %5
KB AT 10 M 5L 5 = ﬁhﬁé
31,000,0007C & $R 47 ¥ & - A —
oA =4 H o R AT ’T?/TJ\‘
31,000,0007G £ AR 45 SR AT 46 (R A i -

/
—

W_EFZ—F+HA=1T—H- B TW
A7 2K 5 8 801,175,00000 (& O RA4F i
#51,175,0007C ) B 5k A< 4 0 2 6 1 2 7 £
R AE R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4F+—"H=+—H
26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. Bl LB &EEHY
2021 2020
—F o T FH
HK$’000 HK'$’ 000
BTt BT T
Cash and bank balances B4 R AT &5 B 142,397 146,901
Non-pledged time deposits FEHCH E B f7 K 5,040 5,038
Cash and cash equivalents W& B E 5 EY 147,437 151,939

27.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) amounted
to HK$114,114,000 (2020: HK$121,358,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and six months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

An ageing analysis of accounts payable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

27.

AR AREEUNRKE (TARE])
FH B Y B 4 A SR AT & Bk 2 W 114,114,000
g (& ZF A @ ¥ 121,358,00000) ° A
WK 0] B 50 5 H Ath B 8> SR AR
P8 P B K BE R COMEEAS BRI K (&
BfE ~ B2 R Be AoF BB B RSB ) > A4 [ ]
7R R RE AT AN RS R RAT AR
e o ¥ 2y H At R -

SRAT B 5 LA A A7 K R AL TR B A ARGt
B o S W E WA AR IR — i A — H &
ANAR A R S BT A 42 B Y BB R
SR RE - S % 45 0 S U3 A RO 3R i R
FLE > BRAT &5 B B A7 A7 O 2 30 2
HFC ek BAG B RIF R RAT -

W 5F W 3K

T i U OR > AT R K H B R IR R
e A anr

2021 2020
—EF B XX
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT
Within 1 month D 118 A 5,313 7,265
1 to 2 months 1221 A - =
2 to 3 months 2% 31 H 503 =
Over 3 months R 3 H 981 75
6,797 7,340
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are JEAT IR KIS — iR — FE N & E -

normally settled within one year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. FL At JE £°F W sk e M wt 2 F

2020
“ERE
HK$’ 000

T oo

Other payables A A BR 3K 18,896 30,931
Accruals JRE 51 22 12,266 10,092
31,162 41,023
Contract liabilities EHEE 205 7,136
31,367 48,159

Notes:

(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

B &I -

@ AHAEANFEHENT

31 December

2020
o
+=ZHA=+—H
HKs$’000
T
Fund management business: R BT
— Receipts in advance — R IE 59 2,242
Media sales and production of advertisement TR A R R
arrangements:
— Billings in advance of performance —JB # 2 AT BIE - 4,748
Custodian fee received in advance THW R E & A 146 146
205 7,136

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
fund management, media and stock dealing services. Decrease
in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the

provision of these services at the end of the year.

G H) BTS2 PR B R S TR SR
22 5 W 5 BT WA B R ) LA R e R
e R R ATED T T B AR R AR R
S5 IR Bs B 2% 5 SR A TE A e D T B

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (b) At B AT R B BT R P X A B B = M

payment term of three months.

H o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

29. PROMISSORY NOTES

The movements of the promissory notes are set out below:

188

29. # bu SR Vg

R G ER R 2 BN S AR

2021 2020
—B 4 B R
HK$’000 HK$ 000

W T oo T T

At 1 January w—H—H 143,553 185,000
Issues (Notes (ii)) BT (WE:_‘E‘-(H) ) - 20,000
Redemption (Notes (i) & (iii)) W [m] (B 7t i) K i) ) (53,553) (61,447)
At 31 December Ht+=—H=+—H 90,000 143,553
Notes: [ =E -
(i) On 28 December 2018, the Company issued a promissory note i) WZE—/)\FE+ZHZ+/\H > KA H [

(ii)

(iii)

in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to Kinetic Creation
Global Investments Limited (“Kinetic”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“Kinetic
Promissory Note”). The Kinetic Promissory Note bore interest at
a rate of 9% per annum and was partially redeemed during the year
ended 31 December 2020 up to HK$41,447,000 and fully redeemed
during the year, up to HK$53,553,000. The total interest charged to
profit or loss amounted to HK$834,000 (2020: HK$16,863,000).

On 13 March 2020, the Company issued promissory notes in the
principal amounts of HK$20,000,000 to independent third parties.
The promissory notes bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum for
a term of six calendar months. The balances were fully repaid in

September 2020.

On 9 August 2019, the Company a issued promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$90,000,000 (“Fullbest Promissory
Note”) to Fullbest Star Limited (“Fullbest”), a company
beneficially owned and ultimately controlled by a close family
member of a director of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
who resigned during the year. The Fullbest Promissory Note bears
interest at a rate of 10% per annum for a term of one calendar year
which is subject to an extension for another one calendar year by
the written consent of Fullbest. An arrangement fee of HK$600,000
was paid during the year ended 31 December 2020 to Fullbest to
extend the maturity date from 8 August 2020 to 8 August 2021. The
maturity date of Fullbest Promissory Note was further extended
to 30 April 2022. In the opinion of the directors, the terms and
conditions of the Fullbest Promissory Note including the extension
were conducted on normal commercial terms. Subsequent after
the end of the reporting period, the maturity date of Fullbest
Promissory Note has been extended to 31 May 2023.
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B BR TC A G A R ED (TR - Z 7 R
(FERE) ARRA A 2 M2 E MG AR 51T
7 4 %8 B #E%5100,000,000 7 AY R S ELE (T
B R SE SRR |) o B AR B B AR R Koo
FPE WERNEE T RE T A= —
EIﬂ:iFJEjM}E*I%%41,447,00075&)3’&@

7 I (0] k5 53,553,0007T © wEA H 25 10
Eﬁ'@%ﬁﬁwﬁ"ﬁ“sw 0007G ( =% “FAF i

’ﬁ$16,863,00075)

(i) AT EDEREZA ZH AR W MR
=5 B AT A 4 B 120,000,000 7T HY 7R L 22

PE o 7K S0 SR 4R AF B Revwwl B o 4 A 7S 1
JEH i ZEF ZFAENH > MDD B -
iy A ZF—JLENHILH > A2 A E Fullbest

Star Limited ([ Fullbest | » B A2\ 7] 42 & [} J&
NEIN—ZESR (FFRNE T 2 ERBE
B g MR S B AR A HD) AT AR A B
#90,000,0007C Y 7K 5 22 9% ([ Fullbest 7 5 52
#81) © FullbestZK b 22 35 4% 4F F) R10%=w! &
ﬂ:‘gﬁﬁgﬁlgﬁz’ﬁ%@FullbcstE@%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
EMEFE -HE T _FHEF+ _H=+—
A1k 4E ¥ > B 1 Fullbest Sz 1 22 HE 2 ) o
600,0007C > fHEI M HE B =& ~F4E /AN
H#E%E &~ —4 /\H /\H ° FullbestZK ji, 22
B MAECE— S s X " 4 NA
=+ H -EHZEE > FullbestZR bt 22 35 1Y 15 2K

Kt (L35 41 ) T5 i — M v SE MO T ©
ﬁ/\i&"tﬁﬂmq *{ﬁ Fullbest&ﬁmﬁ%ﬁ’]?”gﬂ H
BRE —F _=FAHA=+—H-



30. DEFERRED TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are

as follows:

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

30. #& HEt Bt JE
R A JEL £ A 4 A S B

At 1 January 2021 REFZ—F—~H—H (5) - (2,841 (4,613) - (7,459)
Deferred tax credited to the statement of  JA4F R 7E B 45 % 7 A
profit or loss during the year R AL T 5 - 2,841 965 - 3,811
At 31 December 2021 REFZ—-F+ZA=+—H - - - (3,648) - (3,648)
2020
L= 2
Depreciation
allowances Temporary
in excess differences
of related from
accelerated Fund Customer disposal of
depreciation Tax losses contracts relationship subsidiaries Total
&
7 th A W 2 vl
I A E A
FERE  BBEE  EEAM ZFBG WRHEL a5t
HK$'000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000
BHTT  B%TT  E¥Fr  wBTxr #WBTr  BW%Tx
At 1 January 2020 REZZRE—-A—H (871) 2,112 (3,788) (5,189) (6,042) (13,778)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to RERFERG LA/ (1)
the statement of profit or loss during IR AL T
the year 866 (2,112) 947 576 6,042 6,319
At 31 December 2020 WEFZFELZA=ET—H (5) = (2,841) (4,613) - (7,459)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 5 i e Wk (46)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

30. B HE B IE (#4)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had estimated tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$566,945,000 (2020:
approximately HK$455,193,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
HK$18,439,000 as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and in the opinion of the
directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses and temporary
differences can be utilised.

31. SHARE CAPITAL

190

%@g T _—H+_H=+—H &%
T%‘%ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂﬁl&ﬂﬁ%%566,945,000
JC (& AR 4 i %455,193,0000C ) >
TUMI‘E,EJ%FHE’&%&%tﬂfﬁléé‘iﬁﬂﬁféﬂﬂ%
2 SR T A o

B 2~ F B s iE — BEREI > HE SRR A H
& S AT He A IE B s ) T JE B Bl JF s 48
Ko BT g PR 22 B> I 4 It S 918,439,000
jﬁﬁﬁ it 252 Jﬁiﬁé ,\ﬁﬁ

31. AR

2020
—
HKs$’000
BT T
Shares Ji& 1
Issued and fully paid: CEIT REHMA
1,421,838,398 (2020: 1,184,865,332) 1,421,838,398
ordinary shares e g O
1,184,865,332) %
4 A 142,184 118,487
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AN F) 2 A s A AT

follows:

At 1 January 2020, }?AQZQ LHE—-A—H-
31 December 2020 and i Sy <8
1 ]anuary 2021 +_H #‘I“ H &
~E - —F—H—H 1,184,865 118 250,824 369,311
Placing of new shares (note) Fie B 1 (BT 236,973 23,697 37,916 61,613
At 31 December 2021 WZF A
+ZA=+—H 1,421,838 142,184 288,740 430,924
Note: B 5E -
On 25 June 2021, the Company issued 236,973,066 new shares with a par WZEZ—FANAZTHH AR RER -F

value of HK$0.1 per share, at a subscription price of HK$0.26 per share
to an independent third party, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement dated 18 June 2021 (the “Subscription”),
under the general mandate which was granted to the Directors pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 16 June 2020. The net proceeds (after deducting all applicable costs
and expenses in connection with the Subscription) from the Subscription
amounted to approximately HK$61,613,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 55 i A W R (41)

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H
32. % o B s % B A hE st 1

(a) BBy B i

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEMES

(a) Share Award Scheme

On 24 August 2018, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was approved and adopted by
the board of directors of the Company under which
shares of the Company may be awarded to selected
participants which include employees, directors
(including executive and non-executive directors),
officers, agents or consultants of the Group (the
“Selected Participants”). Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the Share Award Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the adoption date. Details of the Share Award Scheme
have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 24 August 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share has
been acquired by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
while a total of 10,000,000 shares of the Company
were acquired from the market at an aggregate value
of approximately HK$3,679,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, a total of 43,890,000
shares (2020: 11,500,000 shares) were granted to the
Selected Participants pursuant to the terms of the Share
Award Scheme. The acquired shares were recognised
and accumulated in equity under “Shares held for share
award scheme”. As at 31 December 2021, no share
(2020: 43,890,000 shares) of the Company were held
by the trustee for the purpose of the Share Award
Scheme.

W oFz— NENA +MNH AR
) e U SR AR — T R 2%
whE (T e st &1 1) > s A
AT TR 2 L (A
SEHREE FHF (BHERATLIER
THEF) fTEAN B - AR SR
(MEE2HE ) -5 HBUEIE
FTAN s By SR EEE A B ERA B
R+ 4 3 B — LA 2 B 0 58 B 5t
Bl BN ALNR A %
—NENHZFTWBEZ A

BE_ZX-_—HF+_HA=1+—H
1R 4 B> B 0 38 B w1 81 19 2 56 A HE
SR G ke T %
E+A=+—HILEEFNET
% W\ BE(H 4 ¥ ¥°3,679,0000C A 4t
10,000,000/ 4= 2~ &) g 1y - B 2 — %
Tt AZ 1T —HIEFEESR
T8 B0y 5% Jh w1 B 2 A ik ) %R 2 L
F 1% A 343,890,000 B 1 ( —F
T 111,500,000 B 43) o B U
FEe 3 s T 3 B B 55t B R A 2 40y )
HEN 2w NERREAF - %
%+ HA=+—H MM
BhErEIT S Z it AMEERRA AL
A By (% B 4F © 43,890,000
J ey ) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 e e P BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE 32. B Ao B B % B A hE it
OPTION SCHEME (continued) (#8)
(a) Share Award Scheme (continued) (a) JB& oy 58 Jh it ) (48
Details of the share awards granted are set out below: 2 B2 B R A e i g R
2021 RO

9 April 2021 43,890,000 0.28 Nil  Within 10 business days after
the date of acceptance by the
Selected Participants

R ENARA 43,890,000 0.28 F BESREBLZZRO @K 0
fi&%H K
2020 T RAE
Average
Number of fair value
Date of grant shares awarded per share Award price Vesting period
1 &S]
=il B A e 13 8 H AR REEE R R
HK$
BT
10 June 2020 4,110,000 0.30 Nil ~ Within 10 business days after the
date of acceptance by the Selected
Participants
10 June 2020 7,390,000 0.30 Nil  Within 10 business days after the
date of acceptance by the Selected
Participants
“EZREAATH 4,110,000 0.30 T EREZEZEZRBEBE 0
fiEEH I
“ECREAATH 7,390,000 0.30 F BESEEEZRMGEEZ 0
[Ek=EER
The fair value of the shares was determined based on B A3 04 FOAE (B T AR 8 18 B 52 BT
the closing market price of the Company’s shares that BEENANFRMRESARZHH
were publicly traded on the Stock Exchange on the ﬁﬂ 2 W AE 7 IR B R U [
respective grant date and adjusted by the fair value of B Fe B AE 5 8 R 2 7 e e
the dividends during the vesting periods as the grantees P N SRS AL S, -
are not entitled to dividends during the vesting periods.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, total expense B L -4 +-_H=1+—HIk
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit A BE S ARHE M 0y 88 8 T ) 5% Y Ak
or loss for shares granted under the Share Award Byt 4 A Rt R AR B SRR A
Scheme was approximately HK$12,289,000 (2020: 2%\%%12,289,00075 —g—iﬁ s
HKS$3,450,000). #%3,450,0007C ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

I L B 2
32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE 32. i o % B B2 B J A st
OPTION SCHEME (continued) (#8)
(b) Share Option Scheme (b) ik Jit R 5T A
The share option scheme (the “Share Option AN F) i R RE ST (T 0 B RE )
Scheme”) of the Company was approved and adopted B A 28 J R —F— N AN
by the sharcholders of the Company at the annual H B2 4T 2 A8 &) B RO A R & b it
general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2018. HE SR o A5 24 | A] ] A AR 2 B
The Company might grant options to the eligible BN I A > DIAR 385 R E 1Y
participants to subscribe for ordinary shares in the A0 3R B M A B A N F) 2 A R
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated JEE B R T 5 B AERE S B R AN H
therein. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and (. F—/NEN A/NH ) L 11
effective for a period of ten years commencing on the HM—EAR-
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme on 8 June
2018.
The following share options were outstanding under the A A B B B RE w3 o R AT (5 Y B
Share Option Scheme during the year: REUNR ¢
2020
TR TR
Weighted
average
exercise Number
price of options
MHETE R
A7 4815 #H
HKS$ per
share ’000
B R s T
At 1 January mw—H—H 0.33 60,220 . -
Granted during the year PN R ] - - 0.33 118,020
Lapsed during the year A A A B R A% 0.33 (8,000) 0.33 (57,800)
At 31 December Ht+—H=+—H 0.33 52,220 0.33 60,220
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share A A R N R AT Y B R T
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting AT AT R

period are as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B 785 ¥ e Wit ik

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

(78)

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

32. M o 5 Wi B B e B st

(%)
(b) WM HE st B ()

194

2021 —F_
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
W e e FAER 7 e
’000 HKS$ %er share
T4 i s
52,220 0.33 27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025
SR FE=A b LHESESHEZASFAR
2020 R CEE
Number of optlons Exerc1se rice Exerc1se perlod
R 2 e
’000 HK$ per share
T T v
60,220 0.33 27 March 2020 to 26 March 2025

“ECEREEATEHRE R RE=A A

On 27 March 2020, 118,020,000 share options (“Share
Options”) were granted to the directors, employees,
lenders and a consultant of the Group pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme. The exercise price of the Share
Options is HK$0.33 per ordinary share of the Company
(the “Share”), which is not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of HK$0.315 per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of
grant of the Share Options; (ii) the average closing price
of HK$0.308 per Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceeding the date of grant of the Share
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share, which
is HK$0.1. The Share Options vested immediately
on the date of grant as stated in grant letters and
among which 53,800,000 share options expired on 12
September 2020, 8,000,000 share options lapsed during
the current year and the remaining 52,220,000 share
options will be exercisable for a period of 4 years until
26 March 2025. Share option reserve amounting to
HK$678,000 (2020: HK$3,937,000) was transferred to
accumulated losses upon the lapse of 8,000,000 (2020:
53,800,000) Share Options.

The Company has rebutted the presumption in
paragraph 13 of HKFRS 2 for measuring the equity-
settled transaction with the lenders and consultant by
reference to the fair value of the Share Options rather
than the fair value of the related services as these
services or financial support received by the Group
cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair
value of the Share Options granted was HK$9,292,000
which was fully recognised as share option expense

during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

32. SHARE AWARD AND SHARE 32. Ay 5% B B i e E 5T &)
OPTION SCHEME (continued) (#8)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) Ji JBE RE ST A (48

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

BHE_Z-_EHF+_H=1+—H1
AR ¥ 0 I RE & ORI R RE Y
FUAEAE AR B A TR U (G
Ko 1% M I RE ) A Kk I M ) HEAT
fli st o N R B ) e A B

2020

—z-%

Dividend yield (%) B (%) 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) T I M (%) 47.67%-84.35%
Historical volatility (%) JFE st 3% i (%) 84.35%
Risk-free interest rate (%) ﬁ%)ﬁkl‘ﬁﬂ%(%) 0.608%-0.651
Expected life of options (year) i Pl ME T AT IR (4F) 0.462-4.995
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) TNHESE- 2 IR AE (5 i s ) 0.33

The expected life of the share options was based on
the historical data up to the past 10 years and was not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that might
occur. The expected volatility is determined based on
the historical volatility of the shares of Company for
a period of 10 years. Reflected the assumption that
the historical volatility was indicative of future trends,
which might also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The dividend yield is based on the historical dividend
yield of the shares of Company for a period of 10 years.

The share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses upon forfeiture of the share options
before their expiry date.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The fair value of the share options are subject to the
above inputs and limitation to the binomial model.

J S R 0 PR A B 2 0 2 104F 19
JRE 52 B4R I B HE S OR 4 RE AR 7R T RE
H 3R A A7 T 2o 0 I8 S R
S AT 5 R R AR 8 B 2 R IR
R W R B A AR o T MR U AR
A% ) B T 4 ) 2 R S I
JHEE E > S I JRR SO T A s R AR
P AR ISR S BB AR o B
FRJIARAEAS 2> =] A 7+ 4F 1 i 1Y
JBE o i B A F B o

SIS ARt A4 1% TS 9 S i T 1 0 T
G LS E Y

452 1 S Sl G L A 4 8 F A
NAREEFE-

I HE 2 > S AE (E R bl A R
Je Z IR AR PR i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 25 e o Pt (46)

31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of during

the current and prior years and the financial impacts are

summarised as follows:

33. B & A F

TS AR JBE et A AR © S B A R &
FE O (E S B 5 S B a0

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT
Net assets disposed of: EHEFEE
Property, plant and equipment ENN N & - 3,860
Goodwill RS - 29,537
Loans receivable JRE i B 3K - 42,678
Accounts receivable JRE WA B 2K 700 194
Prepayments and other receivables TE AT BCIE B HoAth
JFEE Wi B K 380 767
Cash and cash equivalents Ba RBE&SEY 186 65,324
Other payables and accruals A JE A5 R 3K K2
JE w1 (54) (10,306)
Interest-bearing borrowing AR E K - (39,193)
Bond payable JE A5t 135 7 - (7,000)
1,212 85,861
Exchange fluctuation reserve A1 FEE 15 B £k e (7) 289
1,205 86,150
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 7) HEREA R (BH)
Wz (BiFaE7) (505) 7,879
700 94,029
Satisfied by: B LA 7 ST
Cash B4 - 94,029
Other receivable At 1B AL R 3k 700 =
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEWNEAFRMNE & LBEESEEYRA
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: FEHT R
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
BT T
Cash consideration (notes) B AE (KEEE) - 94,029
Cash and bank balances disposed of C B B S ERAT 4 R (186) (65,324)
Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and B R g AN D Y B 4 R
cash equivalents in respect of disposal BHEEEY (W) /
of subsidiaries WA F R (186) 28,705
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2021,

On 30 April 2021,

agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its

the Group entered into a sale and purchase

entire equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, NanTai
Investment Limited, for a consideration of HK$700,000. The loss
on the disposal before and after tax amounted to approximately

HK$372,000. The transaction was completed on the same date.

On 1 December 2021, a termination agreement was entered into
between jtﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%iﬂgﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ,

subsidiary of the Group and Ankai (Tianjin) Economic Information

a wholly-owned

Consulting Company Limited, a wholly-owned variable interest
entity, for terminating the variable interest entity relationship.
No proceeds were received/paid for the termination. The loss on
disposal net of tax amounted to HK$133,000. The transaction was

completed on the same date.

On 18 February 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of its
entire equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, CSIB, for a
consideration of RMB80,500,000 (equivalent to HK$91,770,000).
The gain on disposal before tax amounted to approximately
HK$2,164,000 and loss on the disposal net of tax amounted to
approximately HK$2,933,000. The transaction was completed on
30 April 2020.

On 30 April 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a company wholly-owned by a close family member
of Mr. Xu Peixin, to dispose of its entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, Nature Win Limited, for a consideration
of HK$2,259,000. The gain on disposal (before and after tax)
amounted to approximately HK$5,715,000. The transaction was

completed on the same date.

a cumulative

foreign currency translation gain of approximately HK$§7,000
(2020: translation loss of HK$289,000) was recycled from
other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

33. B R 8 A |l (q)

B Rk :

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HE T
ELEH M RE B Uk 43 49 ¥ #57,0000C (

MREFEZ—FNH=+H REEE 28
S = ﬁjiﬁﬁﬁm’ﬁuAW%gmﬁ
/\ Al NanTai Investment Limited 143 B4 > 10
Eﬁ%%mmmioﬁ%%%(ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%)
# By ¥ 15372,0007T © 5% 28 & B ] H 52 B -

Mo —F+H—H A EEWE
o AL B R A A Rk R A R A B A
T 4 “7‘F'J Eﬁﬁﬁ' JEE ) B85 B
ﬁ‘%“—“%ﬁ%ﬂ;
1 1 % %EHEE}L%%JH&HX/iﬁ{IH CIH o
B 1 (B BLIE) % ¥ H5133,0007T © #%
385 BN Rl H 5K

Mo EFEHAFNH REHE—Z
%4%47‘?741’%%@27u1ﬂf/\§%‘
80,500,0007T (H % 7 #5 H91,770,00070 ) H #
2 o JR 2 ) R R 1 A S R AR o L A
B 35 4 B W52, 164,0007T - B 15 B RS 4R
1 55H H52,933,0007C © #% 28 5 B AR H S8 A% o

W ZFAENH =+ H > ZIK%I i ik
EANEHEBEE2ERANA uJiﬂiE’E
fon k> LAACAE 38 52,259, 0007T M 2 & KT B
/\jNature Win leltedﬁﬁ%jﬁ *E ‘,;leI.K(

(Bi AT S BiA% ) &9 45 i ¥ 5, 715,0000C © 7% 28
%Eﬁ&lﬂﬁ%ﬁia

— it = B LR
(—%

TR # 0RO 5289, 00000 ) B
Al 2 T e 25 08 (] 25 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 e e P BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34. B B & W E LW EE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) FHEHEHRERS
In the prior year, the Group had non-cash additions to WNE—FE AEEGRHEEFHE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$5,889,000 L PE A R RE S B O A AR R
(notes 16 and 17(b)), respectively, in respect of lease B4 U B 5 s W 5,889,0007T (M k16
arrangements for buildings. &17([)) ) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MENEBEENAFEES
financing activities
2021 S e 2

At 1 January 2021 WoE-—4F—H—H 22,178 143,553 -
Changes from financing cash flows MES S EED (14,651) (53,553) (6,506)
Interest expense AR 396 - 10,080
Lease modification HEB (150) - -
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—+ZHA=+—H 7,773 90,000 3,574
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

M. HESNERMEE (&)

w)%gﬁEFEMﬁhﬁﬂ

financing activities (continued) (78
2020 TR R
Interests
payable
included
in other
Interest- payables
Lease Promissory Bond bearing and
liabilities notes payable borrowings accruals
T A A
A MR e
ST F 11
fEaR RAEE  EAEE FEMK EMNE
HKS$ 000 HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
T wETT  w%Tx  w%Tx  EWT
At 1 January 2020 WoEZ_FE—~H—H 34,517 185,000 7,000 39,608 199
Changes from financing cash flows GRS EEE) (18,176) (41,447) - (1,334 (17,344)
New leases e 5,889 = = = =
Interest expense Fil)sS B % 773 - - 919 17,145
Lease modification HEBFT (825) - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries B T A - - (7,000) (39,193) -
At 31 December 2020 R A
+=-H=+—H 22,178 143,553 - - -
(c¢) Total cash outflow for leases (©) MEB & A
The total cash outflow for leases included in the A B4 U R A B A
statement of cash flows is as follows: AR
2020
— ? BN EF‘
HK$’ 000
BT
Within operating activities (note 8) FPAREB SN E
(Bt 5Es) 964 406
Within financing activities FEARLE B A & 14,651 18,176
15,615 18,582
2021 FH HASBEBRARAL A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

35. COMMITMENTS 35. k¥
@) i%@%ﬁ%%%ﬁ&?ﬂﬁ$ﬁ

(a) The Group had the following capital commitment at the
end of the reporting period:

2021 2020
SR T T
HK$’000 HK$ 000

W T oo T T

Contracted, but not provided for: O A E R T B 4
Investment in a subsidiary B g m 1E 41,234 41,234

(b) Other commitments

At 31 December 2020, under certain exclusive licences
to (i) conduct media sales agency and management
business on selected bus shelters; (ii) solicit advertising
business in respect of the interior and exterior panels
of buses operated by The Kowloon Motor Bus Company
(1933) Limited and Long Win Bus Company Limited;
and (iii) solicit advertising business on other advertising
spaces owned by independent third parties, the Group
has committed to pay licence fees at a pre-determined
percentage of the net advertising rental received,

subject to a guaranteed minimum amount as follows:

(b) H bR I

Mo FEFETF A=+ —H AR
BAREEER G RE L RE S
RO I g e U B R R B ZETS S (i)
MAEE L (—L==)FRAAM
FEE O EARAR IS ED L
JRR P 305 S B By AR JE 4 o HE AT I 1S
WS M)k 18 5L 5B = 5 HEA RO L
b 5 45 1 HEAT R A EBS R A TR
o FFE > A 4 ) B R R T i B
e FH A AR Y TS E E 4 LA
FERT R MEZHZ KR R ST RR
W E PR

2020
SF

HK$ 000
T o

Within one year — AR
E_R2HF (THERWSE) 200,945

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

85,911

286,856

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no further
commitment to pay licence fees upon the cessation of
the media business as explained in note 13 to financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances as set out

in notes 5, 21,

22, 23, 24 and 29 to these financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties during the year.

(a)

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

36. A RN MR 5

B A B S i 3% B 5Es ~ 21022023
24 J 29T 8 32 5 e AE BR AN > A4 [ i
ERNEAREN BT TUTIRS -

2021 2020
i —z-zx
Notes HKS$’000 HK$ 000
Bt &1 BT BT T
Rental income received from B B 5 w5
a related company HHE U A @) 307 206
Loan interest income received E Bﬁ Eﬁ% /3 H] LI&EX E]/]
from a related company B FE (ii) 802 -
Notes: l}ﬁ E‘
@) Rental fee was charged to a related company mentioned in i) *ﬂé)—jﬁﬁ&f%}]ﬂi 14 2 2 [n] B 5

notes 6 and 24 to the financial statements at a rate mutually

agreed between parties.

(ii)  Loan interest was charged to a related company mentioned in

notes 5 and 24 to the financial statements at a rate mutually

agreed between parties.

(b) Other transactions with related parties

Apart from those mentioned in (a) above, during

the year, in June 2021,

Acton Eagle Limited, a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into
agreements to advance a loan of HK$6,000,000 to
Aim Right Ventures Limited ("Aim Right"), a company

wholly-owned by a business associate of a close family
member of Mr. Xu, and a loan of HK$8,000,000 to
the subsidiary of AMC. The agreements stated that

guarantee deposits made to | =P

T W I

# 4 FR > F] amounted to RMB5,000,000 on 29 June
2021 and RMB6,680,000 on 25 June 2021 respectively
from a sole beneficiary of Aim Right and a subsidiary
of AMC in PRC would be used to net off the loans
advanced by Acton Eagle Limited. At the end of the
reporting period, the loans have been settled by netting

off these guarantee deposits.

(b)

BFF k6 S 24 97 428t I8 B/ ) WO

Gy  HEEAE L T iz B J5 1 7E 9 2 R 160 Bt s
R B 5 5 B o4 T A A B O 2 AT o

S BN LR AR 5
Br b 3C(a) BT ol 3 Ah > A AR AR R
%@%gl}ﬁ%/\:‘]ACton Eagle Limited
AT T AN H TS ek ) —
MHBREENERBENERY
2 EHA 1A A Aim Right Ventures
Limited ([ Aim RightJ TR R Hs W
6,000,0007C M 8] — 7T F*  #9 K} &
] 55 R 5K 8 000,000 © 2% 2% 1
250 B > 16 b 50 L 2% 2 9 B A
A R 2 A £ At i 45 OR 3 48 43 Al ik —
E - —FENH 1+ HMHAM Right
ME— 57 45 A AT AR ¥ 5,000,0007C
&AA” —4ENH ‘I“EEIEE—
TG T H B A — [T B R A R S A
A% #56,680,0007C > T 7% %5 & R #5 &
Al F A $EF0 Acton Eagle Limited 5 5 HY
B o AR - SRR T B R
FHBR 5% S5 5 PR 1% 82 T 457 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 25 e o Pt (46)

31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BRI AN LM S (4)

(continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related (c) B BH N LW oK 8 8 45 B
parties
Apart from those mentioned in notes 21, 24 and 29, B B 521 ~ 24 Koo fr 4l 35 Ab > Bil B
the balance with the related company is interest-free, o8 Y &R A e B EHE PR K JH %
unsecured and repayable on demand. FORME R -
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the (d) ALEFEEE NS4S
Group:
2021 2020
—F- 5 —z-zg
HKS$’000 HK$’000

W T oo T T

Salaries, allowances and benefit in kind B BERG KCE W AR A 9,181 10,320
Equity-settled share-based payments DU JBEHE %8 B8 DA Ry
HEHE AT K 3,220 2,013
Pension scheme contributions FER N I REIT 82 100
Total compensation paid to key Y TFEEEHEANEN
management personnel P 4 48 %5 12,483 12,433
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included 5 4 0 A — 20 SRR U T R
in note 10 to the financial statements. == Kt 5510 °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. $ BN B 43 v b T H
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial A AR > & 8 4 R T Y BR T (E an
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial assets 4 & E
2021 R AR
Financial assets at fair value iR/ =] {Eﬁ'}\
through profit or loss s 2 & [E E 75,023 - 75,023
Accounts receivable JAEE A B K - 44,408 44,408
Loans receivable JEE i B K - 24,486 24,486
Loan to a related company 4T B A F 2 B - 5,665 5,665
Amount due from a related JFEE A B8] A W] 3K IR
company - 513 513
Financial assets included in A TEAT A
prepayments, deposits and Eis ﬁ&/ﬂ\:ﬂﬁ}@ g
other receivables H X ) 4 il - 6,070 6,070
Cash held on behalf of clients REXFREH & - 79 79
Pledged deposits O AR 3K - 1,175 1,175
Cash and cash equivalents e KB &5 EY - 147,437 147,437
75,023 229,833 304,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
St % e 2 i ik (78)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. FBN B 43 v b T H
CATEGORY (continued) (#8)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial A A AR > A8 4l T Y BR
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial liabilities 4 b 2
2021 R AR

Accounts payable JE A5} BR 3K 6,797
Financial liabilities included in i }\::H\: il JRE A B 2K S ME =12 1)
other payables and accruals et =K 29,177
Lease liabilities GiENS=E 7,773
Promissory notes LR 90,000
133,747
Financial assets & & B
2020 TR B

Financial assets
at fair value

through
profit or loss Financial assets
— mandatorily at amortised
classified as such cost Total
N RfEE
AR Z A 6 LA
& & G il
(58 1 73 %1) G R 5t
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
i ATH Sy T T T
Financial assets at fair value WA REEF AR Z
through profit or loss & Rl 101,376 - 101,376
Accounts receivable JRE WS B K - 77,586 77,586
Loans receivable R Wi B 3K - 86,716 86,716
Amount due from a related JRE W 9 Wi A ) 3K IR
company - 206 206
Financial assets included in FTATEAHIE - e K
prepayments, deposits and L fth 18 e BR R
other receivables MG E = 17,160 17,160
Cash held on behalf of clients REXFRAHE - 1,007 1,007
Pledged deposits E R4 77 3K — 32,175 32,175
Cash and cash equivalents e kB E%EEY - 151,939 151,939

101,376 366,789 468,165
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 37. & J8 B & 4 0 Bk T H
CATEGORY (continued) (#8)
Financial liabilities 4B il £
2020 R R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
e 48 85 LA
B
4 il A AR
HKs$’000
T
Accounts payable JE A5} R 3K 7,340
Financial liabilities included in A Ho A R A5 R Kk K B R A Y
other payables and accruals 4 Rl A A 35,167
Lease liabilities A E 22,178
Promissory notes %%%ﬁ% 143,553
208,238
38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38. s il T H Ay R EMH KA
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL Fu 8 A4 g 2%
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group ’s financial R H 4T B (O~ 635 8 i (E B A A
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that EEAGHEMEN S/ T E) WIREE&A
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FAEEW R
Carrying amounts Fair values
ke 1H 4 nREE

2020 2020
—E-E —E-E
HKs$’000 HKS$’000
T T
Financial assets LSRG E
Financial assets at fair value WA REEFA
through profit or loss Bz & MEE 75,023 101,376 75,023 101,376
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

206

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients, pledged
deposits, accounts receivable, loans receivable, loan to a
related company, accounts payable, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other rececivables, amount
due from a related company, promissory notes and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the financial
controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual

financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value of a listed equity investment is based on
the quoted share price. The fair value of the investment in
the Investment Fund is based on the net asset value which
represents the fair values of the underlying assets and
liabilities. As at 31 December 2021, the underlying assets of
the Investment Fund comprises listed equity securities and
unlisted bonds (2020: listed equity securities and unlisted
bonds).

The fair value of unlisted equity investments is based on
recent investment transactions in the investee company and
market prices of certain parameters as stipulated in the
subscription agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A B BE ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 38. @l T H WA R EMA LA
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 7o B 16 g A& (s
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy 2 fu fE A e ]

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TERIAALEHESH THZ A RMEEF
hierarchy of the Group ’s financial instruments: BER

Assets measured at fair value: ¥ B E T = & E

As at 31 December 2021 W _E_—4#+-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

i DU R I H R A R

Financial assets at fair value HAREHEFARGZZ
through profit or loss SMEE
— Listed equity investment — bR E 1,749 - - 1,749
— Unlisted equity investment — & b R - - 2,000 2,000
— Private equity fund —REREES - - 71,274 71,274
1,749 - 73,274 75,023
As at 31 December 2020 WoFEZFE+ A =+—H
Fair value measurement usin
FRUTEHAREAAEE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EDN EPN

1% B g iE:3 NGIR kS

HIE i A B i A B
(F—%) (58 —#k) (5B =4k) Mgt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
VT oT T T T T BT T

Financial assets at fair value WARBHFAREZ
through profit or loss SEEE

— Listed equity investment =t Tﬁﬂﬁ%& % 6,333 - - 6,333
— Private equity fund —REREES - - 95,043 95,043

6,333 - 95,043 101,376
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

S 25 e o Pt (46)

31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, an addition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss investment
of HK$2,000,000 (2020: Nil) was made in the fair value

measurements within Level 3.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair value
measurements of the private equity fund transferred from
Level 2 into Level 3 due to change of underlying investments
made by the private equity fund. There was no transfer of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2.

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

during the prior year was as follows:

38. 4p ik T L1 oy o {4 M &
s fE A8 #& ()

o e IEARE B (57

BE - F - —4#+_HA=+—HILHE,
N RBEFAE G2 &/ E = g
Jin s #2,000,0007C ( & R4 ) THA
B =B BT R P AES -

BE_F_FHE+_HA=Z+—HILFE,
R A AL 5 IR R S 2 10 H A A B 5 S )
FA 55 B 2k < 1) 28 SR (B (ELRT 2 ol 28 8K
P B = A o B — ANCHEL B AR ] 7 4
N REEFEZ -

B ES S R AN A AEE R E)
T

2020

“ECERE

HK$’ 000

BT T

At 1 January w—H—H =
Transfer from Level 2 %»*Z H gﬁ:u& 95,043
At 31 December w+—H=+—H 95,043

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, loans receivable
and promissory notes. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they

are summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

39. 4 il B 4% PR H B R BUR

(%)

i 4 )l B

A £ [ 1 S 32 G T e AR R A B SR =7
32 5 o A% 4R T ) WU 1 BT A R DA B
225 W % 5B E R E T - 1A
A S5 ) 5 A0 B 5% B WACR A B > SRR B
B Slf: A % B ol 7 JF DA AR B 2 4 B A7 2
RE W RHER 2 5 T & > BR IR JE A5 H 4%
E%@Eﬂtb?ﬁ 7 R A A R S

5% 17 L B B AF i B EE

TRBIERAEEEEBOR 2 G EH
2 N fr R B> T R R
(I H At EORE AT A 8 JH A H A 6 2 AR
BN BT ER) > AR ZF =4
R -REL A=+ — HZFEER
%ﬁﬁo@?%ﬁﬂé%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%éﬁ&ﬁﬁ%

R-FZ—4+ZHA=1+—H

Accounts receivable* R i i 2+ - - - 64,230 64,230
Financial assets included in FEABN R 4

prepayments, deposits, A B W R 3

other receivables SMEE

~ Normal#* —1EH #x 5,701 - - - 5,701

— Doubtful** — R e - - 799 - 799
Loans receivable*** T - - 47,528 - 47,528
Loan to a relate company T B A 2 B 6,046 - - - 6,046
Amount due from a related ST B )

Company

— Normal** — 1 513 - - - 513
Cash held on behalf of clients REEFFHAHE

— Not yet past due — K@l 79 - - - 79
Pledged deposits [REIRLIE-N

— Not yet past due — K@l 1,175 - - - 1,175
Cash and cash equivalents BE LB &% EY

— Not yet past due — R 147,437 - - - 147,437

160,951 - 48,327 64,230 273,508
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2021 —EF _——F+_H=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

210

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

39. &

il L B A B H B B BSR

(%)

fi B R KR (%47

A2 i L B R A A BB (FE)

(continued)
As at 31 December 2020 W oE -EE+_HA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 7 B
fr H 15 BRI Bk R
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
%108 B FolE B HIfB Ml ik
HK$’000 HKSs’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT B%Tx W Tx  B¥Tr  #%Tx
Accounts receivable* R Wi i 2+ — — - 79,783 79,783
Financial assets included in FEAEA R %A
prepayments, deposits, %WEME?’A’ E’J
other receivables SRMEE
— Normal** —IE 16,561 = = = 16,561
— Doubtful** — R Hxx = = 1,172 . 1,172
Loans receivable*** JE i 5 e 87,105 - - - 87,105
Amount due from a related I W I A ) R
company
— Normal#¥* —IEH 206 = = = 206
Cash held on behalf of clients RFEFFHAHE
— Not yet past due —F @i 1,007 - - - 1,007
Pledged deposits RN
— Not yet past due —F @i 32,175 - - - 32,175
Cash and cash equivalents Hae kB a%EYD
— Not yet past due — K 151,939 - - - 151,939
288,993 - 1,172 79,783 369,948

EES

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix

is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a related company
and loan to a related company is considered as “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered as “doubtful”.

For loans receivable, the credit quality information is disclosed in

note 23 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the

maturity of both its financial instruments and projected cash

flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. 4 il | B

0 5 Rk 2% B Rk
31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

BLH BR & BUR

(%)

(%)

i B & < B

ALEFHERZEHRBE S E TR
% gﬂi%”@%ﬂw ﬁzl n+&éﬁﬂl
F 3 B K& TE 1'2(«'%’%%"5%%/”[4%"

ZK%I%IE’JE@ BEWIRATIE X HRATE
AR T 1Y 455 208 11 L S e - A

TR I AL 4 20 SR B B A A4
s 2 0 SR L T

2021 TR AR
Within
one year
—4EN
HKS$’000
BT
Accounts payable JRE A} B 2K 6,797
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals P LAt B AT R K % RE T I
AR 29,177
Promissory notes ' R LR 92,959
Lease liabilities HEAR 7,834
136,767
2020 TR A
More than
one year but
Within less than
one year two years Total
i — 4
—4EN B D W 4R o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i AT i AT i T
Accounts payable JRE£+F B 3K 7,340 - 7,340
Financial liabilities included in 1A Al 5T R %
other payables and accruals Fgﬁ'% kRS 35,167 - 35,167
Promissory notes ' i 2 149,812 = 149,812
Lease liabilities iﬁla =L 14,802 7,834 22,636
207,121 7,834 214,955

2021 4 #

Ok m e B AR A A
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. 4 i )L B 5 PR H B K BUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#8)

(continued)

Foreign exchange risk A e J B

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such 7R A [ 8 T A8 B W R B o 5% 5 R B
exposures arise from provision of series by operating units TR E &AL AL R B LLAN B
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. FHE R 51 7E o L E o A 42 [H A 8 B AR
Approximately 20% (2020: 14%) of the Group’s sales #120% (ZF ZFA4F 1 14% ) DLHETT 84 65 &
were denominated in currencies other than the functional EHEA IR B LN BEETE -

currencies of the operating units making the sales.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end T 2R @ A R R R R T A A 5
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in AR B A 4E [ B BAT S 1R X RE
the EUR/RMB/SGD exchange rate, with all other variables %"Ekfﬁ/j\ 5 bﬁw__‘t/%ﬁ Jin 3 e BE R A ]
held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax and the Group’s fiE 5 ) ) FURR B o

equity.

2021 —EF 5
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 T 50 R T 7 (B

weakens against EUR 3 590 —
If the Hong Kong dollar i 45 " 58 R T T (B

strengthens against EUR 3) (590) —
If the Hong Kong dollar i s e ol N RS W B M

weakens against RMB 3 2 —
If the Hong Kong dollar i s e i N B M T (E

strengthens against RMB 3) 2) -
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 W 505 n e ot

weakens against SGD Bz {H 3 14 -
If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 W 505 n e ot

strengthens against SGD FHH 3) (14) -

* Excluding accumulated losses & NI R G E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

S 5 i 3 W ek ()

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

39. <& il L K A BE H AR B BUSR

==

(48)

Bb BEE JEL Bg (%6

Increase/
(decrease) in Decrease/ Increase/
EUR/RMB/ (increase) in (decrease) in
SGD rate  loss before tax equity*

Bkt

AR/

BT BRBLATE R

e 2% 3 =17 W, MEz s,
(3 1K) (s 7m) (W A) =
% HK$’000 HK$’000

% T T T T

2020 TR B

If the Hong Kong dollar i s L IR e B2 (.
weakens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 s S K oT THE
strengthens against EUR

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 T bo N R W2 (E
weakens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar i 4 W o0 N RS M TH(E
strengthens against RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 50T 31 oo
weakens against SGD AN

If the Hong Kong dollar i 5 50T I 31 oo
strengthens against SGD F{E

* Exc/uding accumulated losses

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Groupys promissory
notes and interest-bearing borrowings with fixed interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2021, if the interest rate on borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher, which was considered
reasonably possible by management, with all other variables
held constant, the loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,345,000 (2020: HK$813,000) higher as

a result of higher interest expenses on promissory notes.

3 586 —
3) (586) -
3 2 —
3) (2) -
3 2 _
(3) (2) -

* N2ACE Y

AEN

7 B2 1) T B 1) T 35 ) A A ) gy = 2 L
A A T B R S SR A % [ E R R R B AR
A -

A E O —FE+ A=+ —HoMEE
& _E Frioof 32 B (& BB R A JE S B
Al REHEE ) > (RBIr A HA S E AR N
A R AR e 1519 R R L SR 0 1 R S B
S B T G & £ #5 ¥01,345,00070 (
K TFAF i ¥813,0000T ) ©
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. 4 i )L B 5 PR H B K BUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of listed equity
investment, unlisted equity investment and private equity
fund decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity
indices and the value of individual securities. The Group was
exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 21) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Hong
Kong stock exchange and are valued at quoted market prices

at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

(%)
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period.
Increase/
Carrying amount (decrease) in Increase/
of equity profit/(loss) (decrease) in
investments before tax equity*
B o il
iR Gz AR/ (EH) s b
FREE K (B (WD) =
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T T T T T
2021 —ET
Financial assets at fair value N B AR A
through profit or loss B2 oME R 75,023 3,751 .
2020 —ECFE
Financial assets at fair value N R EERA
through profit or loss B2 oMEE 101,376 5,069 -

* Excluding retained profits
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise sharcholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of the
Company as capital, manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. As at 31 December
2021, the Group complied with the externally imposed
capital requirements and there was no indication of breach of
covenants. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

In addition, a licensed subsidiary within the Group manages
its liquidity position to ensure it maintains a prudent
and adequate liquidity ratio, in strict compliance with
statutory requirements. This is achieved by the management,
comprising the Chief Financial Officer and the licensed
subsidiary’s Executive Director, monitoring the liquidity
position of the Group on a daily basis to ensure the
availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations
and compliance with the statutory requirements, such as
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)

Rules, which are applicable to a licensed subsidiary.

39. 4 il | B

S 255 e 3 B ik (4)

31 December 2021 —F ~—H+_H=+—H

BLH BR K BUR

(%)

SN

A AR B AR LR 1 E R R AR A AR
A BE T Fp A RS MR A (B A LA
DA S5 SE 05 0 2 B T BB R A

7S £ B A % ) B N B A E i 1L 2
ng’ﬂfi‘ﬁﬂﬁg‘“ 51 DU AL S A Bel B
o 5 B o A LRI R R A o B A AR B
EP‘]%%ZI-‘“M% 7 4L 8] 7T RE §8 B 1i) R
IR AT B B S~ 1 e AR AR B AR B AT
R —F_—F+"A=+—H K%
P 2 57 A0 5 it 19 AR 2R > SIf
SEAALEEERRL -BE_F " —
FERFEET A= HIEERE
BBE AR AR BUR SR e Al 4 A o

BB A > A 52 B B 45 B Ja8 23 ) i A% 2 <
i E R P B B Ik DU > e AR LA
R H 70 I LB e LR o I i > A B
g (@%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁhﬁfﬂﬁ%“ﬂﬁﬁ
PITEFR) G HEEAEB R TSR
o ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ;@ﬁ%miﬂﬁ JBATEN A B
AT 30 A 5 78 1 A 5 R 6 JB 2 =) B 35 E
R (FdE s AR (W BE )
LAY ) o

20214 HASBEEARL A 215



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 i A W R (48)

31 December 2021 —F ——4H+_H =+—H

40. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

216

40. 2w B B R DL %

2021 2020
g & —z-xi
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T BT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik i By & e
Property, plant and equipment and ERY = & ]
right-of-use assets D e ffi P HE 6,662 18,121
Investments in subsidiaries* I}ﬁ‘% NIE S8 fé* — =
Deposits i 4> — 3,211
Total non-current assets FE VR ) & A 6,662 21,332
CURRENT ASSETS it B & e
Loans receivable JRE WA B K - 13,516
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRRE A BF JB > ] 3K IE 230,442 458,332
Amount due from a related company JRRE i R W ) BT 513 206
Prepayments, deposits and TE AT 3RE - 14 K
other receivables At B A R 3K 4,233 44 483
Financial assets at fair value through % /Z_\\EE@{ HFIABEZ
profit or loss & RE 1,749 6,333
Pledged bank deposits LA SR AT A7 3K - 31,000
Cash and cash equivalents W& R &SEY 3,061 1,126
Total current assets /}ﬁ@j gﬁa ﬁt@{ﬁ 239,998 554,996
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B AR
Other payables and accruals L Ath JRE AS) HR 3R
JE 5t 22 A 9,859 3,643
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAH BF JB > ) 3K IH 72,713 74,772
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,240 11,144
Promissory notes R LR 90,000 143,553
Total current liabilities T E) A fEARE 177,812 233,112
Net current assets ) & EFE 62,186 321,884
Total assets less current liabilities B AR WO B A fE 68,848 343,216
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik i By £ 5
Lease liabilities HEAE - 5,240
NET ASSETS & A 68,848 337,976
EQUITY HE £2
Share capital Ji& A 31 142,184 118,487
Reserves it & (73,336) 219,489
TOTAL EQUITY HE 4t 281 68,848 337,976
* This item was with an amount less than a thousand. * ZHEHSEOR— T
Sun Lei Zhu Dong
#E K&

Executive Director

HITHEH
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40. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

41.

42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
St % e e i i ( 46)

31 December 2021 —F _—F+_H=+—H

FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

A summary of the Companyys reserves is as follows:

40. >\l A BHIR D E (4

AR FR ST

Shares
held for
share Share Contributed
Share award option surplus - Accumulated Total
premium scheme reserve (note) losses Equity
Jit 4 2
A HEHZ BHEH%
Jit 4 4 60 Tty I (fHsE) BHatE#E  BEREAN
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EHTT  #WTx  #W%Tx  #WTx  #WTx  #W%Tx
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-FHE—F—H 250,824 (444) . 94404 (311,93) 532,852
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEREERAHE = = - - (312,923) (312,923)
Vesting of shares of share award scheme T 2 B 0 £ 5 - (9,732) - - - (9,732)
Vesting of share option scheme G BRI - - 9,292 B - 9,292
Transfer of share option reserve upon i B R L R
the forfeiture or expiry of share options ﬁ@%%@ﬁﬂ% = = (3,937) = 3,937 =
At 31 December 2020 and REFZZEFZA=T—HR
1 January 2021 —“EZ -8 250,824 (10,176) 5,355 594,404 (620,918) 219,489
Total comprehensive loss for the year ZFEE%EEE‘%% - - - - (299,968) (299,968)
Placing of new shares il i e 37,916 - - - - 37,916
Vesting of shares of share award scheme it 42 B 0 £ 5 - (30,773) - - - (30,773)
Transfer of share option reserve upon L R L O
the forfeiture of share options ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ - - (678) - 678 =
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ—%+ZH=+—H 288,740 (40,949) 4677 594404 (920,008)  (73,336)
Note: Contributed surplus comprised the excess of consolidated net assets Mk : EHMEABREFHAARR __ZTFIREE
represented by the shares acquired over the nominal value of the A0 T i B 1 P AR 2 SR B B E TR E R
shares issued by the Company in exchange under the reorganisation 1 B 38 ¥ B8 47 2 JE 3 i 2 25 %8> DA )%
in 2001 and the transfer of the credit arising from the reduction of R AR N AR L — AR TR 0 Y A
share premium of the Company in 2013. A 2R
Distributability of reserves foh 5 4= o1 IR
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was no reserve W ZEFE D —ERFEFE LA
available for distribution to sharcholders of the Company. =+ —H > IR T AN\ BR
Z et 4 o
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 41. B <
The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and LL o 45 & 15 f5 % M58 & B ¥R 3% 40 BA K
related notes to the consolidated financial statements have S EA W ﬁ/{\ A i 2 ks 'EEE' ES
been re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the ?% I‘f/:\ L i 1 i B I H% o Ik ?gé'%' (Pt 5k
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of the 13) °
comparative period (note 13).
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 42. b 1 55 e 3R

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 13 May 2022.

MBHERCR -F _—4FHAH+=H#
RN R T

20214 HASBEEARL A
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A 0

For the year ended 31 December

BRET A=+ —HIESE

218

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
"R CECFE CE-NE FE-NE FZ L
HKS$’000 HKs’000 HKs’000 HKs’000 HK$’000
W T T T T T T BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(%51 (4 51) (#FE5) (K HEF)

RESULTS ES
CONTINUING OPERATION  #§ 4 48 2% % %
Revenue A 75,573 78,977 129,452 33,492 -
Other income and oA A R ﬁfi/

gains/ (losses), net (5148 8 48 (82,773) 77,633 8,423 18,384
Cost of services M A (31,353) (27,905) (31,222) (2,418) -
Staf expenditure BT (46,474) (42,174) (71,948) (27,700) -
Depreciation and amortisation e S (22,818) (23,546) (19,837) (1,038) -
Provision for impairment losses ik L5 76148 (134,178) (99,624) (16,012) 3,600 -
(Loss)/gain on HERELAR (BHE)

disposal of subsidiaries Vale (505) 7,879 (2,527) 13,725 -
Other operating expenses HAn &8 % R (22,493) (28,819) (25,366) (23,145) (33,998)
Finance costs L A (10,448) (18,603) (14,846) (150) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT BRBEHT (dR) /%A

BEFORE TAXATION (192,648) (236,588) 25,327 4,789 (15,614)
Tax BiH 3,799 2,468 (5,791) (630) (3,644)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR FREAE 8 ST AR AR

THE YEAR FROM (18) /il

CONTINUING OPERATION (188,849) (234,120) 19,536 4,159 (19,258)
DISCONTINUED BRILBEEE

OPERATION
(Loss)/profit for the year from BIEREEBAEE

a discontinued operation (B8 /A (69,911) (109,853) 1,230 12,098 11,731
(LOSS)/PROFIT AR () /A

FOR THE YEAR (258,760) (343,973) 20,766 16,257 (7,527)
Attributable to: LN AL
Owners of the Company L /NGE/ Z DN (258,760) (343,973) 20,766 16,257 (6,577)
Non-controlling interests PR 4R - - - - (950)

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

At 31 December
RT+ZH=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R ZECRE ZE-WE ZE-NE ZZE—LtE
HK$’000 HK’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wH T Vi T i T BT ik T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % & & i /&
Property, plant and EN Y&
equipment and DA A I RE
right-of-use assets 9,199 22,783 61,330 40,751 15,491
Goodwill [k - 78,554 178,444 217,176 40,770
Intangible assets W& 26,576 49,644 58,919 68,525 -
Prepayments, deposits and TR %8 R
other receivables A R o B - 13,881 5,135 24,843 3,218
Financial assets at fair value WA RIEEFIA
through profit or loss Bz sMEE 2,000 95,043 167,452 - -
Loans receivable JE Ui B3k 10,783 - 42,869 56,165 26,400
Deferred tax assets RIEHIIHE & - - 1,265 4,252 7,042
Net current assets BB E 157,459 142,561 276,996 350,393 428,964
Total assets less current G A R B A
liabilities 206,017 402,466 792,410 735,940 495,485
Interest-bearing borrowings EY T = - (39,608) - -
Non-current lease liabilities B E AR - (7,773) (15,904) (3,289) (590)
Deferred tax liabilities AT B IE £ i (3,648) (7,459) (15,043) (10,557) (194)
NET ASSETS B A 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094 494,701
EQUITY HE 4
Share capital A 142,184 118,487 118,487 118,487 99,737
Reserves 4 60,185 268,747 603,368 603,607 386,69
Total equity attributable to VNN e N
owners of the Company 1 4 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094 486,431
Non-controlling interests I 2 T £ - - - - 8,270
TOTAL EQUITY HE £ S 202,369 387,234 721,855 722,094 494,701

2021 4
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2% 7 % B}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS # % €
Non-executive Director JE #l {7 # F

Dr. MA Weihua (Chairman)
MR L (ZH)

Executive Directors ¥l 17 # H

Mr. XU Peixin

i ik e 2R

Mr. SUN Lei (Chief Executive Officer)
RS (TTHAHH)

Mr. ZHU Dong (Chief Financial Officer)
K& (HHHMBEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors
W or JEPUAT #E

Dr. QI Daqing

R Bl

Mr. CHEN Yigong

B R T e A4

Mr. FENG Zhonghua

WA

COMPANY SECRETARY 2 w) fp &

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Fun (Resigned on 1 May 2021)
RSk (R R —FHH — HEHE)
Ms. WU Siu Ling (Appointed on 1 May 2021)
AR Lt R —FHH — H#ZRA)

SHARE REGISTRARS & 1748 P & it IE
Hong Kong %’%?g

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716 17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Tl 78 27 LA BR A A
AT 2 5 KE R 18358

B HO171712-1716F

Bermuda H 54

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE &k i} 3 35 J2

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

Bison Finance Group Limited Annual Report 2021

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

FEREENE

Address: 6th Floor, 18 King Wah Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2165 3000

Facsimile: (852) 2165 3001

Website: http://www.bison.com.hk

bk - WL A A 18 e i

A (852) 2165 3000

e (852) 2165 3001

ot http://www.bison.com.hk

AUDITORS 1% % fif

Ernst & Young

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
K& w5
A R A BB A B

A i M) £0 3 % S AE 9795
Kby 57 — 274

STOCK CODE Ji% 17 13 5%
888
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